


CONTENTS H &

Corporate Information (2

DNEEHR

Chairman’s Statement (4
EFRHE

Management Discussion and Analysis (8
EEENWR DN

Directors and Senior Management Profile 21
EEREEBEEASRBN

Corporate Governance Report 26
EHEERRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report 43
BRI - ERERRE

Report of the Directors 60
ExEWmE

Independent Auditor’s Report 72
B ZHA RS

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and 80
Other Comprehensive Income

FeBRERHEMERERER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 82

mEMBARRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 84
MEEREER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 85
mERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 87

R MR

Five Years’ Financial Summary 208

T FEHME



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. XIE Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. LOU Yi

Mr. CHENG Yong

Ms. WONG Sau Kuen

Mr. LIU Kwok Wah

Mr. LU Zhigiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FANG Lin Hu
Mr. XUE Jing Lun
Ms. JIN Song

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. FANG Lin Hu (Chairman)
Mr. XUE Jing Lun
Ms. JIN Song

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. FANG Lin Hu (Chairman)
Mr. XUE Jing Lun

Ms. JIN Song

Dr. XIE Yi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. XIE Yi (Chairman)
Mr. FANG Lin Hu
Mr. XUE Jing Lun
Ms. JIN Song

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. LIU Kwok Wah
Ms. WONG Sau Kuen

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISERS

Chiu & Partners Solicitors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

02 EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED RFEHEZEZERERATR

EEg

HITES

WRE L (T ERITEHARE)
LA

BELE

IF/B/LL

o
t3

cit B
% -
off off
HF HF

k¥
WL

FHITES

\

DBS B WE

S
X E
H- off ofF

HF HF

B
N\
Y
il
l

i
hy
3

RISt
Sy
X E>

H- o o

#
#
Y
il
1%

BRAEER
TR o 55 I o4 12 6D % 74 P

B 3% BEm

RSB EhEB AR DA
S2E -]




REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 2206-08, 22/F
Devon House, Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http:// www.extrawell.com.hk

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 00858

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 =Z—h&5 &3 (1%]

AfRER

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

MMEENEBTELE
i 2h

BB

1 f0m

2 BTN
K ERRNE
22122206-08 %

FEAERRT

HETERT(EMARAR
RERTERAQA

BROBFELERERE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

ROBFELEEBIE

BEEEERERAA
FREF

SR AER 1835}

B M L5418

48 Uk

http:// www.extrawell.com.hk

B 40 1K 5%

BEEB AR HFIBER AT : 00858




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS
HEMAR :

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board”) of Extrawell Pharmaceutical
Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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The year 2018 ended with globally downside volatility brought by the
uncertainties from ongoing trade dispute between China and the
United States, pending outcome of Brexit negotiations and future
direction of monetary policy, which cloud over the global economic
outlook for 2019, dampening trade and investment flows.

China’s economy grew 6.6% in 2018, down from a growth of 6.8% in
2017 and at its slowest pace in 28 years. While China’s economic
growth rate is decelerating, it had a steady start to 2019, with a
slightly better-than-expected growth of 6.4% in the first quarter of
2019, which was supported by strong industrial production and
greater domestic consumption, and the Chinese government’s
stimulus measures to stabilise the economy including tax cuts for
businesses, infrastructure spending and easing monetary policy.

After three years’ efforts in adapting to a new normal in economic
development since the implementation of the Thirteenth Five-Year
Plan (2016-2020), China has been reshaping the regulatory
landscape and intensifying the structural reform to the pharmaceutical
industry which has maintained a steady growth in the midst of
constantly changing regulatory environment. In 2018, the institutional
reshuffle reform was initiated by the State Council, sweeping overhaul
of various government bodies through merging and restructuring,
with the aim of aligning the nation’s policy goals by enhancing
efficiency of market controls, facilitating greater surveillance and
promoting accessibility and affordability of quality drugs and national
health services in pursuit of a ‘Healthy China’ by year 2030. The drug
regulator, China Food and Drug Administration was merged into a
new regulatory structure, renamed as National Medical Products
Administration (“NMPA”) and under the direct supervision of a newly
formed market regulator, State Administration for Market Regulation.
The National Health and Family Planning Commission was dissolved,
its functions were integrated into the new establishment National
Health Commission, and together with the set up of a new state
medical insurance administration National Health Security
Administration, serve to help the government to offer comprehensive,
lifecycle health services to the nation, optimise the national health
insurance system, and promote the healthcare reforms. And since
June 2018, NMPA has become a management committee member
of International Council for Harmonisation of Technical Requirements
for Pharmaceuticals for Human Use, this milestone reflects that
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NMPA will gradually converge and implement the international highest
technical standards and guidelines into the drug regulatory process in
China. On the other hand, with the reform of the review and approval
system, NMPA has demonstrated an improved efficiency in
accelerating the pace of approval for registration of innovative drugs
which are urgently required to serve China’s unmet medical needs
especially for chronic and rare diseases.

China’s pharmaceutical industry has experienced waves of challenges
brought by the institutional reshuffle reform and the restructured
regulatory framework but improved market accessibility for self-
developed innovative drugs, which create both challenges and
opportunities to pharmaceutical enterprises. The continued deepening
of the healthcare reforms as to full swing of the two-invoice system
nationwide, ongoing consistency evaluation on generic drugs,
tightening environmental regulations, intensifying overseas inspection
for imported drugs, and the launch of various policies followed by the
institutional reshuffle reform, including the centralised procurement
with pre-determined quantities tendering mechanism in 11 selected
cities and the adjustments to the national essential drug list, have
influenced market sentiment and added pressures to drug prices and
costs, whilst accelerating consolidation within the industry and
facilitating new drug development.

During the year under review, the ever-increasingly competitive
landscape has further impacted significantly the performance of the
Group’s trading segment of imported pharmaceutical products due
to increasing regulatory scrutiny on imported products which resulted
in temporary sales suspension of the Group’s major revenue
contributor to the segment. Nonetheless, the Group’s manufactured
segment was able to achieve revenue growth and exhibited
continuous improvement in performance through management’s
intensive efforts in expanding market coverage and strengthening
credit control.

The Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to about HK$64.0 million as compared to a profit of about
HK$29.9 million of last financial year, representing an increase of
about HK$34.1 million, primarily attributable to non-cash items.
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While China’s pharmaceutical market will continue to face various
challenges against the backdrop of frequent policy changes brought
by the ongoing healthcare reforms, the Group believes that the upside
potential bolstered by China’s large and aging population, growing
per capita income, and the government’s long term commitment to
build up a ‘Healthy China’, embraces business and development
opportunities. The Group will endeavor to enhance the manufacturing
capability of its plants in Changchun to develop quality products to
capture market demand, improve cost efficiency by resource
allocation and maintain a sound financial fundamental, so as to
improve the Group’s performance and strengthen its foundation for
sustainable development.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express its appreciation to all
those in the Group for their dedicated efforts and contribution to the
Group during the past year, and to the shareholders and business
partners for their continuous support.

Dr. Xie Yi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall Performance Review

The global economic growth started encouragingly in early 2018 but
slowed down notably as the year progressed, reflecting the faded
momentum and diverged trends of growth across regions. Facing the
complicated international environment and intense trade tensions with
the United States, the Chinese economy recorded in 2018 its slowest
growth at 6.6% since 1990. Despite the challenges, China has been
making progress in its structural reform from rapid growth to high-
quality development in the third year of its Thirteenth Five-Year Plan
(2016-2020) and maintained growth at 6.4% in the first quarter of
2019. The regulatory landscape of the pharmaceutical industry has
been going through significant changes along with the deepening
healthcare reforms and Healthy China 2030 Plan. The sweeping
institutional reshuffle including the reorganisation of the drug regulator
China Food and Drug Administration, now renamed as National
Medical Products Administration and under direct supervision of State
Administration for Market Regulation; the set-up of National Health
Commission and National Health Security Administration directly
under the State Council, would facilitate advancing the healthcare
reforms and promoting the Healthy China initiatives. The frequent roll
out of national policies and the institutional reshuffle have reflected
the Chinese government’s determination in improving accessibility
and affordability of drugs and healthcare services to its citizens and
bringing China into close alignment with international regulatory
practices in terms of efficacy, safety and quality. The deepening of the
healthcare reforms followed with a brace of policy changes including
adjustments to National Drugs Reimbursement List, full
implementation of two invoice system, adoption of a new centralised
drugs procurement arrangement in 11 cities to compel quality drugs
tendering with minimum procurement quantities at the lowest prices,
have driven a new round of consolidation and integration in the
industry, whilst encouraging research and development of innovative
drugs to meet the unmet medical demand. Large pharmaceutical
players with scale economies emerging as formidable competitors in
all segments of the market have posed tremendous pressure to the
Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Overall Performance Review (Continued)

Notwithstanding the challenging conditions, the Group’s
manufacturing segment continued posting revenue growth with
improved margin, which more than covered the decline in revenue
and gross profit of the imported segment. As a result, the Group’s
revenue and gross profit increased to HK$89.2 million (2018:
HK$85.8 million) and HK$49.6 milion (2018: HK$42.0 million)
respectively, representing an increase of about 4.0% and 18.0% as
compared with that of last financial year.

The Group’s operating profit before income tax was about HK$63.4
million (2018: HK$29.2 million), representing an increase of about
HK$34.2 million. Such increase was mainly due to an increase in a
net gain of about HK$13.3 million arising from the fair value change of
the Group’s investments in convertible bonds, and no impairment
provision made for unrealised loss related to investments in unlisted
funds as compared to about HK$21.0 million recorded in last year,
whereas its fair value loss of about HK$59.0 million arisen in the year
was recognised in other reserve other than profit or loss, upon
adopting new accounting standard Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 (“HKFRS 9”) for financial instruments that is effective for
the Group’s current accounting period.

The Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was about HK$64.0 million, representing an increase of about
HK$34.1 million when compared to profit of about HK$29.9 million of
last financial year.
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REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS

Manufactured Pharmaceutical Sector

During the year, management continued executing last year’s
strategic initiatives by adjusting distribution channels, expanding
market coverage through collaboration with distributors and
outsourcing service providers with extensive distribution network to
promote product awareness in rural areas and communities. These
strategic initiatives enabled the segment to strengthen its competitive
position, enlarge market share and capture new growth opportunities.
As a result, the segment revenue grew to about HK$75.8 million (2018:
HK$60.2 million), representing an increase of HK$15.6 milion or
26.0%, and driven by such increase offset more than rising labor and
material costs, gross profit increased by about HK$15.1 million.

In tandem with revenue growth, management had strengthened risk
management measures to monitor customers’ creditability and
collection of receivables with the aim of limiting the credit exposure,
which significantly reduced the allowance for bad and doubtful debts
to about HK$0.3 milion (2018: HK$3.2 million), representing a
reduction of about HK$3.0 million. However, there was no further bad
debts recovered when compared to the recovery of HK$3.4 million
made in previous year.

Although the revenue and gross profit growth contributed positively to
the segment results, the segment had a large impact from high costs
of selling and marketing activities. Significant resources were
deployed on symposium, seminars as well as promotional activities in
order to cope with the challenges from aggressive competitors for
market share, which led to a surge of selling and marketing expenses
by more than HK$14.2 million when compared to last year. Together
with a loss on disposal of about HK$0.7 million arising from
replacement of coal-fired boilers with natural gas boilers under the
increasingly stringent environmental requirements for pollutant
emissions, segment loss was thus slightly reduced to about HK$3.6
million (2018: HK$3.7 million).

WEREEEE

BEZmER

FAN EEEBEEETLE—F2EHESR
B ESRAERDHERE HEREEZHHE
wroHEEERIMNHRBHRERSIENERX
MEEZEHE UWRALAEEEMREN
RitBEBzMEE ZEHBEEBEEZDE
BEMRAEGFMA - BATHMEILM
FHEEEE - Bt 7BERAEBREY
75,800,000 7t (== — J\4F : 60,200,000
JC) A8 E R 1 H015,600,0007% Tt 5(26.0% °
MEBEME AEEL T EMEKRE
iR - EFIIE HN4Y 15,100,000 TT °

BERREE TEEEARHEERR
mMinEEkREEEEANEERRL Z2EE
MEWREZKRBEERL MRAEERB®
K W8 B A & 49300,00058 T (= ZT — )\ 4 ¢
3,200,000/ 7T) + A8 & PR 2> 49.3,000,000/8
JC o AT ¢ B _E—4F JE U (813,400,000 7T
RNEEAWEE— S EIEE o

BERZREMNEEEPBEESRER
VE WZOEPBIIEEREHEEH
ZERAMTE BREXREG g R#E
BESPRAZERER  UEHEBSEY
FEEMBNBZANRE L ERFHE
€ 255 B I B & B USR8 14,200,0008
Lo ERTEHABESEMBERZEREEAR
HEEZBERAT  UWRXARRBEZRKE
8 48 M 2= 4 2 B8 5 48 49700,00078 7T+ 9
38 E5 18 RI RS AR 2 = 493,600,000 T (==
— J\4E : 3,700,000/ 7T) °

10 EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE




REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Manufactured Pharmaceutical Sector (Continued)

In a highly competitive and difficult regulatory environment as
depicted above, management believes that revenue growth
accompanied with larger spending in selling and marketing expenses
may impact short term performance, but in a longer term perspective,
strengthening of revenue growth and building of brand awareness wiill
ultimately help improve profitability. Apart from executing the initiatives
to expand market coverage, management will continue to focus on
improving product quality, reducing production and operation costs
in order to drive for a better performance.

Imported Pharmaceutical Sector

The overall market conditions adversely affected the segment
performance. The unfavorable factors as stated in the Group’s interim
report issued on 29 November 2018, including the intensified
competition from competing products produced by Chinese
manufacturers, the increasing regulatory scrutiny on imported
products, backlog of approval process for the renewal of import
license for the central nervous product expired in October 2017 as
well as uncertainties of outcome of overseas on-site inspection for the
skin treatment product (“Skin Drug”), had dented the first half-yearly
results. The segment revenue dented further in the second half of the
year by the outcome of on-site inspection for Skin Drug which is a
major revenue contributor to the segment. As disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 February 2019, the Group was
given to understand that the Chinese authorities had concluded in
end January 2019 certain manufacturing practices issues which
required the Skin Drug manufacturer’s remedies in order to fully
comply with the Chinese manufacturing practices and decided to
temporarily suspend sales of the Skin Drug in China. According to the
contract terms with the Group’s customers and suppliers, the Group
would not be involved in the product recall of the Skin Drug.

Given this difficult operating environment, segment revenue dropped
significantly to about HK$13.4 million (2018: HK$25.6 million),
representing a decrease of about HK$12.2 million or 47.6%. Despite
management had cautiously maintained the administrative costs at its
minimal level, the decrease in revenue and gross profit caused
segment loss to about HK$6.6 milion (2018: HK$6.0 million),
representing an increase of about HK$0.6 million.
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REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Imported Pharmaceutical Sector (Continued)

As the Group is given to understand that the respective manufacturers
for Skin Drug and the central nervous product are still in the process
of rectifying the issues with the relevant Chinese authorities, as such,
the Group considers that the loss-making position of this segment will
likely extend into the coming year. However, the Group and its
business partners have been making collaborative effort with a view
to resolving all those issues in the long term so as to bring its
imported products back to the China market as soon as practicable.
Management believes that the concerted efforts made by the Group
and its business partners will be ultimately reflected in the segment
performance.

Gene Development Sector

During the year, gene development remained inactive and no revenue
was recorded.

Interest in an Associate

The Group holds 49% equity interest in Smart Ascent Limited (“Smart
Ascent”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Smart Ascent Group”),
and the major asset of the Smart Ascent Group is the intangible asset
in relation to an in-process research and development project (“In-
process R&D”) involving an oral insulin product (“Product”), which is
still at its clinical trial stage. As a minority shareholder of Smart
Ascent, the Group has been working closely with Innovative
Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited (“Innovative Pharm”), the 51%
shareholder of Smart Ascent, in monitoring the progress of the oral
insulin project with a view to facilitating successful launching of the
Product to the market.

As stated in the 2018 Annual Report, the timeline for
commercialisation of the Product was expected to be in around mid
of 2020.

A supplemental announcement was made by the Company on 15
August 2018 to provide further information in relation to (i)
management and audit committee’s position on the disclaimer of
opinion; (ii) the adjustment of expected timeline for the
commercialisation of the Product; (i) the Company’s participation in
the progress of the launch of the Product; and (iv) the latest status of
the Product.
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REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Interest in an Associate (Continued)

With reference to the working capital requirements of Smart Ascent
Group, Innovative Pharm and the Company through their respective
wholly-owned subsidiaries as lenders and Smart Ascent as borrower
entered into a shareholders’ loan agreement on 27 July 2018 for a
loan to Smart Ascent amounting to HK$30 million in total (the “Loan”),
to be contributed as to 51% i.e. HK$15.3 million by Innovative Pharm
Group and as to 49% i.e. HK$14.7 milion by the Group. In
September 2018, Smart Ascent had drawn down HK$10 million of
the Loan, of which the Group’s share was HK$4.9 million.

In October 2018, Fosse Bio-Engineering Development Limited (“Fosse
Bio”, one of the members of the Smart Ascent Group) had finalised
the engagement of the contract research organisation (“CRO”) and
entered into a technical service agreement with the CRO to conduct
clinical research of the Product. And a supplemental agreement was
entered into between Tsinghua University and Fosse Bio to renew the
term of the collaboration arrangement for another five years to
October 2023, under which Fosse Bio continues to be entitled to
commercialise the relevant technologies of the Product and to
manufacture and sell the Product on an exclusive basis.

Upon the engagement of the CRO, the CRO has been working with
the project team so as to select the participating hospitals for the
clinical trial; meetings were held with the hospitals as shortlisted.
Fosse Bio has engaged a hospital to act as the leader hospital or
principal investigator for the clinical trial. Engagement of other
shortlisted hospitals is in progress, whereas the oral insulin samples
for clinical trial purpose have been manufactured. Given the recent
progress and the reassessment of the timeline by Smart Ascent
Group, the expected timeline for commercialisation of the Product
has been revised to be by January 2022.
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REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued) U 5 % &8 & % 48 (@)

Interest in an Associate (Continued) R—EEE QR 2R @

In making the assessment as to the recoverability of the In-process  FEFE(H¥ETTH 2 M A] Uk B & 28 & 7B
R&D and the fair value of the interest in the associate, the Group has 4 QA F 2 HZW AT E AEFEZE T 5E
engaged an independent qualified valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited A& &R GEMESEHEIGAER 2 7
(“Valuer”) in conducting a valuation. The asset-based valuation ([{H{ERT])ETTHE - FETHEER —HX
approach has been consistently adopted in the valuation and the HEEERGEEL METH 2R
recoverable amount of the In-process R&D was determined basedon Y El £ % H{E B IR &R EE A EIE A FE
fair value calculation using cash flow projections, which the estimated st E&EF EHRIBEFEEHEBE R EF X
cash inflows derived from budgeted sales and gross margin were :tE 7GR SR ANERETIHERRE 2
based on the expectation for the market development, and which FEH] R EBHER-_ZT - —_F — AR E
included the regulatory approvals from the relevant government FEEBFE SIS ELRBEZER P
bodies and launching of the Product by January 2022. The Hiea A Am KO£ EEEN
recoverable amount of the interest in the associate was determined  # 17/ Z I 2 &9 (5 & B I L 5t & i
based on share of the estimated fair value of the In-process R&D after  #|#E 7 r:EBE T °

taking into account the lack of control discount.

The expected future economic benefits attributable to the In-process  #E 17 /7 B 2% JE {1 T8 HA o8 28 48 75 7 25 J5 1R
R&D was assumed to cover a 10 years period from the B EH R ZERTE +EER - BRE
commercialisation of the Product. The calculation used in the cash ER4REBAZETERL2HNOT

flow projection with certain key parameters are as below:

Discount rate (post-tax) B3R KR (BRBE) 23.64%
Growth rate 1K & 3%
Gross profit ratio EF = 64.44%

In conducting the impairment assessment, the directors of the FE#EITHEBEHE KEZEETHN &1
Company, having considered the prevailing market conditions, € G ESTEAFFEFREBROSE M &K GEA
reasonableness of assumptions used for the cash flow projections #HETZ(HEXBPBEATFTEBEE®mE ' &~
and the valuation as prepared by the Valuer indicating its fair value in =~ A FlE EWHE B IR F A TR B R~ REEZE QD
excess of the carrying amount, do not identify any indicaton onthe F 7 #FZAR - E—HNhE=HA=+—H2E
carrying amount of interest in the associate as at 31 March 2019 that mE{ERJEBIELBE R AR _ZE— N
may need to be impaired. Accordingly, no impairment is considered F=A=+—HHBE/ELRHE -

necessary as at 31 March 2019.

The Group will continue to closely coordinate with Innovative Pharm — K& B G 4 E BB L B E 1 1E - BE 52
in monitoring the progress of the oral insulin project with a view to O RBEEZBE ZERE BN WREFTE S
facilitating successful launching of the Product to the market. In  FXIHH#EHE TS o o REBR VLB E
addition, the Group will continue to perform impairment assessment R IEE S @28 E365E [ & E R E | 7t
on the carrying amount of the interest in the associate in accordance R Et& N Al ZEZ ZEBMEHETRETE
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”

where necessary.
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REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Other income and gains and losses, net

Other income and gains and losses, net were in total a gain of about
HK$89.1 million (2018: HK$53.0 million), which increased by about
HK$36.1 million or 68.1%. The increase was primarily attrioutable to (i)
an increase in a net gain of about HK$13.3 million arising from the fair
value change of the Group’s investments in convertible bonds and (i)
no impairment provision made for unrealised loss related to
investments in unlisted funds as compared to about HK$21 million
recorded in last year, whereas its fair value loss of about HK$59.0
million arisen in the year was recognised in other reserve other than
profit or loss, upon adopting new accounting standard for financial
instruments; namely HKFRS 9 that is effective for the Group’s current
accounting period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased to about
HK$40.2 million (2018: HK$32.3 million), representing an increase of
HK$7.9 million or 24.5%. Such increase was due to the combined
effect of decrease in promotional expenses resulting from revenue
decline of the imported segment and increase in marketing expenses
for revenue growth in the manufacturing segment.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses maintained at a broadly steady level of about
HK$26.4 million (2018: HK$27.0 million), representing a slight
decrease by about HK$0.6 million or 2.2%. Such decrease reflected
a continued focus of the Group on execution of cost containment
initiatives to control the expenses and to improve profitability.
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OUTLOOK

Despite waning global growth momentum and concerns about
escalating trade tensions between the US and China, the World Bank
recently released and maintained its growth forecast for China at 6.2%
in 2019. Against the backdrop of stable economic growth, it is
anticipated that the Chinese government will continue to commit
resources to invest in the healthcare reforms in accordance with the
Thirteenth Five-Year Plan and Healthy China 2030 Plan. Following the
Chinese government’s reorganisation of drug regulator and
establishment of new institutions to push forwards the plans, the
pharmaceutical industry has entered into a new regime with greater
levels of regulatory influence, which has a material and profound
impact on the industry. New round of policies including new
regulations on centralised drugs procurement, regulatory monitoring
over adjuvant drugs, comprehensively implementation of two invoice
system have intensified market competition and posed significant
challenges to the Group.

In light of the challenges and ever-increasingly competitive landscape,
development of the Group’s own quality products and enhancement
of the Group’s core competitiveness by advancing its production
technology remain crucial and necessary to create a favorable
momentum of long-term development and growth for the Group. In
addition to measures on enhancing production efficiency and
strengthening cost savings, the Group will continue to leverage its
competitive advantages of scale economies, product quality and
established distribution networks of its manufacturing segment in
competition for gaining greater market share in order to achieve
better performance. As the Group has been placing more focus on
reinforcing the fundamentals for development of the Group’s
manufacturing segment which has demonstrated positive progress in
these recent years, the Group believes that the loss-making situation
of its imported pharmaceuticals trading segment in the near term
would not have material adverse impact on the financial position of
the Group, which remains sound.
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OUTLOOK (Continued)

Looking forward, the operating environment will be very challenging
as the pharmaceutical industry has been undergoing a radical change
in its regulatory landscape. However, the Group remains optimistic
that the industry will maintain a stable growth driven by mounting
demands of accelerated aging population, growing chronic diseases
and improving standard of living in China. In the meantime, the Group
will continuously endeavor to adopt a flexible strategy in parallel to the
market challenges so as to improve the Group’s business operations,
and stay alert for business opportunities which may diversify its
revenue stream.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

It is the Group’s strategy to manage its financial resources
conservatively by maintaining a healthy level of cash flows to meet all
its financial commitments when they fall due. The Group generally
finances its operations with internally generated cash flow and
banking facilities.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total cash and bank balances
(including pledged bank deposits) of about HK$169.9 million (2018:
HK$182.3 million), representing a decrease by approximately 6.8%.
Such decrease was mainly due to the combined effect of working
capital changes as well as utilisation of interest income received from
investments in convertible bonds of about HK$25.0 million to fund
respectively the repayment of about HK$19.8 million and provision of
a shareholder’s loan of about HK$4.9 million to Smart Ascent.

The Group did not have bank borrowings during the year but had
banking facilities on trade finance, which were supported by the
pledge of the Group’s fixed deposits of about HK$21.0 million (2018:
HK$20.5 million) and corporate guarantees from the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company. In general, there is no significant
seasonality fluctuation on trade finance requirement of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

The Group’s total borrowing over total assets ratio as at 31 March
2019 was 0.041 (2018: 0.051), calculated based on the Group’s total
assets of about HK$1,196.1 million (2018: HK$1,216.8 million) and
total debts of about HK$49.6 million (2018: HK$61.6 million),
comprising convertible bonds of about HK$49.6 milion (2018:
HK$41.8 million) and amount due to an associate of HK$ Nil (2018:
HK$19.8 million).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Save for certain purchases are denominated in Euros, the Group’s
business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi. The Group manages the foreign currency exposure by
closely monitoring the foreign currency movements and may
purchase foreign currencies at spot rate, when and where appropriate
for meeting its payment obligation. No hedge on foreign currencies
was made during the year but the Group will use financial instruments
for hedging purpose when considered appropriate.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Investments in Unlisted Funds

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held a total of 80,000 participating
shares (“Relevant Participating Shares”) in KKC Capital SPC, a
segregated portfolio company incorporated in the Cayman Islands at
aggregate consideration of HK$80,000,000 (the “Funds”). During the
year, the Funds have been reclassified from available-for-sale
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) to financial assets at FVTOCI upon adopting a new
accounting standard for financial instruments on 1 April 2018. Due to
volatile fluctuations in equity markets resulting from an escalating
trade conflict between the US and China and weakening corporates
earnings, fair value loss of about HK$59,047,000 was recognised in
FVTOCI reserve. Details of the Funds at 31 March 2019 as held by
the Group are set out below:

B 7% [B] B (&)

FLEMEERE

RTZE-HFZA=+—8 KTEBHKKC
Capital SPC(— MR A S ST MK L 2B
BEIR &G A Fl) #35 B 80,000% 2 E % (7
([EB28ERkHB]) - 2K E 480,000,000
TZEELD -RER ZFEEN =
T-N\FUA—BRMKNEBEH T AEZH
AEREARERSEARAFERAZ
Htwzmhx((RAFEFAEMLEZER
BN ZAHHEREETPEAKATFE
AAREMEEKE 2 SMEE - AP E
BOBMEH R ARRES REB®E
B BEREZEAFEFAEMEE RS H
HHER RN F{EE 1B 459,047,000 7T« A=
E-NFZA=Z+—HB KEAFBZZ
EHEHSHBHINDT -

(Note)
Fair value Percentage
loss to total
Number recognised assets
Name of unlisted of units Investment Market in FVTOCI value of the
investment Brief description of the business held cost value reserve Group
(B 3E)
RIEAQFE
FTAHAE
7= ZEKE HEEHE
B REBERAH BEE
FLTREER EBEHN BE REAX mE ATFEEBE Aok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FET
KKC Capital High  The investment objective is for long term 80,000 80,000 — 80,000 -
Growth Fund capital appreciation by investing primarily in
Segregated listed and unlisted shares, rights and
Portfolio warrants. The investment manager is KKC
Capital Limited and its investment advisor is
Avia Asset Management Limited, which is
licensed by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong to carry on
Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities
REBBEREBTEREN R
R~ R R R AR E A RS
REIERIEE - IREFEBARKKC
Capital Limited » T & 4% & B8R &1 &8
EEBEBARAR (HESEBESF L
HEEBERLZE UM ETREIA
(RESRHFER) LFIORBEHEE
ER)XMEES)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B % 151 BE ()

Investments in Unlisted Funds (Continued) ETEEKRE @

Note: Of this balance, HK$20,953,000 related to impairment loss recognised in last Mz R zEseh BRENEBESR T E 25T
year’s profit or loss and transferred to FVTOCI reserve as a result of adopting the SHER REFERZRNEREGE@BREEIE
new accounting standard for financial instruments. 20,953,000 7T - WHE B = E A FERFT A HAM

THEHKERE -

In order to mitigate the loss, the Board considers exploring the ABKEIE BEEeZEREAELERLRE
possibilities of identifying potential investors for acquiring the Relevant  FZF AW E BB L2 ERMDIFE = g4 R
Participating Shares subject to the then performance of the Funds FZEE S SR RELRBEIREEZ 2 H
and the offer from the potential investors, if any, and in accordance &M E (nH)  WER FF#H A 2 #5E ©
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Employment and Remuneration Policy 1/ 1% 70 %57 B B 2R

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 171 employees (2018: 178). W—-_ZE— L FE=A=+—H A~ EBH L
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31  FA 171 HEEB(ZZE—N\F:178%) - B E

March 2019 amounted to approximately HK$23.7 milion (2018: —ZE—hE=A=+—BIEEZETK
approximately HK$25.8 million), which was mainly due to decrease in $ ( B E F H B ) A 423,700,000/ 7T (=
headcount at the manufacturing segment. T — J\4F : #925,800,000/87T) » TEHNE

n’\*ﬁ BT ABURDPIE

The Group remunerates its employees based on industry practices. ZAREE JIRIETE BN A IEE X -
Its staff benefits, welfare and statutory contributions, if any, are made  H & I %Ij =B MEEEZ(AE) ThiR
in accordance with prevailing labour laws of its operating entities. BMHZETE B ITAEEEIT -

On 24 August 2012, shareholders of the Company had approvedthe HR—-_ZT——F A\ A=-+WMWH A2 F)KE
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which became B Ht /R — B E Rt 2 ([t 2 ]) » »
effective on 29 August 2012 after obtaining approval from the Listing E S & BB A 5 Ffr ﬁ AR EMZEE®

Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and, unless  #t /&% st e R T ——F N\ A=+
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years JL B4 B IEH B TH}Z SEeEE] - B Al
from that date. BEZHEBTFEANERSER -

The Scheme will enable the Group to reward the employees, the HZEtElgEAEFEHAAEFHELE
directors and other selected participants for their contribution to the EiZ{EE - EERHMEHkE 228 E - Jf
Group and will also assist the Group in its recruitment and retenton BB AEERERKEEENAEBFE 2
of high caliber professionals, executives and employees who are EFEA - TENES -

instrumental to the growth of the Group.

From the effective date of the Scheme to 31 March 2019, no share B Z:tEMWAERBEHELE T — L F= A
option has been granted under the Scheme. =+ —H1i BERBEZTERLERE-
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EFASEEEARESN

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Dr. Xie Yi Ph.D. (aged 56)

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Dr. Xie Yiis a professor of School of Life Sciences in Fudan University
and is one of the founders of United Gene group of companies in the
PRC. Being a scientist with significant breakthroughs in human
genome research, Dr. Xie is responsible for research and
development and management of United Gene group and is the vice
chairman and chief executive officer of United Gene Holdings Limited
in the PRC.

Dr. Xie is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company responsible for the strategic planning and development and
the overall management of the Group. He is also an executive director
and chairman of Changchun Extrawell Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a
73% owned subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC, and
an executive director of certain members of the Group.

Dr. Lou Yi Ph.D. (aged 61)

Executive Director

Dr. Lou Yi obtained a doctoral degree in medicine and conducted his
postdoctoral research in clinical study at Shanghai Second Medical
University (now renamed as School of Medicine, Shanghai Jiaotong
University) and industrial economy at Fudan University. Dr. Lou had
been a director and general manager of Shanghai Biochip Co. Ltd.
and as a director and deputy general manager of General Technology
Group Pharmaceutical Holdings, Ltd. in the PRC. Dr. Lou was also a
non-executive director of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), from June
2004 to June 2006. Dr. Lou is currently a director and general
manager of various companies owned by Dr. Xie Yi and Dr. Mao
Yumin, former chairman and executive director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (Continued)

EERERERARBN (])

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Cheng Yong (aged 56)

Executive Director

Mr. Cheng Yong is a practicing pharmacist in the PRC. Mr. Cheng
obtained his Master of Pharmacology from Second Military Medical
University in the PRC. He has been engaged in pharmacology and
research study for over ten years and has extensive experience in the
aspects of research and drug development. Since 2001, he has been
working in the capacity of director and general manager for various
companies owned by Dr. Xie Yi and Dr. Mao Yumin, former chairman
and executive director. Mr. Cheng is currently a director of two PRC
subsidiaries of Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited (formerly
known as United Gene High-Tech Group Limited), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen (aged 56)

Executive Director

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen joined the Group in May 2008 as assistant to
the Board and was appointed as director in October 2008. Ms. Wong
has more than 20 years of experience in both the commercial and
industrial sectors including the PRC pharmaceutical market. Ms.
Wong has extensive experience in areas of business administration
and internal control. She is currently the Authorised Representative of
the Company.

Ms. Wong has been appointed as the joint company secretary of the
Company with effect from 8 January 2014.

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah (aged 57)

Executive Director

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah joined the Company in November 2008 as the
company secretary and financial controller and was appointed as
executive director in December 2013. Mr. Liu has become the joint
company secretary with effect from 8 January 2014. Mr. Liu is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Liu holds a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from The Open University of Hong Kong and has more
than 20 years of experience in accounting and financial management.
Prior to joining the Company, he had worked for international
accounting firms and several listed companies in Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (Continued)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lu Zhiqgiang (aged 44)

Executive Director

Mr. Lu Zhigiang holds a Master Degree of Business Administration
from Central State University of the United States of America, a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering and a Bachelor Degree of Industry
from Nanchang Hangkong University of the PRC. Mr. Lu attended the
program of a Master of Science Degree in International Purchasing &
Supply Chain Management organised by Audencia NANTES.Ecole de
Management. Mr. Lu is experienced in corporate management and
investment. He is currently an executive director and chief executive
officer of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(stock code: 8085) whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. He was a non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China New Energy Power Group Limited)
(stock code: 1041) from 29 October 2014 to 9 July 2015 and an
executive director of Global Energy Resources International Group
Limited (stock code: 8192) from 28 November 2014 to 2 September
2016, the shares of these two companies are listed on the Main
Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange respectively.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin Hu (aged 81)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Fang Lin Hu was a professor in Fudan University, ex-vice
chancellor of the Fudan University (overseeing technology
industrialisation and utilisation matters), a member of National
Information Technology Education and Electronic Education Advisory
Committee and vice faculty head of the Physics Faculty of Fudan
University, dean of the Electronic Engineering Faculty, and the director
of Micro-electronic Research Institute. Mr. Fang retired in 2000.
Currently, he is the vice chairman of the Shanghai Senior Professor
Association and a vice president of Shanghai Retired Education
Workers Association. Mr. Fang has performed research in the area of
microwave theory and technology. He is a well-recognised scientist
who has extensive experience in scientific research and management.
Mr. Fang was appointed as an independent non-executive director in
2001.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (Continued)

EERERERARBN (])

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xue Jing Lun (aged 85)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Xue Jing Lun was the chief professor of Fudan University, a guest
professor of the Second Military Medical University of China, Tongji
Medical University and Shantou University, chairman of Chinese
Environmental Mutagen Association, a director of International
Environmental Mutagen Association, and a committee member of the
China Genetic Engineering Society. Mr. Xue retired in April 2007. The
research team led by Mr. Xue gained international recognition in the
area of gene therapy and transgenic animal research. Mr. Xue has
been granted a number of national awards for merits in scientific
research and is an internationally recognised genetic scientist. Mr.
Xue was appointed as an independent non-executive director in
2001.

Ms. Jin Song (aged 48)

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Jin Song holds a diploma in engineering from Broadcasting
University in Shandong Province and a diploma in business from
Fudan University. She is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“CICPA”) and passed all the professional
examinations held by CICPA in 2001. Ms. Jin has over 20 years’
experience in accounting in different industries. Ms. Jin was
appointed as an independent non-executive director in 2004,

Senior Management

Dr. Wen Ming (aged 58)

Head of Research and Development

Dr. Wen Ming joined the Group in 1992. He is responsible for
overseeing the regulatory affairs, research & development, and the
registration of the Group’s products, and the marketing and
promotion aspects of the Group’s imported pharmaceutical business.
Dr. Wen graduated with a bachelor’s degree in medical science from
the Guangzhou Medical College and obtained a master’s degree in
medical science from Sun Yat Sen University of Medical Sciences (now
renamed as the Sun Yat Sen University). Prior to joining the Group,
Dr. Wen worked in a hospital of Sun Yat Sen University as the chief
physician for ten years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (Continued)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Gong Youlu (aged 50)

General Manager of Changchun Extrawell Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“CEP”) and Jilin Extrawell Changbaishan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“JECP”)

Mr. Gong Youlu joined the Group in 2011. Mr. Gong is responsible for
the overall management and operations of CEP and JECP. He has
over 20 years’ experience in the pharmaceutical manufacturing
sector. Mr. Gong holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
Taiyuan Mechanical College (now known as North University of China)
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Jilin University,
China. Prior to joining the Group, he had held the position of general
manager for pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises in the PRC for
over 10 years.

Ms. Wu Hong (aged 47)

Group Senior Finance Manager

Ms. Wu Hong, a qualified accountant in the PRC, joined the Group in
1995 and is responsible for all the Group’s financial matters in the
PRC. She graduated from Jiangsu Television Broadcast University,
majoring in Foreign Trading Accounting. Before joining the Group, she
worked with a joint venture company in the PRC.

Mr. Huang Wenda (aged 42)

Financial Controller of CEP and JECP

Mr. Huang Wenda joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Huang is responsible
for financial control and financial management of the operations of
CEP and JECP and currently also serves as secretary to the board
handling corporate secretarial matters of CEP and JECP. He has
accumulated experience of over 10 years in financial management of
pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises. Prior to joining the Group,
he worked with manufacturing enterprises in the PRC.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

EEREREERAR@N (])

EENEREEEAEHN @)

SEEEAS @

BEERELE (B TB)
REBEEEROVERI2AITRERES
REMNBEERAWEXERAA(ZHE
&) B
BEREENR T ——FMALREH- 5
TERERERERTHNBEZERE
BREE RRBEETEERB_TFK
B BAELEXENANREM BB CGRHEF
EXRE) BMEIEELBM IREMK
EMEIMERRLRML - ENMALXEE
Al REAEBARECXETELSERS
Bt

RA XL (1 t5%)

£ 5 AR A

Rt HEEERGHM R— A
AEMALXREE AEASEETBEZAHR
EMBEE REXNIHEERERAKX
B FEINEEH -EMARKER  KE
R—HKEARAEERABILIE-

EXELE (Tt =5)
REBERZHEENBHE
BEXELEEANR_FTTONFEFNMALER - &
RERAERERELRTMBEZENUH
BEHEMBEEETHE RAETRETES
ENERERERENREMNBEN DA MW
EEB - -NEHECEVBERTERE
TETFER ENMAXRKEA - KENE
NEEIEDRRTE-

—E-hEER



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREIRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Corporate Governance

The Group recognises the importance of achieving and
monitoring the high standard of corporate governance
consistent with the need and requirements of its business and
the best interest of all of its shareholders. The Group is fully
committed to doing so.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (“Code Provisions”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Company had adopted and applied the Code Provisions,
except for certain deviations as set out below.

Code Provisions A.1.3 and A.7.1 stipulate that 14-day notice
should be given for each regular board meeting and that in
respect of regular meetings, and as far as practicable in all
other cases, an agenda and accompanying board papers
should be sent in full to all directors in a timely manner and at
least 3 days before the intended date of a board or board
committee meeting (or other agreed period). The Company
agrees that sufficient time should be given to the directors in
order to make a proper decision. In these respects, the
Company adopts a more flexible approach (and yet sufficient
time has been given) in convening board meetings to ensure
efficient and prompt management decisions could be made.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. Dr. Xie Yi has served as the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
However, the Company believes that there is adequate balance
of power and authority in place though vesting the roles of both
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person as all
major decisions of the Company are made in consultation with
members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

LEELIHRE(HE)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES A. ¥ EAER @
(Continued)
Corporate Governance (Continued) TEER @
Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors TFHENXEALINIGERTE ERTTES
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. EIREFEEEHEE WAEAEXEE-
The Company deviates from this Code Provision as the AABREBHLTEEY RALSBE L
independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) are not FEHTES((EBYIFRE]) WIS
appointed for specific terms. According to the bye-laws of the FEBEE- AWM BREAQRZA
Company, however, the INEDs are subject to retirement and re- AIARE - BYUIEREBRENEIR-
election. The reason for the deviation is that the Company HEREZRERAKRNAGHEESE
believes that the directors ought to be committed to BARNBRREZKERF &M E D&
representing the long-term interest of the Company’s Z o
shareholders.
Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director should be TRENEAL2IGIRTE BREZE
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. SVPBEB=—"FHERF IR - BELAD
According to the bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the BlZARIME =2 —HEETEEA
directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that the HBERT HEE B ETFXREZFA
Chairman, Deputy Chairman or Managing Director shall not be CRFGEHBERT AQXA 2R84
subject to retirement by rotation. The Company’s bye-laws ARBETREX - A AFREBEE/
deviate from the Code Provision. The Company considers that BlXE S gB s EEIRTESE 2
the continuity of the Chairman/Deputy Chairman/Managing BEHEBRLTEEEE BTN
Director and their leadership are essential for the stability of the FEBE -MABEFAIERESAEE
business and key management. The rotation methodology F - RMFEERRFIRE 2 &EMN -
ensures a reasonable continuity of directorship which is to the
best interest of the Company’s shareholders.
Code Provision A.4.2 also stipulates that all directors appointed TFAIIE X FAL2IETNBETE BT B E
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by ETEAEBRTETMR ESANES
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment. FEHEEBRRERAG FHBRERSE-
According to the bye-laws of the Company, any director so BEAARZABME FREELZFE
appointed shall hold office only until the next annual general JEESTHEEETAKREBREERS
meeting. The Company’s bye-laws deviate from the Code =N NE/NI=] B /=] 1 (| K = s = R S
Provision. However, the Company believes that it is in the best X SR ARG HERKREREFK
interest of the Company’s shareholders to transact this ordinary eREBHATEEFTAARAKREZ
course of business in the annual general mesting. wIEFZ -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERELRSE (R)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company. Due
to other important engagement, Dr. Xie Yi was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 August
2018. Dr. Lou Yi, an executive director of the Company, was
appointed to chair the annual general meeting in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, and answered
questions from shareholders of the Company.

Code provision E.1.5 stipulates that the Company should have
a policy on payment of dividends. The Company has not
established a dividend policy as the Company considers it more
appropriate to determine a dividend payment after taking into
account those factors including the Company’s then financial
performance, operating and capital requirements and market
conditions, to enable the Company be in a better position to
cope with its future development, which is to the best interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Company will continue to review and monitor the situation
as stated above, and to improve the practices as and when the
circumstances demand.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by
the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the directors, the
directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the board of directors (the
“Board”) comprises six executive directors and three INEDs as
follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Xie Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Lou Vi

Mr. Cheng Yong

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah

Mr. Lu Zhigiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin Hu
Mr. Xue Jing Lun
Ms. Jin Song

Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship)
among the members of the Board.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. The management is delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-
day management of the Group. Major corporate matters that
are specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of interim and annual reports and
announcements for the Board’'s approval before publishing,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the
Board, implementation of adequate internal control systems
and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations.

Each of the INEDs has complied with the provisions set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company also considers
that they are independent under the Listing Rules. Of the three
INEDs, Ms. Jin Song has appropriate accounting or related
financial management experience as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

LRER/HLE ()
C. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) C. EEg2uwm
During the year ended 31 March 2019, five Board meetings and HEzE-_ZE—NhF=A=Z+—HI1tF
an annual general meeting of the Company were held, and the B ARAGRITAREETZZZEN
attendance records of each director at the respective meetings —KBRERAFRE MIESFNHEEG
are set out in the table below: @ VHERFINTER:
Number of attendance
R B
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Name of Director BEEHS EEZEEE BRAE
Dr. Xie Yi HERE T+ 5/5 0/1
Dr. Lou Vi BlziE+ 5/5 1/1
Mr. Cheng Yong BELE 5/5 11
Ms. Wong Sau Kuen FHEIBLL 5/5 1/1
Mr. Liu Kwok Wah BRE LA 5/5 1/1
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EEREE 4/5 0/1
Mr. Fang Lin Hu MR R S 5/5 11
Mr. Xue Jing Lun BERfmitE 5/5 11
Ms. Jin Song MLt 5/5 1/1
In addition, a meeting was held between the Chairman and all SO ERNME R BRERE NEHRTT
INEDs without the presence of executive directors during the EETESHNERTHEH2EE T IEH
financial year. BRIT KRG
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ RKArlEeAESeKRENNERAELR
liability insurance for members of the Board and officers in order BeBEzEENSRAEE T RS
to protect legal claims against their lawful discharge of duties in AR ERANEBXBKEBR AR
relation to the Group’s business. FESREEZBFIRHEERE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Dr. Xie Yi serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. This is a deviation from Code Provision A.2.1,
which requires the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
person. As all major decisions of the Company are made in
consultation with members of the Board, the Company believes
that there is adequate balance of power and authority in place
though vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election
and, pursuant to Code Provision A.4.2, every director shall retire
by rotation at least once every three years. None of the INEDs
of the Company is appointed for a specific term and according
to the bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the directors (except
for the Chairman) shall retire from office by rotation and become
eligible for re-election. The reason for the deviation is that the
Company believes that the directors ought to be committed to
representing the long-term interest of the Company’s
shareholders and the rotation methodology ensures a
reasonable proportion of directors in continuity which is to the
best interest of the Company’s shareholders.

The function of the INEDs includes but not limited to
participating in Board meetings and meetings of committees to
bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conduct.

The Board has established three committees; namely
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee. Each committee comprising of all INEDs is
responsible for, inter alia, the review and oversight of the
activities within its defined terms of reference. The written terms
of reference for the respective committees are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERELRSE (R)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of four members including,
Dr. Xie Yi (Chairman), Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board, and all INEDs, namely Mr. Fang Lin Hu, Mr. Xue Jing
Lun and Ms. Jin Song.

The major role and function of the Nomination Committee are to
formulate and implement the policy for nominating candidates
for consideration by the Board and election by shareholders,
review the structure, size and composition of the Board with
due regard to Board diversity, and to assess the independence
of non-executive directors.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Committee will help implement and monitor the
policy. To enhance the effectiveness of the Board, selection of
candidates will be based on a range of perspectives, including
but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and length of
service. The Nomination Committee will review and discuss the
measurable objectives for Board diversity on an annual basis
and will make recommendation to the Board for its
consideration and approval. Having reviewed the existing
composition of the Board and the business nature of the Group,
the Nomination Committee considered that Board diversity has
been achieved.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
guiding the nomination criteria and procedures to identify, select
and recommend candidates for directorship.

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of
nomination criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for directorship or proposed re-appointment of a
retiring director, including but not limited to: the skKills,
knowledge and experience possessed by the candidate or
retiring director which are relevant to the Company’s business,
corporate development and strategy; the diversity perspectives
set out in the Board Diversity Policy and the balance of skills
and experience in board composition; the level of independence
from the Company and compliance of the relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules; and such other factors the Nomination
Committee may consider relevant to enhancement of the
effectiveness of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Subject to the provisions in the Company’s bye-laws, where the
Nomination Committee determines that an additional director or
a replacement director is required, it may take appropriate
steps in connection with the identification and evaluation of a
suitable candidate for directorship. The Nomination Committee
may deploy channels including referral from directors, advisers
of the Company and external executive search firms in the
identification process, evaluate a candidate based on the
nomination criteria stated above, and make recommendation
for the Board’s consideration and approval.

For re-appointment of a retiring director, the Nomination
Committee reviews his/her service to the Company, the level of
participation on the Board during his/her term, and after taking
into account the nomination criteria, recommends to the Board
for proposed re-appointment of the retiring director who wishes
to stand for re-election at the Company’s general meeting.

The Nomination Committee may also propose to the Board a
candidate recommended or offered for nomination by a
shareholder of the Company as a nominee for election to the
Board, if it evaluates that the candidate meets the nomination
criteria. The procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a director are published in the Company’s
website.

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of directors. On accepting the recommendation
made by the Nomination Committee, the Board may (as the
case may be) appoint the candidate as director to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board and recommend the
candidate to shareholders for election or re-election (for a
retiring director) at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2019, and all members had attended the
meeting to review the structure, size and composition including
Board diversity, of the Board; consider and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
retiring directors; and assess the independence of INEDs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

ERERWE (W)
G. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
specific terms of reference, which state clearly its authority and
duties. It advises the Board on the remuneration of the directors
and senior management of the Company.

In line with good and fair practice, members of the
Remuneration Committee consist of the three INEDs, namely
Mr. Fang Lin Hu (Chairman), Mr. Xue Jing Lun, Ms. Jin Song,
and Dr. Xie Yi.

FMWEES
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, three meetings were HE_ZT—hLGF=-A=Z=+—8BLHF
held and attendance of each director is set out as follows: Er2RiIT=ZRkex SEE2HE
RFHIWT -
Number of attendance
Name of Director EEHA HERE
Mr. Fang Lin Hu MRS AE 3/3
Mr. Xue Jing Lun BRmEE 3/3
Ms. Jin Song SME L 3/3
Dr. Xie Vi BIE {nn 3/3

The emoluments of the directors are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and/or decided
by the Board as authorised by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting according to the directors’ respective
responsibilities, individual performance and prevailing market
conditions. The Company has also adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to the directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee conducts regular
review of the Company’s remuneration policy and structure of
the directors and senior management which takes into account
the prevailing market conditions and the role and responsibility
of individual members, for making recommendation to the
Board. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the
remuneration packages (including directors’ fees) of the
directors and made recommendation to the Board for
considerations and approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid individuals for
the year ended 31 March 2019 are disclosed in notes 10 and
11 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
Emoluments of senior management whose profiles are
disclosed in the section “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” but not included in the note as the five highest paid
individuals, fell within the following band:

G.

ERERWSE (W)

FMZEE S W)

BHE_Z-NAF=R=+—HLEFE
ZEFMERAUSZSHFHALD R
RERE BRI FEI0R I AHEE -
SEEEAB(HEERBERIEER
SEEEABMN] & BEFEER
MEANERAUERHEMAL) 2 M
BN TIIERE :

Number of individuals
A
2019 2018
—E-hAE ZZT-N\F

i < &

Emolument band
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000

=% 7T 21,000,000 7T

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific
terms of reference that have included the duties which are set
out in Code Provision C.3.3 with appropriate modification when
necessary.

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are to
ensure the maintenance of proper relationship with the
Company’s auditor, the establishment of proper review and
control arrangements relating to risk management and internal
control systems, financial reporting and the compliance to
applicable reporting requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EREQWSE(H)
H. AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Fang Lin
Hu (Chairman), Mr. Xue Jing Lun and Ms. Jin Song. During the
year ended 31 March 2019, four meetings were held and
attendance of each director is set out as follows:

ERZEGZRAERBERAMELLE
(EF) BRRELERESRLL - H
E_T-NF=R=+—BLFE"
RRITMASH SEFZHEEXH
JIEAE

Number of attendance

Name of Director EEHR HEAH
Mr. Fang Lin Hu F MR A& 4/4
Mr. Xue Jing Lun BERfmTE 4/4
Ms. Jin Song EX/ e 4/4

The Audit Committee reviewed the half yearly and full year
consolidated financial statements, including the Group’s
adopted accounting principles and practices, risk management
and internal control systems with internal audit function and
financial reporting matters (in conjunction with the external
auditor for the annual results). The Audit Committee endorsed
the accounting treatments adopted by the Company and, to
the best of its ability assured itself that the disclosures of the
financial information in this annual report comply with the
applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, Elite
Partners CPA Limited in respect of audit services for the year
ended 31 March 2019 amounted to HK$700,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.
The Group had adopted the going concern basis in preparing
its financial statements.

A statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 72 to 79 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing on an ongoing basis
and ensuring that sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems are maintained within the Group in
order to safeguard the Group’s assets and the interests of the
Company’s shareholders. These systems are designed under
the framework of a defined management structure with
specified limits of authority and control responsibilities to
manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and help to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee is delegated with authorities to assist the
Board to fulfill its oversight role over the systems by reviewing
and evaluating on a regular basis the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems (the “Systems”). During the year
ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee, after taking into
consideration the size of the Group’s activities and operations,
had adopted a risk-based approach in identifying the scope for
review for its business units. The review was conducted by the
Group’s risk management and internal audit function
independent of the business unit, which covered appraisal of
the Systems by conducting physical counts of assets,
walkthroughs and tests on operating procedures. Audit findings
and recommendations were reported to the Audit Committee
and the senior management. The Audit Committee and the
Board satisfied the result of the review and concluded that the
key areas of the Systems are reasonably and adequately
implemented to their satisfaction.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERELRE @)

K. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL K EEREERAIFELE @

CONTROL (continued)

With respect to handling and dissemination of inside information
(the “Information”), the Group is aware of its obligations under
the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
guiding principle that when the Information comes to the
Group’s attention it should be properly disclosed as soon as
practicable. In this regard, the Group has adopted an inside
information disclosure policy (the “Policy”) in 2013 with the aim
of preventing the disclosure of premature Information and
ensuring shareholders and the public are provided with full,
accurate and timely Information about the activities,
performance and financial condition of the Group. The Policy
covers the procedures as to () maintain the confidentiality of
Information, such as identification of project by using code
name, dissemination on a need-to-know basis and (i) identify,
assess and monitor the dissemination of Information. The Audit
Committee and the Board consider that the procedures are
effective in discharging the Group’s obligations in respect of the
Information.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND DEVELOPMENT

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.
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ERERWSE (W)

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING L EENEFESIRERE@m

AND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the directors were HE-_Z-—NAWF=ZA=+—8LHF

briefed and updated with written materials on the latest ECoEEESEBE MBI NREMT

development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable AR EIENEERTETLEN

legal and regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure B ERTEmER  UEREEE

compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate FhEES AT HELENERIFLES

governance practices. In addition, the Company had organised AEBEARHE I KRR AEE

an in-house training seminar for the directors, which was ERPRRNIFIMT L ZHTEA

conducted by qualified professional covering topics of updates EEREEATET RRAWE LT

on the Listing Rules and Corporate Governance Code with HALRCEEARTHZENER I

training materials provided. Directors are also encouraged to mMABMEREBEINME - KRATINE

attend outside seminars and talks organised by professional BEF2MBEEAHBROIRI

bodies to enrich their knowledge in discharging their duties as a SNeREE LB IITEEETES

director. All directors have participated in continuous B TEMNAS FTEEERFEA2

professional development by attending training courses and/or MBI RERER 2 EBEMIOET S

referring materials on the topics related to corporate governance REHNERETHENEEEE

and regulations:

Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Xie Yi Attending in-house training course and RIS L 2RI RRE R
self-study B1&

Dr. Lou Vi Attending in-house training course and s 1E 4 Z2MASBIEINRR L
self-study B

Mr. Cheng Yong Attending in-house training course and BBELE 2 A EEINFERR K&
self-study B &

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen Attending in-house training course and FHFIBL L 2NN EE L ERE R
outside seminars/talks conducted by BREEALERD
professional bodies and self-study SRR ] B

=R

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah  Attending in-house training course and BB o A 2R SRR &
outside seminars/talks conducted by AR
professional bodies and self-study GNRHT R & R

A=RE

Mr. Lu Zhigiang Attending in-house training course and EEEEE  SINRIHEIRER

self-study SRES
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Z—ZE—hFF#H
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LRER/HLE ()
L. DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING L EENFEZIRZERE @
AND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFEHITES
Mr. Fang Lin Hu Attending in-house training course and TR e A 2 IR &6 5 3 &R iR
self-study SE=RES
Mr. Xue Jing Lun Attending in-house training course and B Rk & 200N B 5 PR R
self-study S E=RES
Ms. Jin Song Attending in-house training course and Mt 250 A 05 ER AR
self-study NE=RES
M. JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES M. BERQTIRE
Mr. Liu Kwok Wah and Ms. Wong Sau Kuen are joint company BPREELEENTFIBEL T AR T
secretaries of the Company and each has taken no less than EAEME - EaREBEE-_Z—hNF
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended —AZ+—HLEFEEZ2ETLRI5
31 March 2019. N EIERE B LTI -

N. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS N. ERRZERE

The Company believes the value of maintaining open AABHAERFBELREAFBBIA

communication with and providing current and relevant FREEEHRELRBEHEEHNE

information to its shareholders, and uses a number of channels B WEBFNAUTZEBBEBIN

to disseminate information to shareholders through: AR EEEER

(1)  the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) (1) B 22 BT 48 U (www.hkexnews.hk)

(2)  the Company’s website (www.extrawell.com.hk) () A B UL (www.extrawel.com.hk)

(3)  corporate information in printed forms such as annual and @ AEIERER A wFEE R
interim reports, circulars and explanatory materials e B RSHAERD

(4)  annual general meeting 4 BRAFRKE

(6) the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and B) ARARZBHBPELRED D
Transfer Office, Tricor Tengis Limited in respect of share REEEEEERELAT  RIER
registration and related matters METREEEE

m EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZZEIERER AT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

LEELIHRE(HE)
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS  N. EERRE 2 & & )
(Continued)
The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful AANRZBREBFRKE BREREME—
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The FAHEEFEFSTRERZAMNFEEG - &
Board members, in particular, Chairman of the Board as well as FeRE BFHREFSIFIUNIE
chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration XEEE FTMHNEZESNEZZES
Committee and Audit Committee (or their delegates) will make MEF(HERR)EERERERBAFAKR
themselves available at the annual general meetings to meet @ HEEEIETLRERENHARD -
shareholders and answer their enquiries.
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS 0. RERHEF
Convening a Special General Meeting BHEBRRFIRE
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda stipulates BREE(—NAN—FERBEYFET4IE
that the directors shall, on the requisition of shareholders WE BEEREEETNPRAQTE
holding not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of HERARKTDZ —HREZRENFH
the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a special Ko A ZBEBRARBRERER AR
general meeting of the Company. The requisition must state the o FKEENPEeZEN WEH
purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant HEE2FAEENEXZARR ATt
requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the MEZ - MEZEFREEZEHE
Company. If the directors do not within twenty-one days from -t —HR REEZALTHBREK
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to o BZEE2EFAIFEMAEHE2EEH
convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them ANBEFREE—FLEZ2F A BIT]
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of BEfTERAE  HEAOLERAZ K
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so e TR L BRI =@ AE R
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months BELT o
from the said date.
Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings RRREAXELRERER
Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda stipulates BRE(—NAN—FRRIEYETIER
that the Company shall, on the requisition in writing by either T ARNBEZREEBERANRA K
any number of shareholders representing not less than one- BRREREZARBEHERAT DR
twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the oz ZERHEEBERKRE KD
right of voting at general meetings of the Company or not less R1I00ZBRENEBEK : @M EEE
than 100 shareholders, (a) give to shareholders entitled to WT—ERERFAEBRE 2 IR EE
receive notice of the next annual general mesting notice of any HimE - LWEMEMAgERZAE -
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be FXBEEBERE LHEIZIRBER
moved at that meeting, and (b) circulate to these shareholders Fb)mZEREERETHBIE1,000F 2
a written statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect EERLE KEMRzAe LRE
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the ZREBEMNEEXNBEREEZEHE -
business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREQWSE(H)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings
(Continued)

Section 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda stipulates
that the written requisition as signed by the requisitionists must
be deposited at the registered office of the Company with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto not less than six weeks before the meeting
in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one week before the meeting in case of any other
requisition.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and suggestions to the
Board by mail to the Company’s principal place of business at
Suites 2206-08, 22/F, Devon House, Taikoo Place, 979 King’s
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

As a member of the global business community, the Group
recognises the importance of sustainable development. This
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report, covering
the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 (the “Period”),
has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules. The Group observes the principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency, and therefore
focuses on reporting the practices and various works in
environmental and social aspects of the Group’s major lines of
business in manufacturing and trading activities as well as the
operations of its Hong Kong headquarters. The selected Key
Performance Indicators are summarised under Section 6 of this
report. With respect to governance, it is separately reported on
pages 26 to 42.

The Board is responsible for the ESG strategy, and is
committed to conducting regular review and evaluation of the
Group’s ESG-related policies and risks so as to ensure that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems (the “Systems”) are in place. Senior
management and departmental staff of relevant operations have
been engaged to identify the relevant ESG issues and to assess
their materiality to the Group’s business as well as to its
stakeholders. As the Group’s manufacturing activities in
Changchun, China involve production process, which will have
a material ESG impact, an “Environmental Protection,
Occupational Health and Safety Management Committee” (the
“Committee”) has been formed to lead the management of
environmental protection as well as to foster a safe and healthy
work environment. The Committee includes staff members who
are professionally qualified with relevant permits recognised by
the Chinese authorities to administrate and monitor the works.
The Committee will report to the Board on material ESG issues
on annual basis. For trading segment and Hong Kong
headquarters, which are generally office’s operations and wiill
have a limited ESG impact, staff members of various
departments are engaged to implement the sustainable policies
and practices adopted by the Group. The Group’s risk
management and internal audit function will conduct regular
review on the effectiveness of the Systems and report the
findings to the Board.
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INTRODUCTION (Continued)

The Group values opinions from stakeholders including
shareholders, staff members, business partners, governments
and the communities, and is committed to building constructive
relationships with stakeholders through different communication
channels including annual general meetings, the Company’s
website, annual reports, industry forums, meetings and
corporate social responsibility activities with a view to achieving
its objectives towards sustainable growth. Stakeholders could
send their comments on this ESG Report to the head office of
the Company by post, fax or email as detailed in the Company’s
website www.extrawell.com.hk.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

2.1 Emissions

It is the Group’s policy for each business segment or
operation to manage the environmental impacts of
emissions caused by its activities and comply with the
applicable environmental laws, prevention and control
regulations in which it operates. During the Period, the
Group did not breach the related emissions laws and
regulations.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued) 2. BEREM@®@
2.1 Emissions (Continued) 2.1 R @)
Emissions arising from production activities of the Group’s AREFBRESENEETHES
manufacturing segment include air pollutants, greenhouse MBI BRERSEY AE
gas (“GHG"), water and solid wastes. The Group’s trading RE([EB=mEE]) - K EEEREE
activities and the Hong Kong headquarters have Z2Y o AEBENEFTENES
insignificant emissions of air pollutants, water and solid BEELSMZERITEY K&
wastes but GHG emissions. In this report, GHG is BREZEMERMEEYN mMAE
categorised into three scopes as below: REBHERIRE - EXRmEF -

BERES /AT =(EAFHE :

()  Scopel refers to direct emissions from sources () #E1 EREEBHHEBK
that are owned or controlled by the I B SRR Y B
operations. Examples include coal and BERR - Bl F B IE R
natural gas combusted for boilers, fuels 1 R 15 B B R R R
used by owned vehicles. MR- 8BABERF
FH PR o
(i)  Scope?2 refers to indirect emissions from (i) #E2 BEREBEMES
consumption of purchased electricity, 7 FEA S H A B
steam or other sources of energy. = RR M R
B e
(i) Scope3 refers to indirect emissions from other (i) #EI EAKBIFEER
activities that are consequences of the BRIESIEREE
operations but are not directly owned or R E AR B R A
controlled. Examples include business P Bl FRER
travel, third-party distribution and BIR{T B =%
logistics. SHEMRE -

2.1.1 GHG emissions arising from the Group’s trading PITAEBE S THRELAR
activities and the Hong Kong headquarters mainly HELEANBERESEWE
relate to indirect emissions of purchased electricity DHEE2FEE NLE
under Scope 2 and third-party distribution and SE=FADHEEMANARE
logistics as well as business travels under Scope 3. BRTOHEEERER -
During the Period, the respective Scope 2 and R A SE2R&H
Scope 3 carbon dioxide (“CO,”) emissions 3IREEEAN &=
amounted to a total of about 20 tonnes and 125 AR BEREED R L
tonnes respectively. 208 f2 1250 o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

2.1 Emissions (Continued)

2.1.2 As to the manufacturing segment with a GMP

factory in Changchun, China (or the “PRC”), the
Committee is responsible for implementing policies
and monitoring the factory’s performance so as to
ensure its strict compliance of the production with
the environmental requirements under the GMP
standards and the relevant environmental laws and
regulations of the PRC such as the Environmental
Protection Law ((GRIZIREL)), the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law ({7K352F7545%)) and
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution Law ({ X5,
S5AB585%)). During the Period, the factory
handled its major emissions in the following manner:

(@) Waste gas emission management

The major source of waste gas emission
comes from coal and natural gas combusted
for boilers. Air pollutants mainly include sulfur
oxide (“SOx”), nitrogen oxide (“NOx”), and
particle material (“PM”). In the Period, SOx,
NOx, and PM emissions amounted to about
3,947 kgs, 5,752 kgs and 274 kgs
respectively. Though in compliance with the
environmental emission standards, in pursuit
of improvement, the factory had replaced
coal-fired boilers with natural gas boilers at
the end of 2018. And the factory has installed
a desulfurisation tower to ensure levels of
emission are in compliance with the
standards. The tower is functioning well and
levels of emission are significantly lower than
the lower limit of the national emission
requirements.

CQO, emissions arising from coal-fired boilers,
natural gas boilers, fuels for daily operations
of vehicles (Scope 1), purchased electricity
(Scope 2) and business travels (Scope 3)
amounted to about 3,261 tonnes, 1,659
tonnes and 8 tonnes respectively.

2. BEREH@®W

2.1 HERh @)

2122 EKRHE—HBGMPT
WmHRENE ZECAE
EHEBEREREE IR
METER WBEREA
BB AS B STGMP 2 R A &
PEEBRELIEZLRER
(INCGRIBREER) - OKFHR
Broa i) MR &5 2008
ENBETHRRERE - RA
HEW Z IR TR
NEEHEESHERY :

(a8 BERHHEE
BERBERR R E B RR
B iR E R e B R &
KRR - =R 52 M=E
ZaEmatmdn
a1twh) - AEy
TREldm])) REN
(TR ]) » A B RS
R BmElty  "Ek
Y R BN YR BE R 2
o Bl #) 53,947 F 72 -
5,752 F 7o M 274F 5% o
BEIRMECHFAERER
PERZ 2 - B SKIEH
WE IRER-ZT—
NEFEARAZDB
EREMRERE - T
B % 8BRS B
BRIEPKERFEEZ
Ao BT R YT BE
BOK F R ERBE R
RESRE TR °

MR IE - RARM
B REBREFERA
R E (& E) - Frig
EN(FHE)EEH
RIT(BES)ELEN—
S BENED R
£3,261 M ~ 1,659 K
8 °
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

2.1 Emissions (Continued)

2.1.2 (Continued)

(®)

(c)

Wastewater management

The factory has built its own waste water
treatment facilities with daily capacity of 400
tonnes to treat the wastewater from its
production processes before discharge, and
about 40,000 tonnes of effluents were treated
and discharged in the Period. To monitor and
control the discharge, the factory has worked
jointly with local environmental monitoring
stations, and an on-line monitoring system
has been installed at the end of 2018 to test
and collect data on the quality of effluent. In
addition, the factory has commissioned a
third-party inspection unit to conduct regular
surveillance on effluent discharge standards in
order to ensure timely detection of its
abnormality and implementation of corrective
measures when in exceedances.

Solid waste management

The storages and disposals of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled in
accordance with the requirements of relevant
rules and regulations. During the Period,
about 97 kgs hazardous wastes generated
from the production process were disposed
of with waste management services provided
by contractors as designated by Jilin Province
Environmental Protection Office. The non-
hazardous wastes of about 155 tonnes were
disposed of through wastes collection
services provided by the local authorities.

2. BEREHE®W

2.1 BERLu®E)
21.2 (&)

(b) BEKEE

(c)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RBE dwEREGHS ()

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

2.2 Use of Resources

It is the Group’s policy to encourage all staff to be
environmentally friendly at work to reduce the
consumption of paper, water and electricity and effective
use of the resources. Measures being implemented
include double-sided printing and copying, disseminating
information in digital format, waste paper recycling,
turning off power consuming devices when not in use.

2.2.1 The major resources used by the Group’s trading

activities and Hong Kong headquarters are
electricity, and paper (including own offices use and
bulk printing of reports and circulars distributed to
the Company’s shareholders through printing firms).
In the Period, the electricity consumption was in
aggregate of about 25,000 KWhs (2018: 32,000
kWhs), and paper used was kept at a similar level
as last year, in aggregate of about 1.6 tonnes (2018:
1.6 tonnes). With respect to the paper usage, about
1.4 tonnes (2018: 1.4 tonnes) were used for the
Group’s documents copying and annual and interim
reports using FSC certified paper.

The Group has been making its best efforts to
reduce paper usage by distributing office files in
digital format, reusing single-sided paper, and
collecting double-sided printed paper for recycler’s
handling. The Group also adopts the practice of
green procurement that eco-friendly paper is
selected for office use and bulk printing of reports.

2.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued) 2. REEAm®@

22 ERFEA @
C22AREEMAEFTH EEM

2.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

2.2.2 The Group’s manufacturing activities consume

mainly water, electricity, coal, natural gas, fuel for
vehicles and packing material used for finished
products. Paper consumption in its daily operations
amounted to about 25 tonnes relates to paper used
during the processes of procurement, invoicing,
production, quality assurance, marketing and
administration, of which the consumption in various
departments is being monitored by the
management, where management aims to reduce
paper consumption within internal departments by
better utilisation of the electronic network and
digitalisation of files and would select eco-friendly
paper products as far as practicable in the paper
procurement process.

KB B XA
R TR R B qR AT
HMBEEDH - HABEBEDN
AR oR OB FE (K925 3 I 5%
B RARZE L£E EE
S R EEBET
EANEER BREEEE
BB RBEREER
N EBE A A ET
W REBEXHETRX
AR A ER B P Y A OROH
o WHEMRRBEETR
AREEERAMARS -

The major resources consumed in the Period are AHEEREOEBER
set out as below: HymT
Amount Intensity*
Type of resources consumed FrERERER HE ®Er
1. Water (tonne) 7K (18) 55,000 0.73
2. Electricity (KWh) BH(TEE) 2,100,000 27.7
3. Coal (tonne) B ox (8) 1,000 0.013
4. Natural gas (m?) KAR LK) 150,000 1.98
5. Fuel for vehicles (liter) FEERR(FH) 17,000 0.22
6. Packing material (tonne) By e () 760 0.01

CEBTETRAREENHEE -

* Amount generated per HK$'000 of revenue.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

2.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

2.2.2 (Continued)

It is the Group’s policy to ensure effective and
efficient use of resources in the production process
with the aim of minimising wastes and reducing
consumption of the resources.

As water is a key element of the products and
production process, water supplies are provided by
the municipally owned water supply company,
which will ensure relatively stable and adequate
water supplies. During the Period, there was no
reported difficulties or issues arising from water
supplies. Management has recognised the
importance of water conservation, and therefore
has closely monitored the operation with the aim of
identifying means and ways in saving and reusing
water; including setting clear instructions for better
water used (time, volume and frequency) in the
production process, more frequent inspection to
reduce leakage in water supplies, and enhance
employees’ consciousness of water conservation in
operation process training.

As to other resources, measures being implemented
include avoiding procurement of high-energy
consumption materials, regular monitoring
performance of the production equipment,
upgrading and phasing out non eco-friendly
machines to raise the utilisation of energy and
resources. During the Period, 7 sets of water pumps
that comply with new energy conservation
standards were installed to replace 14 sets of
pumps with high power consumption. Packing
materials primarily comprise paper, glasses and
plastics used for the Group’s finished products. As
a good practice, the Group endeavors to select
eco-friendly materials in the procurement process,
and minimise wastes by managing purchase
quantities.

2.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

2.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is dedicated to reducing the adverse effect of
its activities that could result in environmental damages,
controlling the level of consumption of natural resources
and promoting environmental awareness among its
employees at workplaces. In production, the Group has
regularly inspected and monitored the production process
to ensure strict compliance with relevant laws and
regulations on emissions. In office, management has
persistently reminded colleagues to protect the
environment by recycling papers and plastic, turning off
unused electricity devices. Management has also kept
colleagues abreast of various environmental issues and
encouraged colleagues to participate in activities like tree
planting.

3. SOCIAL ASPECTS

3.1 Employment

The Group employs about 171 employees on a
permanent basis, and the manufacturing segment

2.

3.

BRIE itERERHES ()

REEME @)

23 RERBARER

REBHE AR EENEHIRE
WENEHN AN E £ 8

REBRHEREKERRARER
I{’E%Fﬁﬁﬁf&{%ﬁ* cFLAEEM

CAEBETHRERELEE
EmiE  BRERETHEBEER
HERRER BPRAEMS -
EEETEIRER F5 B E WK
RRBR - BRARERHEREIN
REREBE - BERENTMESEN
EERENETEBRE2HE
B EEE) -

HtEEHE
3.1 EE
AEFERENITIEREES -

MeEESENREBEASEET

accounts for nearly 90% of the Group’s workforce. The EBIFEEITO0% o ANEB B T 488
statistics of the Group’s workforce and employee turnover REESHEHNES REAXRGHE
rate of the manufacturing segment are set out as below: Fan T
Total workforce by gender and age group (of the f;z MR FrEE T 2ET
Group) HE(KEE)
Age
FiR
Below 30 Between 30-50 Over 50 Total
Gender % 51 30m U 30Z505% 508 A £ e
Male = 3 34 25 62
Female g 8 97 4 109
Total 5 11 131 29 171
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3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

3.1 Employment (Continued)

Employee turnover rate (%) by gender and age
group (Manufacturing segment only*)

3. HEEE®@W

3.1 EfE @)

BHEIRFREHS ZEEH
24 (%) (EREH2E7)

Age

FiR
Below 30 Between 30-50 Over 50 Total
Gender 4 5l 30E AT 30 Z505% 505% A £ wat
Male S 67% 10% 56% 29%
Female g 38% 14% 50% 17%
Total st 45% 13% 55% 21%

* Information relating to the manufacturing segment is disclosed as * EREEENERMELERE -

the employee turnover rate of the trading segment and Hong Kong
headquarters is insignificant.

People are valuable asset to the Group’s success and
sustainable development. It is the Group’s policy to
attract and retain high caliber people for its business
operations. The Group recruits people on the basis of job
requirements without discrimination on grounds of age,
gender, ethnic, politics or religion, trains and grows their
capabilities, rewards and makes promotion based on their
contributions. The Group remunerates its employees
based on industry practices. The Group arranges working
hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare including
medicals and retirement protection in accordance with
prevailing labour laws of its operating units in which they
operate. The Group is committed to ensuring that all
applicable legal requirements are observed in dealing with
dismissal of any employee who violates the Group’s
regulations or persistently performs below job
requirements.

During the Period, the Group did not breach any
employment laws and regulations in the PRC, Hong Kong
and Malaysia.

ARESDERBERINER
i G

BE RSB A5 3% R
MBESEE RAKEZEBL
EREIRBRBEFATTZEAR
KB 2K - ANEE AL Z K
REEREREE  THFK &
BBk BORKRAFEMM
KREE  AEEFIRFES
BEMMEREN AREBEWRFZ
BRFLRBEZHER - AR
@EIZ%MEEFG¥FHE
CARBERRELEMELE
ﬁumﬁﬁ F DA R TP TR
HRERE - MEREN (B
%%&ﬂ%%@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
FEREREEIMERAEERIIH
E%%*%ﬁélﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BT —YERERBE

RAHEA - AL B HEERT
BB LRFRATHEMIER
ERROER

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZZEIERER AT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE -HERELESE(E)

3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued) 3. HEEHE®@)

3.2 Health and Safety 32 EEHEZE

The Group is committed to providing and maintaining a
safe and healthy working environment for all its
employees.

For the Group’s office operations, management strives to
maintain smoke-free, healthy and safe working
environment. All employees are encouraged to participate
regularly emergency drills held by the office building
management.

For the Group’s factory in China, management has
persistently upheld the principle of safe production and
observed the requirements of the “Law of the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases” (BRI IAED ).
There is no allowance of any personal consideration but
strict compliance of the requirements under the GMP
standards and the relevant laws and regulations. We have
regularly conducted safety examinations for production
equipment, conducted drills and provided training to
employees in order to increase their awareness and
involvement in accident prevention.

During the Period, the Group did not breach any laws and
regulations in relation to occupational health and safety
and there were no work-related fatalities in the Group’s
operations but 12 work injury cases in the manufacturing
segment resulting in 311 lost days. Those injury cases
mainly related to fingers and hands and rest days were
recommended together medical treatments. Measures
have been taken to strengthen the production safety with
the aim of minimising risk of injury through safety publicity
and education in order to enhance consciousness of all
employees.
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3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Development and Training

The Group organises and provides on-the-job training to
develop its employees’ potential in order to support the
Group’s sustainable development. Employees are
encouraged to equip themselves with relevant academic
and professional qualifications by attending external
training programs for future career development.

As to the Group’s manufacturing segment in China,
regular training programs have been provided in the areas
of production process operations, quality and safety
management, applicable legal and regulatory
requirements, important environmental factors and risk
controls to relevant personnel including production
technicians, safety management personnel and operating
personnel.

The Group also provides training subsidies to support its
employees to receive external professional training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Labour Standards

All employees of the Group are employed in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations on employment
including, inter alias, working hours, rest periods and staff
benefits. The Group prohibits the use of child labour and
forced labour at all its operation units. During the
recruitment process, the Group requires all applicants to
provide true and accurate personal information including
their proofs of identity for checking purpose, particularly
for verifying the photo on the documents and reviewing
the age. The Group will take immediate action to
terminate the employment of anyone who provides false
information or in breach of the Group’s regulations.

During the Period, the Group has complied with
employment-related laws and regulations and found no
violations of laws and regulations regarding child labour
and forced labour.
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4. OPERATING PRACTICES 4, ZEED

4.1 Supply Chain Management 41 HEEEE

The Group relies on a wide range of vendors to supply
goods; from raw materials to finished goods for the
Group’s manufacturing and trading activities. In order to
fulfill the Group’s mission to provide quality products, it is
imperative for its pursuit of quality goods from the
vendors.

The Group’s GMP plants in China have established a
quality management system to regulate the production
and quality management of drugs. Since all procurement
is conducted locally, the Group has clearly notified its
vendors to comply with relevant quality standards and
provide necessary permits if so required by the relevant
laws and regulations for the goods supplied. Specific
procedures have been implemented in quality control and
inventory management in order to ensure the Group’s
products are consistently manufactured in accordance
with the registration requirements. The aim of the
management system is to minimise the risks of
contamination, detect, monitor and rectify errors in
production process.

As to the Group’s trading segment for China market, all
drugs are sourced from GMP manufacturers in Europe
and Latin America, and the Group has worked closely
with and provided supports to its customers for quality
control in compliance with the stringent testing conducted
by the PRC drug authorities. During the Period, all
imported drugs had complied with the relevant import
requirements of the PRC laws and regulations before their
sales to market.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RBE dwEREGHS ()

4. OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

4.2 Product Responsibility

The Group places great emphasis on maintaining and
improving the quality of its products. The Group has
implemented a comprehensive quality control and
inspection procedures to ensure product quality and
safety from procurement of raw materials, packaging
materials and finished products. All products
manufactured, purchased and sold by the Group to its
customers in China have met the GMP production
standards and complied with the registration requirements
with the National Medical Products Administration, except
for the occasion where the Group’s skin treatment
products imported from Spain have been temporarily
suspended for sale in China since January 2019. The
suspension is due to certain issues on manufacturing
practices identified in an overseas on-site inspection by
the Chinese regulatory authorities. In the meantime, the
manufacturer is preparing supplemental information for
submission to the authorities in order to rectify the issues.
The Group has been working closely with its business
partners with a view to resolving all those issues in the
long term so as to bring the products back to the market
as soon as possible.

On distribution side, all products distributed by the Group
have clear instructions and specifications as to its
composition, quality and safety use for end-user
protection purpose, which are in compliance with the
laws and requirements, such as the Advertisement Law
and the Drug Administration Law in China.

The Group has also worked closely with customers to
deal with products and services complaints in order to
ensure product quality and competitiveness and has put
top priority to ensure privacy of customer’s information.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

4. OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

4.3 Anti-corruption

The Company understands the importance of good
business ethics, which along with good corporate
governance are essential foundation to success. The
Company has established ethics code to promote
integrity and accountability, which requires all group
companies and employees to strictly comply with the
local laws and regulations. The code contains, inter alia,
provisions for bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering
and whistleblowing procedures.

During the Period, the Group did not breach any laws and
regulations relating to anti-corruptions or receive any
reports in relation thereof in China, Malaysia, and Hong
Kong.

5. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a socially responsible corporation, the Company is
committed to leverage its resources to facilitate the community
development and strongly encourages all staff members to
participate in volunteering and charitable activities, such as “Dress
Casual Day” and “Blood Donation”. In the Books for Love @10
charity campaign, second-hand books were donated by staff
for charity sale. Staff members also support the Lai See Packet
Recycle and Reuse Programme by dropping off the unused lai
see packets at the designated collection points.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
B -itEREQES ()

6. ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE 6. REFEBEIESE(BAREE

INDICATORS (“KPIs”) TABLE WIEE]D XK

The following table summarises the Group’s significant KPIs TERBMABREANFTHAEE T ERH

information as set out in this report: BEBIEEE R

2019 2018

KPIs BRENER —E-hE —ZE-NF
Environment RIB
Air pollutants (Kg) EREERY(TR)
SOx wmaty 3,947 3,326
NOx =Rl a7 5,752 535
PM EER Ry 274 75
Greenhouse gas (Tonne CO2) BERSE (W —F )
Total emission: HHEME 5,073 4,431
Direct emission (Scope 1) BEEER(EE) 3,261 3,105
Indirect emission (Scope 2) MR (EE2) 1,679 1,211
Indirect emission (Scope 3) M B (8 E13) 133 115
Intensity per employee HIEERE 30 25
Wastes (Tonne) EEZE Y (WF)
Total hazardous waste produced FFTEEEEEEDRE 40,000 22,479
Intensity (Hazardous waste) per employee Y REERE (EEEZEY) 234 126
Total non-hazardous waste produced FIELEEEEEYRE 155 188
Intensity (Non-hazardous waste) per employee Y ERERE(EBEEZRZY) 1 1
Energy consumption RERERE
Total energy consumption: REREERE
Fuel consumed for vehicles (Liter) REREDHE R () 17,000 20,000
Intensity (Fuel) per employee FRrEE®RE (RED 99 112
Electricity (MWh) B OKERE) 2,125 1,532"
Intensity (Electricity) per employee “EERE(EN) 12 9
Coal (Tonne) B (8) 1,000 1,069
Intensity (Coal) per employee HlEERE (Hix) 6 6
Natural gas (thousand m?) RKAR (FILFK) 150 —
Intensity (Natural gas) per employee ZEEBRE (KAR) 1 —
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
BRIE itERERHES ()

6. ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE 6. BEREHERENIEE(BRE
INDICATORS (“KPIs”) TABLE (Continued) MEZE]D TR@m

2019 2018
KPIs ARENIERE —E-hAE —ZT—)N\F
Social e
Total workforce (persons) — Group ITEET(AB)EAY— 171 178

rE
By gender: RERE D :
Male s 62 65
Female Z 109 113
By age group: REREE D :
<30 30 AT 11 43
30-50 302 5075% 131 113
>50 505% A 29 22
By employment type: RERERES
Permanent 2B 171 178
Part-time i = -
Employee turnover rate (%) — BB R KE(%)—
Manufacturing HESE
By gender: BREBE D :
Male g 29% 1%
Female g 17% 8%
By age group: RERES D
<30 0B AR 45% -
30-50 30E508% 13% 10%
>50 5058 A £ 55% 23%
By employment type: RERBERE S :
Permanent ey 100% 100%
Part-time i = -
Health and safety RBREHEZZ
Number of work-related fatalities TEBELT AR = -
Lost days due to work injury (days) TEBLNIEBEEH(R) 311 132
*  Amended and expressed in MWh for comparison purpose REET R AR LR R LAVELLER
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its principal subsidiaries and an associate are set out in
notes 39 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The business review of the Group and the discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 7 and pages 8 to 20 of this
annual report respectively.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
and information about laws and regulations affecting the businesses
of the Group and their compliance are included in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 43 to 59 of this annual
report. Furthermore, financial risk management and capital
management of the Group are set out in notes 41 and 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The above discussions and information form part of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 80 to 81.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend in respect
of the year after taking into account factors including the Group’s
financial performance, operating and capital requirements and market
conditions. Currently, no formal dividend policy is adopted by the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 208.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENT

No equity-linked agreement which may result in the Company issuing
shares was entered into during the year.

Details of the convertible bonds of the Company with principal
amount of HK$577,170,000 outstanding are disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EFEREGR)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 August 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”), as the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 8 August 2002 expired
on 14 August 2012. The Scheme became effective on 29 August
2012 after obtaining approval from the Listing Committee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date. Information about the Scheme is set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the reserves of the Company available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to
HK$147,430,000 which was computed in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account with a balance of HK$191,738,000 as at 31 March 2019
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

During the year, the Group had not experienced any significant
problems with its employees or disruption to its operations due to
labour disputes nor had it experienced any difficulties in the
recruitment. The directors consider that the Group has maintained
good working relationship with its employees.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationships with its customers and suppliers to the overall
development of its business. During the year, there were no disputes
between the Group and its customers and/or suppliers which would
have caused significant adverse impact to the Group’s business.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 28% of
the Group’s revenue, and revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
customer accounted for approximately 15% of the Group’s revenue.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019, purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 71% of
the Group’s purchases and purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 21% of the Group’s
purchases.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interests in the Group’s five
largest customers and the suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive directors:

Xie Yi

Lou Yi

Cheng Yong
Wong Sau Kuen
Liu Kwok Wah
Lu Zhigiang

Dr. Xie Yi, Dr. Lou Yi, Ms. Wong Sau Kuen and Mr. Liu Kwok Wah are
also directors in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Independent non-executive directors:

Fang Lin Hu
Xue Jing Lun
Jin Song

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from Messrs. Fang Lin
Hu, Xue Jing Lun and Jin Song and still considers them to be
independent.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

EFERE (W)

FEEZFRMHER @)

HE_Z-NAF=_A=1t—HLEFE K
SERIAEEREAEZEBRERAEASEEER
BREO% MAKESAHEREG 2K
BREASERBEN21% °

BER RECETBBEARTARRGE
EEMAEEARARAD HEITHRAS%NU £
ZBIRERAEBEIARPRHERTHEA
Effa

EE

REERBEAREBACEZAAAE
EMT

HITES:

Gk

17

BH

IAH

g

WEREL BIZBL IFBRLRBEEE
EENRRARBETHEBRARZES -

BMUFHATES:
VRV

R

G/

ARREHEITHERE - BRREER
EMEETREBRIMESZ LHART LS
MEAD EIBGRBE 2B L MEE L 2 F
BHER URREFNRABIL -

—E-hEER



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EFEHREHR)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 111, other than the
Chairman, the directors of the Company, including the independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs”), are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company, and in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws, Dr. Lou Yi and Mr. Fang Lin Hu will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory obligation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group, and pursuant to the
recommendation made by the remuneration committee.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, no
director had material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no directors or their close associates are considered
to have an interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the directors in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company

EFERE (W)

EHEFREE

RERARB ZABMAY KRRABEEFY
HibSRAEEEABITEBRE R EEM
ERTEMARRIKNELXBEBZIAE
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EHNEEHRPIFEB2GAFE ZERLMZ
B LAR SIRMBLEMBEITAEFTELT

BARRXG2EESTA(RETADESNSG
ARG KRB Rz EmRRBIT
REQAREBRZER
Number of
ordinary shares Approximate
of HK$0.01 percentage of

Name of director Notes Capacity and nature of interest each held interests held
SR ST
HE0.01B T2 gz s
EEpng M SOREZRUEER TERHE BHOBE DT
Xie Yi (@) Through controlled corporations 80,000,000 3.35%
o 3R FRIEEIRD
Cheng Yong Directly beneficially owned 830,000 0.03%
(] BEEERER
(b)  Through a controlled corporation 1,060,000 0.05%
BEBBRZESIRA A
Held by spouse 5,090,000 0.21%
micBEA
6,980,000 0.29%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EFERE (W)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) The entire issued share capital of JNJ Investments Ltd is owned by Biowindow
Gene Development (Hong Kong) Limited (“HK Biowindow”), and the entire issued
share capital of HK Biowindow is owned by United Gene Group Ltd (a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands). The issued share capital of United Gene
Group Ltd is owned as to 33% by Ease Gold Investments Limited, which is wholly
owned by Dr. Xie Yi.

(b) The shares are held by Merchandise Holdings Limited (a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands) which is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Yong.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them, or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors, their respective spouses or
minor children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERX
isd

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EFEREG)

At 31 March 2019, the following interests and short positions of 5% WZ—ZZE—HAE=H=+—H  EBEXQT
or more of the shares and underlying shares of the Company were X MBE A MBI EEHIE336EE T REFEZE
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant 2 FTE24% - T2 HEA XA TR M K IEH

to Section 336 of the SFO.

BRINB6% A LR SRBEZALIAT

Number of Long (L) or Approximate

Capacity and ordinary shares Short (S) percentage of

Name of substantial shareholder nature of interest held/entitled position interest held

i EREE HALR s

FERRES SO RERME EBEREA RKRE(S) ZHMABE DL

Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Directly beneficially 1,357,510,000 L 56.80%
Limited (“Innovative Pharm”) owned (Note)

(formerly known as United Gene

High-Tech Group Limited)
EMBEEREMRRBRAF BEEERHAE

(TeameEse]) (pism s £ A (Bt %)

MEEEFR AR

Note: Innovative Pharm is a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange [ : sBfn B2 & 5 — R B XM ER E T2 A7 -

and its interest in 1,357,510,000 shares of the Company represents (i) & » AR &1,357,510,000 8% A% 19 2 # %= 15
457,510,000 shares or 19.14% of the Company’s shares in issue and (i) & A (457,510,000 % 5 19.14% 2 A& A & B %
900,000,000 conversion shares to be allotted and issued to Innovative Pharm TEROEMBEARARAR-_ZE—=ZF+ A+
upon exercise in full by Innovative Pharm of the conversion rights at conversion NABETZ0EZ B BREES(HMAESE
price of HK$0.6413 per share under the Company’s 20-year zero coupon 2 R4 % A577,170,0007 7T) + K48 fn B8 L%
convertible bonds issued on 16 July 2013 with principal amount of B EETRIKM0.641378 T BB IT(F AR #E
HK$577,170,000 outstanding. At 31 March 2019, there was a total of % - % ) 4B fin B8 BE D 3% % 3% 7T 2 900,000,000
2,390,000,000 shares issued by the Company, and assuming the exercise in full fEmpEEmn N E—hE=A=+—80"

of the conversion rights attaching to the Company’s convertible bonds, Innovative KA E S ETIRGD A H A2,390,000,0000% °

Pharm will hold approximately 41.26% of the enlarged share capital of the BEEHTERNRAAT Z K ES 2
Company. Pt EMBESHBERADAEERNRELY

41.26% °

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the register as [ EXFIHBEEIN R-_E—-NAF=A=
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO T —H » AR AR IEF 7 & B E 5 I 5 336
recorded no other interests or short positions in the shares or 1§77 B 2 & & fflt I % 50 8% 70 78 2 7] iz 17 3k

underlying shares of the Company.

RERO P 2 EmEDAR -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EFEREGR)

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The following connected and related party transaction was recorded
during the year and up to the date of this report:

Provision of shareholders’ loan to Smart Ascent
Limited (“Smart Ascent”), an associate of the Company

On 27 July 2018, the Company and Innovative Pharmaceutical
Biotech Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the “Innovative Pharm
Group”) through their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries namely
Extrawell (BVI) Limited and Clear Rich International Limited holding
49% and 51% shareholdings in Smart Ascent, as lenders and Smart
Ascent as borrower, entered into a shareholders’ loan agreement (the
“Loan Agreement”) for a loan to Smart Ascent amounting to
HK$30,000,000 in total (the “Loan”), to be contributed as to 49% i.e.
HK$14,700,000 by the Group and as to 51% i.e. HK$15,300,000 by
Innovative Pharm Group, for the purpose of financing the working
capital requirements of Smart Ascent and its subsidiaries for the oral
insulin project. The Loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per
annum and has a repayment term fixed at 60 months after each
drawdown of the Loan.

Innovative Pharm is a substantial shareholder of the Company that
the entering into of the Loan Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company. As the Loan Agreement was entered
into on normal commercial terms and the provision of the Loan is in
proportion to the equity interest held by the Group and Innovative
Pharm Group in Smart Ascent, this connected transaction is fully
exempted from the reporting, announcement and shareholders’
approval requirements in accordance with rule 14A.89 of the Listing
Rules. In addition, the applicable percentage ratios in respect of this
connected transaction are less than 5%, it does not constitute a
notifiable transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

On 20 September 2018, Smart Ascent made a drawdown requisition
amounting to HK$10,000,000 of the Loan and accordingly, the Group
and Innovative Pharm Group made contribution in the sum of
HK$4,900,000 and HK$5,100,000 respectively to Smart Ascent.

FAERBEBLIXS

THRAFEREEARE BHMERTZ
MERBEBIRS

&
MARBBERAELEBRAA
(MEE D) RERRER

RZE—NFLtAZ++H KR aLk%E
MmBEREYMREBR AR GEREMNBRQ
GBI EMBEER]) ERESA2ER
A W B 2 &) (BlExtrawell (BVI) Limited & Clear
Rich International Limited * 9 B A #E 4 5 &
49% K 51% = - IEAE R TT) B &£ (1
BEFHITL—HBREERBR (ERDH
&) M AR 48 %8 530,000,000 T 2
ER(ZER]D  BAEEIRMHI09%KE
(BM14,700,0007%8 7T) & M S8 fn B8 S 5 B 4R 4
51% 3% 18 (B115,300,00058 7T ) * A A4 K&
HWBLARBORBEEZBEEZEEE S
ERREERME -ZEXRAEERE . FHX
B5% MBRERIREZERE60EANE
i

HREMBLEARARNAEERE  HFTE
VZERBEERARRZEERS - K
RERBEE - REAEBRAET L M&ZE
RIEAEBREMBEEERELEMGSE
ZHEDLOIIRE LB EXSEZER
GBS ETARBE14A89FEE FEHE - QA
ERBEREZIRE - BI HR BB
BRPBETZERBAD L ERENE% T
B EMRBE4ZEBE T ZATRAHGRS -

R-oE—NEAA+TH - EEERIER
#Z B 3 A10,000,000/8 7T 2 3 E - A It
REEREMEBEEED R M EERE
4,900,0007% 7T & 5,100,0007% 7T °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Provision of shareholders’ loan to Smart Ascent
Limited (“Smart Ascent”), an associate of the Company
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the utilised and unutilised balances of the Loan
Agreement were HK$10,000,000 and HK$20,000,000 respectively.
Further details are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the material related party transactions entered into by the
Group which do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules for the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in “Connected and Related Party Transactions”
above, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event occurred after 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EFERE (W)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for
dealings in securities of the Company by the directors. Based on
specific enquiry of the directors, the directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee (the “Committee”),
with written terms of reference, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision
over the financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The Committee comprises three
INEDs. The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 have been reviewed by the Committee. The
Committee is of the opinion that such consolidated financial
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, and
Stock Exchange’s and legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

EEZREXRERETA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EFEREG)

AUDITOR Z EEm

Elite Partners CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the EHZE-_ZT—h&E=A=+—HBLL&EF #
Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 in succession to BDO Tz @t EHM AR AT EZE &K
Limited who resigned as auditor with effect from 17 April 2019. BDO A FIZEE  WEFTR _Z— N E M A +
Limited and East Asia Sentinel Limited were the auditor of the + HABEF 7 ZEMEBLEEZS50ME
Company for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, respectively. BB AT - BB ZEZ @M EB
FTERAGRETEHMEEMBRAQAF
DRAERARREHEE-_T-N\FE_T—+
FZA=ZT—BLEFEZZEEAD -

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year were AEEFE 7S BHRROEMTEES:
audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited, who will retire and, being BIEHEAER A RIER  ZITHEFE - WE
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditor of the ABKREFEBERNEEREREANS LET

Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. EE AN R) 2 A% BAT -

Dr. Xie Yi FE

Chairman HBEL

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019 BAE ZE-NFARAZTNH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB ES

elite
< partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To The Shareholders of
Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Extrawell
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 207,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Prior year’s audit scope limitation affecting opening
balances and comparative figures

The auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 contained a disclaimer of
opinion on the limitation on the audit scope in relation to the interest
in an associate. Details of which had been set out in the auditor’s
report dated 29 June 2018.

As the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 formed the basis for the comparative figures
presented in the current year’'s consolidated financial statements, any
adjustments found to be necessary in respect of the carrying amount
of the interest in an associate would have a significant effect on the
comparative figures and the opening balances and the related
disclosures thereof for the year ended 31 March 2019.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

$5 3L #% By B 3R 5 (48)

RERRZEE

FEMONERRLEBHF 2L —F
FE 2 A% 50 B R &

# BEEEEBEE_T-N\F=A=+—H
LTHEEZGAVBRR 2ZBMBEF
BN —EBEAR 2R BEREE
REBELIXRTERL ARFBHARBHAS
TE-NFRAZTNABZZBEN®RE -

MR EEBEBEE-_ZET-NE=A=+—
ALEFEZHRAVBERRBRNAFELRAE
R RMEVNBEARETZER R —
MBE Rz EZEmMAERR 2 TAAE
HErAESHPANESGERERATE LY
BE-_ZT-NEF=A=t+—"HILEEZ %
ERHAFEEREEELEEATE -

EFZCREBETAEGIAMAERHZEER
AEAN(EERFENDETEZ - BFF
ZEEAT 2 EEEEARE[ZHBA R EF
AV BRRAREZEE] P E—
S RIFEBFLSAMAERMIEE
erftmERTR (TR EFBLR &
SH BEREBETAETHEMERAEE-F
SEHEMERZERERERAR BEE
WRESFZERERLRMER-

FRAREXER

AREZFESREESZIEXRHE R
REBE_T-NAF=ZA=1t—HLFE
RAVBBRRZBERRREENETE %
EFERREBSEREREAVBRERNL
HEAESFZEARETRE AEFLE
HZEZRREHREFER -

—E-hEER



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B BE R & ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of an associate

Key audit matters

HREEXRSR

B R EZEE @
1. R—REBE QR 2 REFGE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENARBETEEZER

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has interest in an
associate of approximately HK$330,062,000
representing 49% equity interests in Smart Ascent
Limited (see note 21 of the consolidated financial
statements).

RZZE-NAF=A=+—H ' EEER—HEH
&N Al 2 HE % %) /330,062, OOO/%TE DR Ry
E)ﬁiﬁ" N 2 A0%HE 2 (51 A B IS R & W 3
21) °

For the purpose of impairment assessment, the
Group appointed an independent external valuer to
assess the recoverable amount of the interest in an
associate.

HABRENS  EXEEEZEBIINBMEE
BORT (A — B E R Al m 2 AT I B € %8 -

We had identified the impairment assessment of
interest in an associate as a key audit matter
because significant management judgement was
required to determine the recoverable amount for
the interest in an associate.

EECHNR —HEBERRER 2 RMENGER
FARELEE  RRAA/ERERAELS XA
NEER—HBEAaEmn 2 AT lkE -

Our major audit procedures to address this matter
included the following:

EERERFEZIZEREFBRENOT

—  We obtained financial information of the associate
and assessed whether the accounting policy of
the associate was consistent with the Group, if
different, adjustments were provided to uniform
With the Group s accounting policy;

— Eié Bt NE 2 AR 0T ik B
M" BB RERE SEBZEIHHR
% @I iﬁﬁ%?& BlIfEHFAEENE HHE
B gt R ER

—  We discussed with management whether any
impairment indicator exists and basis for the
impairment recognised;

- EECHEHTEER Em%éi?&iﬂiiiﬁiiﬁiﬁi%
Ko W SRR A B B

—  We discussed with management and relevant
professionals about the In-process R&D of oral
insulin product;

- ERHEREBERMEBEEEATHRERD
H&Hﬁ%%ﬁuuﬁﬂﬂiﬂ 2 HE

— We obtained and assessed the fair value
calculations methodology provided by the
management including but not limited to the
reasonableness of key assumptions applied (e.g.
operating margins, terminal growth rates and
discount rates), the accuracy and reliance of the
input data used; and

- ZEERWFEEREEMRE AT ER
ﬁﬁ/i BIEE AR PTRERE /KRR (P
BEGAM KABMRERRBEXR) A -
FiERE AR ERERAEN: &

—  We evaluated the competency of the independent
external valuer taking account its experience and
qualifications.

— EEEHEBUINEEEMZEN  LEE
HEBMER-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

$5 3L #% By B 3R 5 (48)

FAREEFEXEE@m

Impairment assessment of property, plant and 2. M¥ BERZEZBMEFTM

equipment

Key audit matters

MRERSER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENARBETEEZER

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$140,740,000.
RZE-—NF=A=+—H ESEBEW#-
ik 5 % % ## #9140,740,0007% 7T °

For the impairment assessment, the Group
appointed an independent external valuer to assess
the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment.

HALRENS  EXEEELZEBELINBEE
BRI BERBREHEZAIKEEE-

We had identified the impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment as key audit matter
due to the significant judgement involved by the
management in impairment assessment.
EECHINDE BERXBZRETHREA
REZEFE REREEBEAMBMENGEL
BARHE -

Our major audit procedures to address this matter
included the following:

EERERFRACEIZEREFSEREAOT

— We assessed the fair value calculations
methodology used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions adopted in the fair value
less cost of disposal;

— BEETGAMERAZATEAETERAT
BEREEKEAMRAZ FERRZEBEL

—  We discussed with management whether any
impairment indicator exists and basis for the
impairment recognised;

- EELETEEBENReAFEETMARETRR
K2 W SRR (B B B

— We challenged the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

- EECRBASHEBRTENANZ BHR
FTERRZAER: &

—  We checked on sampling basis, the accounting
and relevance of the input data used.

- EEeUMESIABREMERBABECE
FTERIE R ARREME -

—  We evaluated the competency of the independent
external valuer taking account its experience and
qualifications.

— EEEAMEBUINSEERM N TER
HEEBRER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B BE R & ()

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs wiill
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B BE R & ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, EZF (HEdB#E)E&X 2216 E LEFRM
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and AN E X EZZEE (AEEEEERBRED
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 3% Bl A B ES 15 7 (£ (0] 5 K ERPR) LB TR B
internal control that we identify during our audit. MELTHEE -

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement HZ A EEERSZER  KRABEECDF
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding & BB LM 2 HBEEEE K WHFE
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and BBt B W R A2 X2 E LB E Y
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our FrEMELKEMEIE - UL (HEMR)IEE
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. [ &0 48 It o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yip Kai Yin with Practising Certificate number
P0O5131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor,

8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

28 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FelRaREMZER R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ—F—NF=A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-AFE —ZT—N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FHET FAT
Revenue Wz 6 89,218 85,762
Cost of sales $HE KA (39,618) (43,713)
Gross profit £ F 49,600 42,049
Other income H g A 7 10,214 90,514
Other gains and losses, net E bl kB 1858 8 78,863 (37,522)
Selling and distribution expenses HELDHEBEA (40,170) (32,259)
Administrative expenses 1THE R (26,402) (27,007)
Share of results of an associate FEAE —EE L AR EE 21 (908) 1
Effective interest expense on ABMBEEFZERFER
convertible bonds 31 (7,823) (6,590)
Profit before income tax % FT 18 Bi BT 4 9 63,374 29,186
Income tax (expense)/credit Fre®i (), K& 12 (50) 86
Profit for the year KEEGER 63,324 29,272
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hi2mEBX) W&
income
Item that may be reclassified HENBEE D ER 8w h
subsequently to profit or loss 15 H
Exchange differences on translation of ~ #E G N ¥ 75 7 [E K, =58
foreign operations (6,881) 11,956
Item that will not be reclassified HiE T eEgas 7 2 En
subsequently to profit or loss B35 H
Change in fair value on financial assets st AHth 2 EW 2 7 & &l
through other comprehensive income BEANFEEZD (59,047) —
Other comprehensive (expense)/income AEEH M2 E (X)),
for the year W as (65,928) 11,956
Total comprehensive (expense)/ AEEXE(BEX) WH
income for the year 458 (2,604) 41,228
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
GeRaRAMSEKE R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #EZ =" —hF=-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—®-NE —T-N\%
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FExT FAT
Profit/(Loss) for the year LT ATEEREERRN
attributable to: (B#8) :
Owners of the Company ZN/NIEZ RSN 64,030 29,930
Non-controlling interests FEFE R = (706) (658)
63,324 29,272
Total comprehensive (expense)/ LDTFTATEGAXREER2E
income for the year attributable to: (B =) Uk &5 48 58 :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIE BN (2,042) 41,881
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE (562) (653)
(2,604) 41,228
HK cents HK cents
4l AL
Earnings per share for profit EATEEABRMEERZ
attributable to owners of the BRER:
Company:
— Basic — &K 13 2.68 1.25
— Diluted —EE 13 2.18 1.11
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i a M &

As at 31 March 2019 R=E—AF=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hAE —ZT—N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties EME 15 1,378 1,437
Property, plant and equipment ME - HENEKRE 16 140,740 155,469
Prepaid lease payments FERBEEMK 17 9,236 10,017
Intangible assets mEE 18 1,807 1,807
Investments in convertible bonds R ESFERE 19 - 417,783
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABRZ 2SR
profit or loss BE 19 469,737 —
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 20 - 59,047
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFAHEME2E K Z
other comprehensive income ZEmEE 20 - —
Interest in an associate i AN I i £ 21 330,062 330,970
Amount due from an associate F’E W — R B 2 R | FOR 20 29,388 22,505
Loan to an associate BEXTF—HEBE AR 22 5,027 —
Deferred tax assets FEEFRIEE F 30 69 69
987,444 999,104
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =g 23 5,824 4,100
Trade and bills receivables B ZRBERRERERE 24 20,047 21,076
Deposits, prepayments and other e  FEfIEEEMmEK
receivables HIa 25 11,106 8,361
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 20 - 1,875
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFAEZ 2SR
profit or loss BE 20 1,769 —
Pledged bank deposits BHIFIRITER 26 20,994 20,502
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITE 27 148,902 161,765
208,642 217,679
Current liabilities RBER
Trade and bills payables ZE2RTERRENER 28 8,125 6,916
Accruals, other payables and contract TERER HENRIER
liabilities a8 E 56,201 60,721
Amount due to an associate JE A — FET Bt i R A1 3R 29 - 19,780
Deferred income on government grants B 7 B 2 ¥ iE U )\ 32 125 98
Tax payable J& - B¢ 18 15,287 16,255
79,738 103,770
Net current assets REBEEFHE 128,904 113,909
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBEE 1,116,348 1,113,013

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZZEIERER AT




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
= 8 MK R & (R)

As at 31 March 2019 R=—ZE—hFE=F=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hAEFE —ZT—N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M & FHET FAT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds Bk E S 31 49,635 41,812
Deferred income on government grants I T 48 B 2 3B FE YT A 32 5,142 4,122
54,777 45,934
Net assets EEFRE 1,061,571 1,067,079
Equity R
Share capital A% 2 33 23,900 23,900
Reserves = 35 1,042,752 1,047,673
Equity attributable to owners of AENTEEAEGERS
the Company 1,066,652 1,071,573
Non-controlling interests FERER 39 (5,081) (4,494)
Total equity EREE 1,061,571 1,067,079
On behalf of the board REESFE

Xie Yi
iR
Director

BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReERERR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ=F—NF=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAERAES
Foreign Convertible
currency bonds Non-
Share Share  Capital Contributed translation equity FVTOCI Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve surplus  reserve reserve  reserve earnings  Sub-total interests Total
RATE
FAEA
N TRRES 2EWES FER
BREx RGEE EXHE HABR EIRE EERE  28F RERA P i @i
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000
T  FEr Thn T FHL Far FiEr Thx FaT FaT FAT
At1 April 2017 RZZ-t+4£NA-H 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 23,019 512,359 — 267295 1,029,692 (3,841) 1,025,851
Profit for the year KEEHF - - - - - - - 29,930 29,930 (658) 29,272
Exchange differences on translation # 2G5 £KEL 7
of foreign operations ERER - - - - 11,951 - - - 11,951 5 11,956
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - - 11,951 - - 29930 41,881 (653) 41228
At 31 March 2018 and RZF-N\%
1 Apri 2018 ZA=+-8R
—E-N\§
mAE—HR 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 34970 512,359 — 297225 1,071,573 (4,494) 1,067,079
Initial application of HKFRS 9 BEREREANERE
(note 2) £BIE9% (13E2) - - - - - — (24,039 21,160 2,879 (25) (2,904)
Restated balance as at 1 April 2018 R =Z—\ENA—H
QB5| 7 &% 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 34,970 512,359  (24,039) 318,385 1,068,694 (4,519) 1,064,175
Profit for the year KEEHF - - - - - - - 64,030 64,030 (706) 63,324
Change in far valug on financial st AE M2 E K2
assets through other SRHEEATE
comprehensive income E) - - - - - - (59,047) - (59,047) - (59,047)
Exchange differences on translation #2 5) £ & 4 2
of foreign operations ERLZR - - - - (7,025) - - - (7,025) 144 (6,881)
Total comprehensive (expenses) 2 (%), Wiz 28
income = = = - (7,029 - (59,047) 64030 (2,042 (562 (2,604
Balance at 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE
=R=1+-8
RS 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 21,945 512,359  (83,086) 382,415 1,066,652 (5,081) 1,061,571
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
e A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 E#Z =T —hF=ZA=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZEHESRE
Profit before income tax B AT 15 B0 A1 5 A 63,374 29,186
Adjustment for: FHEATIEE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment FEREE N R 2 8y 234 233
Depreciation of investment properties WEMEZIE 59 60
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - -BEMEREZITE 6,237 6,327
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BMEEXREZ
equipment &5 18 734 -
Provision for impairment loss on trade B 5 EREFRERE
receivables, net B F 5 255 3,218
(Reversal of)/Provision for impairment loss on FEREEE @),
inventories, net BE TR (44) 85
Change in fair value on financial assets RAFEFABRZS R
at FVTPL — investments in convertible bonds BEATFEES-AI B
BEHEE (79,789) -
Change in fair value on financial assets at BRAVEFABRZ &H
FVTPL - bank structured product BEANTEESH-RITHE
B E R (61) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEERERAERE
investments - 20,953
Share of results of an associate FEAE —REBE RAREE 908 M
Change in fair value of derivative component AMRESHIEE ZITE
of investments in convertible bonds TEHD 2 A FEEZE - 16,782
Effective interest income from investments AR ESEE 2 ER
in convertible bonds FLE WA = (83,266)
Effective interest expense on convertible bonds ~ AJ # i& & %5 ~ B F &
B 7,823 6,590
Imputed interest income from amount due from  FEU — R HE & A TR IE 2
an associate HE R 2 WA (6,883) (5,270)
Interest income FLEHA (2,947) (1,8006)
Amortisation of deferred income i S U A B 5 (257) (172)
Loan interest income from an associate *E—MEEARZER
B A (127) —
Reversal of impairment loss on other receivables b i Ui 5% 18 37 (8 &5 18
B [l 2 —
Operating cash flows before movements in BEECEHI 2 LER S
working capital i1 (10,486) (7,081)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FEOEMm, mL (1,680) 3,422
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B 5 e R 3K e Uk = 4k
DA 3,169 8,990
Increase in deposits, prepayments e - T FE & M RE U
and other receivables FRIALE N (2,743) (3,389)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and bills payables B RMNEZRLEMNERE
#an, Cr ) 1,209 (7,943)
(Decrease)/Increase in accruals, other payables B3R & F - H fh fE 1t Z00B &
and contract liabilities AHBECHD), (4,520) 1,220
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
GeEAaRERR)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

2019 2018
—EBE-hAE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Cash used in operations EEMAZRS (15,051) (4,781)
Income tax paid B AER (38) (102)
Net cash used in operating activities RETFEFMAZEESFE (15,089) (4,883)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHMEE 2R ERE
Interest income received from investments in AR EERE 2B W B
convertible bonds e A 25,025 25,025
Interest income received BF B A 2,947 1,806
Government grant received B W 48 B 1,553 1,325
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets At EcREEZHEE — (80,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE BMELEREBEZHE
equipment A 118 _
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WELEE (1,414) (124)
Short term investment’s return received 245G B i% & B ¥ 57 -
Repayment of the amount due to an associate & B R — B4 QA 72
=18 (19,780) -
Loan made to an associate ERT—HEEE QT (4,900) -
Increase in pledged bank deposits B8 3R IR 17 17 28 A0 (492) (287)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing & EEBFESE (FTA) 2
activities REFEHE 3,114 (62,255)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R4 RESZEEHRD
porg-c] (11,975) (57,138)
Effect of foreign exchange rate change IEERSBHHE (888) 1,100
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHzBERBE€EEEE
of year 161,765 217,803
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRCEERESEEER 148,902 161,765
Analysis of the balances of cashandcash B2 RESZEEEH &8
equivalents ki
Cash and bank balances WE NIBTES 148,902 161,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &% —

GENERAL

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business is suites 2206-08, 22/F., Devon
House, Taikoo Place, 979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company (together with
the subsidiaries referred as the “Group”). The principal activities
of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in notes 39 and
21 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2018

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

(A) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: (1) classification and
measurement; (2) impairment and (3) hedge accounting. The
adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 has resulted in changes
in accounting policies of the Group and the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

The following tables summarise the impact, net of tax, of
transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance of reserves,
retained earnings and non-controlling interests as of 1 April
2018 as follows (increase/(decrease)):

—NE=ZA=1T—RHLFE

O HAE E —

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HMERBYEBEREEN(E

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BUBHREEAD @

(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (@) EBRAFET AT BB

1 April 2018 (Continued) B EER — F_E—A

FMA—HER@E

(A) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued) A BEEBEHMBHRZEREINR —
=/ T A (E)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments () =ZHEESERITE

TR BB E B SRS
T \FMA-AZHE
CEDET NP DR

(BrBifg) 2 8 (5, O ) :

HK$’000
FBT
Retained earnings REEF
Retained earnings as at 31 March 2018 R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—8Z
REB B F 297,225
Combined effects to reclassify available-for-sale BATFEFEZAIHEEZREEN
investments at fair value to fair value through other 8 & Z A F(EH A H i 2 E U
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and measure (B RAFEFAEMEEIZE]) &
investments in convertible bonds in its entirety A=A BEREEFREZEAS
(notes | to Il below) (T XK EEIZE 21,229
Increase in expected credit losses (“ECLs”) in BoRINERZIEREERL
trade receivables (note (ii) below) ([FEERE BB K1) 18 hn (CF ST 5E (i) (69
Restated retained earnings as at 1 April 2018 RZE-—NFHNA—HZEE
REEF 318,385
Non-controlling interests FERER
Non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2018 RZE-—NF=ZA=+—H2
FEIE R M (4,494)
Increase in ECLs in trade receivables (note (i) below) 2 5 fE it BR 3% > 78 BR = S48 2k 12 0
(7T 3B & (i) (25)
Restated non-controlling interests as at 1 April 2018 R—_Z— N\FHWA—B 2 K&
3'5? fo”“\ (4,519)
FVTOCI reserve BAFETFAHMEEKRE ZHE
FVTOCI reserves as at 31 March 2018 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H82
EAFEFAHMEZERZ 2
1 -
Reclassify available-for-sale investments to FVTOCI At HER B EFHHEE R A FEFT A
(note | below) H 2w Weas (T 3CMEEEnD (24,039)
Restated FVTOCI reserves as at 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FWUA—BHZ2REEY
ANFEFAEMEERE 2 FH (24,039)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2018 (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

()  Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) As of 1 April 2018, certain available-for-sale investments were reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets to FVTOCI. The Group intends to
hold these equity investments for long term strategic purposes. Under
HKFRS 9, the Group has designated these equity investments at the date
of initial application as measured at FVTOCI. As a result, financial assets
with a fair value of HK$59,047,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale
financial assets at fair value to financial assets at FVTOCI and fair value
loss of HK$24,039,000 were reclassified from the retained earnings to the
FVTOCI reserve on 1 April 2018.

(I As at 1 April 2018, the bank structured product was reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost less impairment to
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The non-
determinable return rate causes the financial assets to fail to meet the
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) criterion. This is because
the non-determinable return rate do not give rise solely to payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding of the financial
assets. As a result, that bank structured product is classified as at FVTPL.
As at 1 April 2018, there is no difference between the previous carrying
amount and the fair value of HK$1,875,000.

(D} As at 1 April 2018, the entire of debt component and derivative
component of the investments in convertible bonds were reclassified to
financial assets at FVTPL. The derivative component causes the financial
assets to fail to meet the SPPI criterion. This is because the embedded
feature cannot be separated and the contractual terms of that convertible
loan receivable as a whole do not give rise solely to payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding of the bonds. As a result,
that investments in convertible bonds in its entirety are classified as at
FVTPL. As at 1 April 2018, the difference between the previous carrying
amount and the fair value of HK$2,810,000 has been included in the
opening retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 H#EZ —Z—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2018 (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

()  Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

The following table summarises the original measurement

categories under HKAS 39 and the new measurement

categories under HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s

financial assets as at 1 April 2018:

,%,\ % 8 & 2

& EZR(&
BB REER]

= o

(@) ERMFR] KB E B
W|EER — EA—i—)\
FUA-BEM@®

A BEBUBEIHREERFEIY —
TEt T A (&)
() Z=HEEFHERIE ()
TEBAAEER_FT—NFWMA—
HEECRHEERBEEBSFENSE
FEBFEHFRIBRIES BB RF
EEBIFEIF 2= A

Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
Original classification New classification 1 April 2018 1 April 2018
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39  Remeasurement  under HKFRS 9
RESEET REZBHE
ERIE39%: BEEHEIR
RESERBEE RAZB-N\F R=ZB-NF
REFBEHEAER 2 ERHEIHL mA-B2Z mA-HBZ
tRHEE RESE EipaR] REE BN E BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TEL TEL
Unlisted investment funds  Available-for-sale (at fair value) ~ FVTOCI 59,047 - 59,047
(note (/) above)
FImREES e (RATE) BOTEFARM
(ESTHER() PHEYE
Unlisted equity investment  Available-for-sale (note (/) above)  FVTOCI - - -
FETRARE AT (SO EE() BOTEFARM
rEKE
Bank structured Avallable-for-sale (at amortised ~ FVTPL 1,875 - 1,875
product cost) (note (Il) above)
RITEREED A& (R B HERKA) BATEFARS
(E 3 EEq))
Investments in convertible  Debt component: amortised cost - As a whole: 417,783 (2,810) 414,973
bonds (note (Ill) above) FVTPL
Derivative component:
FVTPL
BRRESRE BERHH  BEAA BRME:
(L STHEEE(I) BATEEA
TETARS : BRRTE B
n“' A Ta m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —Z&—

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2018 (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s impairment
model by replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the
“expected credit losses (“ECLs”) model”. HKFRS 9 requires the
Group to recognise ECLs for trade and bills receivables and
financial assets at amortised costs earlier than HKAS 39. Cash
and cash equivalents are subject to ECLs model but the
impairment is immaterial for the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on either
of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
and bills receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMMEAUBEREER(E
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B REZER]) @)

(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2018 (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. The 12-months ECLs is the portion of the
lifetime ECLs that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. However, when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs. When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when: (1)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more
than 90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

(@) ERMFR] KB E B
BHREED —R=ZF—-N
FHOA— B AN @

A BEBHBEHREERFEIR —
AT A (&)
(i) ZHEERE (&)
FEAIEEEAX A E (B)
FHMEEEREEMNS  BHEE
BRU12EAEHEERBRAE E .
EAEHEERLAAR2HELREE
BRz—85 HETERSAHE2
MAAMEREZ ST AENEM
MEA-AM EEERREELR
BERNT  BEBUZHBEREER
BAREE -ZETeMEEZRFE
ERaTERESCTBELEMER
HETTEHEERAN  AEEEEE
MR R EAEN LB K AR E IR
BE2EEBREEBBZERN - LEHE
BEAEBE 2 BESHREE AEERT
HEHECEERTEHER RDT - A
BIERTIE & K o

AEBRR HERmEEDHBIBI0
B HEERBREBZEM-

AEERBEREER TIBERTE
EBHMERATATRREASEEE
RETEER (DI IR ER
HADHNBATAAEEEZHETHE
FEEER FQZcHEELRBB
90H -
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HERAEEEREERRZERES
HIEAFE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & Z —Z—hWF=A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FMNEABUMEBREEN(H
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EHEEA] @
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (@ RMHFEEETEBY

BHEER — R=B— N
A — B 4N )

1 April 2018 (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued) A BEEHMBHRZEREINR —
2T A (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) ZFEEREE)

Presentation of ECLs
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised

BHEERXZZ5
NEBERAGFEZEREEEBRE

cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

& E MR EARE T kR -

Impact of the ECLs model FEAIE B EAE
Impairment of trade receivables B S RBERZRE
As mentioned above, the Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified .:)i% Zzu X Pt KREBERBE BT

approach to measure ECLs which recognises lifetime ECLs for

ZERIFS 2 LT AT EERH

all trade receivables. The loss allowance for trade and bills

1‘5?5% HERMEE S REKER

receivables as at 1 April 2018 were determined as follows: LEWEE  2HEERBL - R_F
—NFEOA—HB IETESENE
RzBEBENT
More than More than More than
90 days 120 days 12 months
1 April 2018 Current past due past due past due Total
BHEB BHEB BHER
—E-NFWMA—H BDHA 90H 120H 1218 A ot
Expected credit loss rate (%) 1.34 1.34 1.34 1.34 1.34
TEHEE B X E (%)
Gross carrying amount (HK$’'000) 10,410 5,133 3,510 2,023 21,076
BRAEAE(THBT)
Loss allowance (HK$’000) (94)
EBEEE(TET)

The increase in loss allowance for trade and bills receivables
upon the transition to HKFRS 9 as of 1 April 2018 were
approximately HK$94,000. The loss allowances further
increased for approximately HK$3,000 for trade receivables
during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMMEAUBEREER(E
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHBEBREZEDN] @

(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2018 (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)  Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no impact on the Group
as the Group does not apply hedge accounting in its hedging
relationships.

(iv)  Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision in HKFRS 9
such that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules are therefore not
reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2018, but are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 April 2018. This means that
differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1 April 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2018 does not reflect
the requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS 39.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial
application (the “DIA”) of HKFRS 9:

° The determination of the business model within which a
financial asset is held;

o The designation and revocation of previous designations
of certain financial assets and financial liabilities as
measured at FVTPL; and

(@) ERMFR] KB E B
BHREED —R=ZF—-N
FUA-BEM@®

A BEBHBEHREERFEIR —
AT A (&)

(i) HFHEFEE

B 7N & B 30 A b H ¥R BE R E AT

MR EE  WRESSY B R

HEREIR CHASHEEHASE

B m R -

(iv) BEZH

AEBOEABEEW B HREERNZFEI
RZBEHEIE MEFEF RS
ERFIOR2HERMMBAEY A
BEmEr A MEBEHEEERX
HMAMEAZEN>BERABRTER
—E- ) N\FZA=Zt+—BZEBEAHH
MR RA R HER=ZF— \FWNA
—BZEETBMRARPER LB
FERNB BT R EERFEIORFTE
A7 oREERESHEBGEZREEE
BEE_FT-NA\FUA—BRREAEF
MEERER A —FE—N\F2
Pz BRI RSB M wE 2R
FBOMHTE  MERMEALSHELZE
R ZHTE ©

UTHEDREBEMBREENS
IONERERBEHMIEREABHD
FHEZFERBRMEDL
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BELERABARAEAFEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —Z&—

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2018 (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)  Transition (Continued)
The designation of certain investments in equity
investments not held for trading as at FVTOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low credit risk at the
DIA, then the Group has assumed that the credit risk on the
asset had not increased significantly since its initial recognition.

(B) HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 has
established a five-steps model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at the amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method without practical expedients. The Group has
recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at
the date of initial application (that is, 1 April 2018). As a result,
the financial information presented for 2018 has not been
restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2018 (Continued)

(B) HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on

identification of performance obligations; application of principal

versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and transition

requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
consolidated financial statements as the Group had not
previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the clarifications in
this, its first, year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R e MEERRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BT\
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) & B i
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued by EEMENEKREKRZFH
but are not yet effective R/ RETE BB RE
% Al
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the AT AREHERNERLGA M EHREKME
Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been issued Moo BMmERKRERENLT RERE
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by IBERM ] RIEE BB
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these MEER  c REB BRI A SR EHE
changes on the date they become effective. BlEz HIERZE &) -
HKFRS 16 Leases' ERMBREENF 6T HE
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax ERERMBERERE FAEHEEZAEEM
Treatments' ZE8)-REERNT
Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative EEFRBEELNSEE  HEaAaBErERZE
HKFRS 9 Compensation’ CHES! B
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and BE R B85 REBLLAFIRALSNE
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures' CHEN) ZRERE
Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business EASHRE L ERMBREENEIN
to HKFRSs 2015~ Combinations’ ZE-RFECST—EF EBENMEBE
2017 Cycle BERFEE
Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 11, BB RE LD BAEBBREER
to HKFRSs 2015- Joint Arrangements’ “E-RFEZT—+F FURAETHM
2017 Cycle BEEFENE BT
Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKAS 12, Income EASHRE LA BERGHERE 125
to HKFRSs 2015- Taxes' “E-RFECZT—tF MBHMET
2017 Cycle BERFEE
Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing B EHL KR EB e EL|F03%
to HKFRSs 2015- Costs' ZE-RFEZT—HF BERRANEET
2017 Cycle BEMEEIGE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? EETBERELANEITR RBRAN?
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between ERUERELDEI0R RESEEBLNFY
HKFRS 10 an Investor and its Associate or Joint REBGIERFE28E AELCERLENR
and HKAS 28 Venture® SCHEN) ENEE®
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 RZE—NF—HA—Hsx 2%
January 2019 IRHFE BB A
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZE-_—F—HA—Hsx 2%
January 2021 R FE BB ER
8 The amendments were originally intended to be effective 3 ZEBIREN_ZE—+tF—H
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The — B2 BRBMEAE AR £
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early BBHBEWERELE B2
application of the amendments continue to be permitted. FERZ ST E AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 H#EZ —Z—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. K#
B

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset
and the lease liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

3. mUAE

Statement of compliance 3.1 &REHR
The consolidated financial statements have been REVBHRERDBIEFRBEEA
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong ERMBHREER BAEASE
Kong Accounting Standards (“‘HKASs”) and Interpretations Al(lEdestE8]) R2E(A
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and THBIEATBERESER]) LA
the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance EEENTHEDN B iR & B 18 5
which concern the preparation of financial statements. In RKZIEXMBEE - AN 288
addition, the consolidated financial statements include KRR EEBHEXZTIMER
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing ANElEHFEMABAURE 2 BEAR
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong 7 o
Kong Limited.
Basis of measurement 32 FFEE%E
The consolidated financial statements have been MY estREMEE BET
prepared under the historical cost basis except for certain eRMIERATEFEIIN HF6
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values as BT IS RR TR F 52 AN ELZE 4R
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Ho
Functional and presentation currency 33 BERZIEH
The consolidated financial statements are presented in SEEMBHRERIIUABITEIT])
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the 25 BRI AERKARIZNEES
functional currency of the Company. The amounts stated Mo BAMEN FIREEEY
are rounded to the nearest HK$1,000 unless otherwise BEgERTHEIT-
stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = —NF=-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & Z =—ZF—hF=-A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.2

4.3

4, ERETHEME @

Subsidiaries 4.2 HEB DA
A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is WEBARIIEARAT B HEHTT
able to exercise control. The Company controls an B4 WHmIEE AT - (HEE
investee if all three of the following elements are present: [ N o == NN = )
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable WIREBANTEE TG Wik
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power BERRBEBEREN BEEERA
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed BRmAIERIZEERN &
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there HTFE#EHZE SR &0k 2
may be a change in any of these elements of control. EH - -MEFSERBABREM

ZEESIETEREE  Ke

EHA A A
In the Company’s statement of financial position, RARNBIBEARREZAN - R E
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less QDA EERK AR R EES
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are BNA)YE AREEE W R
accounted for the Company on the basis of dividend R B EEBHEB AR EE A
received and receivable. AR o
Associates 4.3 & N A
An associate is an entity over which the Group has BENREASEHAERBEEXR
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a FEIIMIEBRWERAIHKEZ
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to LTHZER BEBATENIEE®E
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions SEGERE T 2B R EER
of the investee but not control or joint control over those FoOMIEHZSEHREREBIEHI =
policies. R R o
Associates are accounted for using the equity method e e RAEREAR B
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and I BE RN RV S IR ANER
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the HEeEEEmeme EENER
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the (EzHBMENAEEFEWELE
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the HAE EBEAEERBZ A
Group’s interest in the associates are not recognised RIZHEDZZEBT2WER K
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses. IEEALEEEZEBE-
Profits and losses arising on transactions between the AREBEHEBEANGEITRZ
Group and its associates are recognised only to the EAzaMEEE Eeike
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. NEIZEEBREEESER -
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses LECSGELEZIREBEMMIGH &
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the NAEIZ BN R ER - B E R A
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses ZERmEEHE MMAEIREIEIR
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred HAEELEEREBEZE  HAE
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss. REBmER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

—NE=A=

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.3

4.4

Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount (see note 4.15), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

T—HILFE

4.

BEX

4.3

4.4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z ==

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

—“NE=ZA=1T—RHLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EXSTFBERBE @
(Continued)
4.4 Goodwill (Continued) 4.4 BEHE @)
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, MR REEREES 2HmEm
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been FESEBECESEESN
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that N B EE &R 218 =0/
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash- B -BWEEALEMN 2B R
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the BFORNEERE  AREESEES
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the EOBMUBIDDEEEN 2 &
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, FEEHE ACBEEBEEEEMLS
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the EEEZEEERLLASERE
basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. UzHMEE - AWM DEES
However, the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce BEZEEETeRDENEE
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair ZEEHEBEZEAREAFER LB
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in ERA WAzt )k EFERAER
use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any (A EBTE) e EAE) - HF
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss BZEMBEBENERERR
and is not reversed in subsequent periods. BTrenHEZEBEEm -
4.5 Property, plant and equipment 45 M BERZE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less ME BB KERE T W$ﬂzf§
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. AHENMTRBEEEZN -
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its ¥ MEMIKEBERABEAEE
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the BRERKEZBBE ZEHEEMGLK
acquisition of the items. AN
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying HBEKAGFAELERBEALXNE
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as ERNERABULEE MHIUNEHE
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic ZIEB 2 ABEEF SRR
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group AKREB RZIBE ZKANGED &
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The FTEAR -BERARHAS ZEREE
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All THt& IEHERR P H M 48 RIR
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an BEUREA U HEBRIERER
expense in profit or loss during the financial period in A o
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The annual rates/useful lives are as
follows:

Buildings Over the lease terms of
the relevant leasehold
land and 50 years if
shorter

Plant and machinery 6.67%-20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10%-30%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

BEASHBEME @

45 W% BENKRE @

ME BERZBETUITE U
BYME - BERERE 2GR AL
P B DA B ARORMOEH L A AN B
MEFEAFRBREE - RS RED
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BRFET L LEEEFHER
FE o FR AIEAFHOT

EF EEAE T
2R
504 (LABR
mEAEE)

5 K i 25 6.67%-20%

Ff - BETEEE 10%-30%

K&
R 20%
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Bl &8 BENRHREEATR
O & 58
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.6

4.7

4. EABSTHEHREw@m

Investment property 46 REWE
Investment property is property held either to earn rentals KEWELAEEERIESHE
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale ARFHE S 1E % W T2 & M JE7E B
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production BEEBBRETSEELES BEL
or supply of goods or services or for administrative ESHESmo RGN IEITHRA
pUrposes. Bm2WE -
The land component of leasehold investment property is HEREWE LD ILTEN
accounted for as a prepaid land lease payment. TR EMFKAL -
The building component of investment property is KWEMEZEFTIE D VR IERIR
measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently KA E  EBEBRARZFTIT
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and ERZEAEE(NB)VE-TE
accumulated impairment (if any). Depreciation is FERESETE WAt EMR
calculated using a straight-line method to allocate the FH05FABAIMESED
depreciable amounts over the estimated useful lives of # o
30.25 years.
The residual values and useful lives of investment property REVHREEHEAREEYE
are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each ZHRSBELAFERFEHET
financial year end. The effects of any revision are included WHEHBESFAE - EAEFT 2
in the statement of profit or loss when the changes arise. N LSBT ABIRERRN
Leases 47 HE
The Group as lessor KEFZHAEAA
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in KEHRE2HSWAEHBERE
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the HAREFZEZRNEBERARER R
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating KEHEZERRTHRELE Y
and arranging an operating lease are added to the TR EEKAGTABEEE 2K
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an HE WAEEHANKRER LR
expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term. RERX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = —NF=-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7 lLeases (Continued)

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.

Lease of land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment. Unless it is clear that both elements are
operating lease, in which case the entire lease is classified
as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

()

(i)

EE-NF=ZA=1+—RHILFE

4. EABSTHEHREw@m

48 BILEE (BRI

Intangible assets acquired separately () 1EFKIEzEEEE
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are 18 B Y B8 B B B BR A &
acquired separately are carried at costs less FHZEREETIRKAR
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated R ET S K R R ER
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible EBEY R - AERAFERA
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a FH BTV EEZEED
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. BEGEREGFATFER
The estimated useful life and amortisation method FHRER - et FRE
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, HA NGBS AN SRS S
with the effect of any changes in estimate being RS MiEFT 2 EEH)
accounted for on a prospective basis. TERBBHEEAR-
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are & 71 Uy 8~ B 4 R 7] & A
acquired separately are carried at cost less any FHZEREEEKAR
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see B HZ ZFREEE
note 4.8(iii)). 51 B (5B 5 4.8ii)) °
Internally generated intangible assets (research (i) RAEBELBEFEE (2
and development costs) B A)
Expenditure on internally developed products is NEAZEERTHERR
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that: AR & S -
. it is technically feasible to develop the product ° TR E A% E RS
for it to be sold; LA 856
o adequate resources are available to complete o BRMERTKFE
the development;
° there is an intention to complete and sell the ° BETKNMEEER:
product;
e the Group is able to sell the product; D REBHGENHEEE
i
o sale of the product will generate future o HEEMEELERRK
economic benefits; and expenditure on the AEM R A sEE
project can be measured reliably. SHEBEXH-
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 =—Z—hE&EH 107




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERETHEHME @
(Continued)
4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued) 48 BILEE (BHERH) @)
(i) Internally generated intangible assets (research (i) AEBELBEEEE (%

and development costs) (Continued) FK) (4&)
The amount initially recognised for internally TABELEFLEEIIS
generated intangible asset is the sum of the R LEABEREE
expenditure incurred from the date when the BAFE LA BRELES
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria HEEEZRAXARE - MK
listed above. Where no internally-generated REERENAISELEER
intangible asset can be recognised, development EE BFAZEYHREES
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the HEATEEERER -

period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally- RUNEHERE  AIELE
generated intangible assets are reported at cost FEELHERBNKE &
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated FEEMRERZEE  PAKA
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as WEFTHE N R BERS
intangible assets that are acquired separately. BnAE) 2% -
Intangible assets, which comprise rights to EBEREERTEABEREX
commercially exploit certain gene inventions, are MAETERMRRZE
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and R o Th¥ AR R a8 &
impairment losses. The category of intangible asset WEEBIE BEEEZ
is summarised as follows: BB
(@ Gene invention rights @ EHEZHE
The cost of gene invention rights is amortised B R B EE 2 K
over the lives of the rights granted for the Ao mEREER
invention of a period up to a maximum of HiER ko =+
twenty years. FH -

m EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZZEIERER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (see note 4.15).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of
its revaluation surplus.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

EE-NF=ZA=1+—RHILFE

4. EABSTHEHREw@m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments

A

()

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

—NE=ZA=1T—RHLFE

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R e MEERRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

()

—E-NAF=A=+—HILFE

4. EABSTHEHREw@m

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April A BZZE-NFHWPA—H
2018 (Continued) RERZ &5 BR (#)
Financial assets (Continued) () Z=HEEGE)
Debt instruments (Continued) EHETLA(E
Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection BN BB ERERA D
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows BeneZ8EmMs WA
represent solely payments of principal and interest BMEEZIREREAgR A
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at YRS RFE - Bl iR
amortised cost are subsequently measured using ARG E o IR A=
the effective interest rate method. Interest income, JeRMEEHERABER
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment FIZEEKFTE - FEHA - B
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on R EEEENALBER
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. BamER e RILBRZEM
WENIEBRER -
Fair value through other comprehensive income EAFEFAEME2ER
(“FVTOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of @m((EAFEFAEMLS
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial mkzE]D B EKREAE Y
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent ReneElkdlEemiEE
solely payments of principal and interest, are ZEEME WEBHEEZ
measured at FVTOCI. Debt investments at fair value RenedkaItra
through other comprehensive income are ERE Al AFETFAH
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest tEmksitE - HAFE
income calculated using the effective interest rate FAEMEEREZES
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and WEHEBEZAFTEFE K
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other AEBEMNEERFEZNE
net gains and losses are recognised in other WA~ BE N U S KR A &
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains MERERER - LMk
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive FEEFEAEME2E W
income are reclassified to profit or loss. mER -RNEMEEKER
s RSB ALK IR
REEFSEEEZ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

()

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R e MEERRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

()

(ii)

—E-NAF=A=+—HILFE

4. EABSTHEHREw@m

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April A BZZE-NFHWPA—H
2018 (Continued) RERZ &5 BR (#)
Financial assets (Continued) () Z=HEEGE)
Equity instruments BATA
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is RO THERWIEEEES
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably & RIE &R - NEFT AT
elect to present subsequent changes in the BEEENE M2 @WK
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive HEHRENREAFEZE
income. This election is made on an investment-by- BEE) o ZRIBIREIEIRE
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value EEER R AFAEFTAE
through other comprehensive income are measured fth 2 S 2 BRI E IR
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in NFEFE BRBEWAR
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly BEANER  BIEKRBEWA
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the B3 i 21| & U [ 30 o 1 & X
investments. Other net gains and losses are Ko HhUzs R EEFER
recognised in other comprehensive income and are Hthr2EK=mER - mIkFE
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity FoEEiEzE A HMmAR
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby AKRITEDDEAEERNFE
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income HFABEBR EHRQNFEEE
are recognised in profit or loss. B REKFEWARE
AR
Impairment loss on financial assets (i) Z@REEZHEERE
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected REEREFTEWRERK
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade and bills receivables and JiE U 22 9% DA % 3% B 8 Ak AR
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The gFEvemEE2ERE
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: BERKLX((EHEEEX]
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result HREERE BHEER
from possible default events within the 12 months KBERABUTEEFE
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these M12f@ AEHREEEL &
are ECLs that result from all possible default events ARBmERABHZI2E AR
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The BhE A REEANTHER
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs ZEHEEELX: K2 H
is the maximum contractual period over which the EHEERKLX  EARNS®
Group is exposed to credit risk. TARAZHEFFHAMAET
REEHEZENSEHEEZ
TEEIE B K - RIGEHTE AR
EEBABEZREZEERS
MALXEEEEBREERR
ZEREAHHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

(ii)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade and bills receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

(i)

(i)

—E-NAF=A=+—HILFE

4. EABSTHEHREw@m

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April A BZZE-NFHWPA—H
2018 (Continued) RERZ &5 BR (#)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) (i) =ZHEEZEEIE (&)
The Group assumes that the credit risk on a AEEREK  WeMEER
financial asset has increased significantly if it is more BB B30H  EfEE R K
than 30 days past due. SR EN -
The Group considers a financial asset to be credit- REEBREBEBMEERT
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its FIERHIBEERE : (1)E
credit obligations to the Group in full, without HAT KA A& B &
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising RETHEZR(Hm: 217
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is BB (FEE)) ZBERT
more than 90 days past due. MASEEHEBETEEE

2B kQZeRmEEDD

H#EBI0H °
Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets FEERESREEZN A
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the WADBRESREE 2 #
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the SHAKAS (BN BR A B E R & 18
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial BE)(TE-IFZERESD
assets interest income is calculated based on the MEEZANBWATIIRIE
gross carrying amount. REAENE -
Financial liabilities (i) ZHEE
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending AREESTFaEELE 2B
on the purpose for which the liabilities were NEEcREaBEI I B - -ZA
incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through FEFAEZZSMAEE
profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and MER AT EFE ik
financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially A EZSREBEY
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable THEANFERIELEZE
costs incurred. FERIGKRARETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

(i)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

(i)

—E-NAF=A=+—HILFE

4. EABSTHEHREw@m

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April A BZZE-NFHWPA—H
2018 (Continued) RERZ &5 BR (#)
Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) LEEE ()
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss HAFEFABZZDE
(Continued) BE (&)
Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial WA TIIEE 2B E
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if AR S HEREIETE AR
the following criteria are met: () the designation AT EFAER ()P EH
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent HB B ER LD E LR
treatment that would otherwise arise from HEFEAEHIERIE
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or sKETIEME R 2 BRI 0k
losses on them on a different basis; (i) the liabilities =2 (VR IEBEXEIY 2
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are R ERERE  BEEED
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair —BXEEMAEXRENRE
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk AFEFHzEeHEEE
management strategy; or (i) the financial liability el = A (1) Pl == =
contains an embedded derivative that would need BEABIARZBREAR
to be separately recorded. PTETA-
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities RS HERIE - R FER
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at AEmErzse@mBEDRZRA
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in TEAAE mMAFEZE
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, AR ELXHEERZPE
except for the gains and losses arising from the ROEREBREMEE
Group’s own credit risk which are presented in Wz 2% BBER I 8 S5
other comprehensive income with no subsequent NEEERRCIEEEE
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The B EAE 2 W REER
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the Ghe MIBRERBRZ AFE
statement of profit or loss does not include any WaskEBERFETIRIER
interest charged on these financial liabilities. ZETRABBERR ZEM
FLE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

(iii)

(iv)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, amount due to an associate
and the liability component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised
in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into their respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the bonds into
equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds
equity reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R e MEERRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —Z&—

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

(iv)

4. EX

NE=ZA=+—HIFE

S BEMEw@

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April A BZZE-NFHWPA—H
2018 (Continued) RERZ &5 BR (#)
Convertible bonds (Continued) (iv) H#EKRES (&)
In subsequent periods, the liability component of N RE S Hﬂ M- AR ESZ
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost BEED NIRRT RN XX
using the effective interest method. The equity DA B 85 B 2K 3| EE WE 26
component, represented by the option to convert DHEABEEN P ERA
the liability component into ordinary shares of the RRREREAR 2B E) &
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity REBRUTBLRESERR
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in BAR - BEZR AR RE
which case the balance stated in convertible bonds BTEAIE(RIERT
equity reserve will be transferred to share capital AHRREFERREE A
and share premium). Where the option remains BB EBEERALEKD G
unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance stated B) MR N T E B
in convertible bonds equity reserve will be released ATE AIBEREHFERE
to the retained earning. No gain or loss is B2 EBRBRBRERE
recognised upon conversion or expiration of the ) o ¥R AR R M B R ok B BR 12
option. TERERER RS ELE -
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the BOABRKRESFAB 2R
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and SRR RIS HRIBAES
equity components in proportion to the allocation of Al BETEaERERE
the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the DeoHERBLBBE LIRS
equity component are charged directly to equity. W$7§/‘$f’£ mAREEMNR - ®
Transaction costs relating to the liability component BEXDEB 2K ZKA
are included in the carrying amount of the liability FFTABEHS CEREE I
portion and amortised over the period of the BERFERENRBEITH
convertible loan notes using the effective interest B ESFEAR N -
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A

(vii)

—E-NAF=A=+—HILFE

4. EABSTHEHREw@m

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April A BZZE-NFHWPA—H
2018 (Continued) RERZ &5 BR (#)
Derecognition (Continued) (vii) A IETER (1)
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the EHMEBERNREBBESNME
obligation specified in the relevant contract is BB E R - FEEE s E W
discharged, cancelled or expires. R HER o
Where the Group issues its own equity instruments HWAREEBMEREAZITE
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or BRATE  LAZEREL 2
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that EEEHERESRAEIR
liability, the equity instruments issued are the FELANSREE  BID
consideration paid and are recognised initially and TERATEABENRE:
measured at their fair value on the date the financial TRZeraEdHE—3f
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair DEIEZBEZERAFEENS
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be BRNETE - B BITRRA
reliably measured, the equity instruments are TEAMNRFEEELTER
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial 2 HRATAENGTERER
liability extinguished. The difference between the MEKL ISR EENRF
carrying amount of the financial liability or part B-ema@ExEP—In
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is MEEAeBHEHENREZ
recognised in profit or loss for the year. MHZEZBERFANBIRDRE
7o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
B.

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively,
but has elected not to restate comparative
information. Accordingly, the comparative financial
information provided continues to be accounted for
in accordance with the Group’s previous accounting
policy.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which
interest income is included in the “other gains or
losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B.

()

—E-NAF=A=+—HILFE

4. EABSTHEHREw@m

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March B BE=-ZE—-—NF=Z/F=
2018 (Continued) +—HEHZEFTHE
(#&)
Financial assets (Continued) () =Z=HREEGE)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss HRNFEAABEZ TG
These assets include financial assets held for ZEEBEREBEEES®
trading. Financial assets are classified as held for MEE -WEBSREES
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in EREHALE  BlxzZEER
the near term. Derivatives, including separated ESHEAEBEEE -TAT
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for BE(BEBIRARITET
trading unless they are designated as effective B)NMHBEAEBIEESE  #
hedging instruments or financial guarantee WETRAME P T AR
contracts. BB ERE LB RIBRIN o
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at R P ERE - A FEE
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair AERZEBMEEDNEA
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit FTE=E mMAFEZS L
or loss in the period in which they arise. REELABHEREZT®
Embedded derivatives MARITAETLTA
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host FETEFTAEDNFRTRAZLT
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when ATHE WEFGETETAR
they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks Z T FE - HE K E R IE
and characteristics are not closely related to those EErAaHzRABESER
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not mEE - BEAHWIENIE
measured at FVTPL. REEFFABZE 2 ARG
E-RBABTAEATAESHE
EBITETARRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B.

()

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivable where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available-for-sale or are not
included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are
carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

Dividend on available-for-sale equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B.

()

—E-NAF=A=+—HILFE

4. EABSTHEHREw@m

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March B BE=-ZE—-—NF=Z/F=
2018 (Continued) +—HERHZETHE

(#&)
Financial assets (Continued) () =Z=HREEGE)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) of & 5 gt B E (FF)
For available-for-sale equity investments that do not RERBMGRITEREER
have a quoted market price in an active market and HAFEBEEUEFEZ
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and AEEEREKEE  KEZ
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by ERBFERATAEHBAE
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they WEBBINZERAT
are measured at cost less any identified impairment BHEE AT R  ERA
losses. AT B 2R R E B 18 T

8.
Investments in convertible bonds A R (B 5K &
The component parts of the convertible bonds are MRk ES CHEKE D E
classified separately as debt component and BoEEEKIL D LB
conversion option derivative. ETET -
At the date of acquisition of the convertible bonds, RWBEATBERKRES ZH
the debt and derivative components are recognised B - EEETEITAESSY
at fair value. In subsequent periods, the debt BAFEER RNEEEZE
component of the convertible bonds is carried at M ARESZEEISLD
amortised cost using the effective interest method. T A BB R IR B H K
The conversion option derivative is measured at fair RHNER - MRETET AT
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit BAFESE MAFEZ
or loss. FEIRIEEANER -
Transaction costs that relate to the acquisition of BEAWBIBRES ZX
the convertible bonds are allocated to the debt and SHAEZEENFEEBL
derivative components in proportion to their relative BloRBEBLETET A
fair values. Transaction costs relating to the B - EROTETEHD
derivative components are charged to profit or loss 2 X 5K AN BI85 40
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt e BREBHBIBO ZX5
component are included in the carrying amount of KA AGBHBE D 2ET
the debt portion and amortised over the tenor of the B WERAFERFEERNA
convertible bonds using the effective interest B ES 2 FEAN B -
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B.

(i)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

° it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B.

(i)

—E-NAF=A=+—HILFE

4. EABSTHEHREwWm

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March B BE-_EFE-NF=ZA=
2018 (Continued) +—HEHZEFTHE
(#&)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) (i) =THEEZHEEE (E)
For Loans and receivables B K EWIE
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss HWEEBTREREED
when there is objective evidence that the asset is HRE BREEEeNE
impaired, and is measured as the difference EAER WIREERME
between the asset’s carrying amount and the HIZBEAERF XAEE 7
present value of the estimated future cash flows B RKRREeREZRE
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The ZHEZEZBAE -2MEE
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced ZHREERAFE R BEER
through the use of an allowance account. When any W o e EE 7 FEED
part of financial asset is determined as uncollectible, P TE 2 A Bl - Bl
it is written off against the allowance account for the REBeREEZBER
relevant financial asset. B8y o
For Available-for-sale financial assets AN EDHEE
Where a decline in the fair value constitutes MAFERLEXREZ
objective evidence of impairment, the amount of the EHEE O BEsENER
loss is removed from equity and recognised in profit AR RIERANIER -
or loss.
Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt HWIREAFEZENEE
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or TEBERBEEBER A
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment ZEHHERA BB ERE
can be objectively related to an event occurring BREZETMBEBELR
after the recognition of the impairment loss. rERBERPEE -
For available-for-sale equity investment, any A EERANKREM
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment 5 OREBBERE2EMNAF
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. BN RE M2 mE KR
NFERR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B.

(i)

(iif)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
For available-for-sale equity investment that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, amount due to an associate
and the liability component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised
in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R e MEERRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B.

(iv)

4, ERETHEME @

49 TR I A @)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March B BE-EFE-NF=ZA=
2018 (Continued) +—HERHZETHE

(#&)
Convertible bonds (iv) B E %
Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain REBRETEZAEENR
both the liability and conversion option components BRERESL > 2 BIRE
are classified separately into their respective items o YN WIIRTEREE L
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be DEAMEBIEE - HUEE
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash 2N EXE—HLBE
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the EXBARQNRKNEETFEH
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as BEBRATEAFKXNEE
an equity instrument. BRED D ERRATA -
On initial recognition of convertible bonds issued by RAEERAN DB EITZ
the Company, the fair value of the liability ABREESERE BEX D
component is determined using the prevailing ZANTEETIEELA ] E
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The BEB 2RI B HERE
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the F o BT MR ESZ TS
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the REHBEFAGEL D 2R
liability component, representing the conversion FTEZEHEGEEEAEAD
option for the holder to convert the bonds into BHEBLAEDZ ZBRIEE)
equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds FIAREZ (T BRESER
equity reserve). fE#) A -
In subsequent periods, the liability component of REER M AR ESZ
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost BEID NEBERN XA
using the effective interest method. The equity DA SRR R DI BR - REZS 25
component, represented by the option to convert (FEAEaBEHRH»ER AR
the liability component into ordinary shares of the NAE R CIBRE) BR
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity BRABmRESEEHFEHR
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in N BEZBRANBKREE
which case the balance stated in convertible bonds TEAEIEREBRT 7
equity reserve will be transferred to share premium. BREFERRECEHES
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry BEBEZRMDGEE) - M
dates, the balance stated in convertible bonds R RERNBIHAE & AR ITE - 7]
equity reserve will be released to the retained BRESFESFE 2GS
earmnings. No gain or loss is recognised upon GG EREET - R HE
conversion or expiration of the option. Bk B e e RR

EfU sk A8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B. Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

(vii)  Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

410 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

—NE=ZA=1T—RHLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.11 Revenue recognition

A. Accounting policies applied from 1 April

2018

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the goods
or service may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of

the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R e MEERRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -Z—hF=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EX
(Continued)

ST BREHME@

4.12 Income taxes 41218 %

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.13 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the Company/group entities
in currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s) (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange
differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R e MEERRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -Z—hF=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EX
(Continued)

ST BREHME@

4.13 Foreign currency (Continued) 413 7N (@)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.14 Employee benefits

()

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expenses when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R e MEERRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & Z =—ZF—hF=-A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EXSTFBERBE @
(Continued)
4.15 Impairment of assets (other than financial A5EERE(EMEERM)
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
° intangible assets; and

° investments in subsidiaries and an associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = —NF=-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., ERSTHEHME@m
(Continued)

41618 T A

4.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or production of a qualifying asset is
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset until when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are complete, after
which such expense is charged to profit or loss. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing cost is suspended
during extended periods in which active development is
interrupted.

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
the actual borrowing costs incurred on the borrowing
during the period less any investment income on the
temporary investment of the borrowing.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

4.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R e MEERRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, ERETHEBE @)
(Continued)

418 BT % B

4.18 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income on government grants and are credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

4.19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the year in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

4.20 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

@

(i)

V)

(viil

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z ==

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 H#EZ —Z—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of

5.

TXEINRBEHRAELBREARRK
ZEBREMGFH I EERZZ H A

the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a TERR ZEREXLKEAMEER
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and SERERNTERAREE 2 AGEEE
liabilities within the next financial year. FEBEZEEEEFELEERAE-
Impairment of interest in an associate N AT A
The Group’s interest in an associate represents interest in AEEBR—HBE2RARZERIE
Smart Ascent Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Smart Ascent REEBR AR REMNE R F(#

Group”). The major asset held by the Smart Ascent Group is an
intangible asset in relation to an in-process research and
development project (the “In-process R&D”) involving an oral
insulin product (the “Product”). As at 31 March 2019, the
carrying amount of the Group’s interest in an associate
amounted to HK$330,062,000 (2018: HK$330,970,000). The
directors of the Company have performed an impairment

EEIJ)Z%/\O ELEEEMFZ
FEEEABBETR ZHRELHA
BHEB(#ETHPZHBEHZ2ERE
E-ERSERORRESEZER(E
meR=—ZFBE—hAhF=ZA=+—8"
AEER—MBE A ZEEERER
T 7,%330,062,000,%75(_ T — J\F

assessment on the Group’s interest in an associate as at 31 330,970,000 7T ) ° AR A E F B K&
March 2019, with reference to a valuation report prepared by N%? VAEBKRGE Eﬁiiﬁ 27 HER
an independent qualified valuer and are of the view that no 5}5$’$ BER—_ZT—NF=ZA=+
impairment provision is required. —AR—HEBERA CERETRE

In making the assessment, key assumptions adopted by the
management include that Smart Ascent Group would be
successful in completing the clinical trials, obtaining the
regulatory approvals from the relevant government bodies and
launching the Product.

A YR RBEELRERS -

HETHER EEERERZEIR
BREEEEEE /KR TRERRRS
B - EN1S A B R B2 B AR P HE O 3
HEmM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z ==

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

—“NE=ZA=1T—RHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. B XG5 ¥ & K& 5T 888
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION HEzEERF@
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Impairment loss on trade receivables ESRNERAZREERE
The impairment loss on trade receivables of the Group is NEB EGEWRERZREERTY
estimated based on the evaluation of collectability and aging EREBREBELZEANBESERZ
analysis of individual trade debts performed by the Al E TG RER ST MG
management. A considerable amount of judgement is required iSRRG ESEREREBEKE
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, BIEHAEHE  PHESEFPFREZ
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection EERBTERCH WAEEEP
history of each customer. If the financial conditions of 2 B Hit MBL BHHERENT
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an [& - Bl ZBIEH REIN B o
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.
Impairment of prepaid lease payments and BNHEENRREFZHE
buildings
As at 31 March 2019, the prepaid lease payments and buildings R-_E—NAF=ZA=+—H8 BHHA
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in ENFEEFENEASHHRIBELR
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets e BARZEEEERAERBRBABHR
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts have Al ESERE R E2EEBRME: 1
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or market WESiENIRFERAEESTESmBE G
valuations. These valuations require the use of judgements and BET %S HEBERHE REE -
estimates.
Management’s judgement is required in the area of assets EEEARNTHEERABRIELH
impairment particularly in assessing: () whether an event has g LHRIG: ((RECHBEME
occurred that may indicate that the related assets value may BN EBEEBEYEE XKD
not be recoverable; and (i) whether the carrying amounts of FMEEAMWESEBIAFERLE
assets can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the ARSIt EEESPEREEMN
higher of fair value less costs of disposal or net present R ZAKRIESREHEESEME P
amounts future cash flows which are estimated based upon the CEEE)RAERUIEBERE - K=
continued use of the assets in the business. The management E-NE=A=1+—H BEEBLKZR
performed an impairment assessment on its prepaid lease EZHIUAERGEEMERITE EHRK
payments and buildings as at 31 March 2019, with reference to REGEZHEREREBNBEN
the valuation report prepared by an independent qualified valuer REEFEHETRETEH ZEFEEEZ
using the depreciate replacement cost approach. The fair AFESREERE - Atk REE
values of these assets were higher than their carrying amounts. BER-_ZT—hLF=A=1+—H8Bi#17T
Accordingly, no impairment loss is recognised for prepaid lease ZREFE  MERENEEN KR
payments and buildings based on the impairment assessment EFEIABESE(ZZE—N\F: &)
performed by the management as at 31 March 2019 (2018: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = —NF=-A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of prepaid lease payments and
buildings (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of prepaid lease
payments and buildings are approximately HK$9,236,000 (2018:
HK$10,017,000) and HK$116,570,000 (2018: HK$126,776,000)
respectively.

Impairment loss on slow-moving and obsolete
inventories

Impairment loss on slow-moving and obsolete inventories is
made based on the aging and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in market condition.
The Group will reassess the estimates by the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value of investments in convertible bonds

The fair value of convertible bonds invested by the Group is
calculated using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques are
certified by independent qualified valuers before being
implemented for valuation and are calibrated to ensure that
outputs reflect market conditions. Valuation models established
by valuers make the maximum use of market inputs and rely as
little as possible on the Group’s specific data. The model
involves estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate, share
price, volatility, discount rate and others. As at 31 March 2019,
the carrying amount of the convertible bonds as a whole
invested by the Group is HK$469,737,000 (2018: the carrying
amount of the embedded conversion option is HK$4,296,000).

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of conversion option of the convertible
bonds issued by the Company

On initial recognition of convertible bonds issued by the
Company, the fair value of the conversion option of the
convertible bonds was calculated using the valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques were certified by an
independent qualified valuer before being implemented for
valuation and were calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect
market conditions. Valuation models established by the valuer
make the maximum use of market inputs and rely as little as
possible on the Group’s specific data. The model involved
estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate, share price,
volatility, discount rate and others.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue for the year represents the fair value of amounts
received and receivable for goods sold to external customers,
less discounts and sales-related taxes for the year, and is
analysed as follows:

—NE=ZA=1T—RHLFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

hmkoEER

FARSERIEEFHEERMDE
Wk BWGRIR 2 A FEHRFRZIT
MRHERBEYE DM -

2019 2018
—E-AFE —ZZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET

Manufacturing of pharmaceutical B 3 28 )
products 75,821 60,176
Trading of pharmaceutical products EmE 5 13,397 25,586
89,218 85,762

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board of
directors that makes strategic decisions.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products they provide. Each of the Group’s operating segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summarised details of the
reportable and operating segments are as follows:

(@  the manufacturing segment engages in the development,
manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical products
(“Manufacturing”);

(b) the trading segment engages in the marketing and
distribution of imported pharmaceutical products (“Trading”);
and

(c) the gene development segment engages in the
commercial exploitation and development of genome-
related technology (“Gene Development”).

LEDRRRAEFELEREERH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WaksBER@E
(Continued)

Segment revenue and results PHERERES
The following is the Group’s revenue and results from operation LT AR ERKSEnEE D ZHKB
by reportable and operating segment. KEEK I REBIRENES -
Manufacturing Trading Gene Development Total
Hig g5 HAEMH @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“E-AE ZF0\F ZE-NE ZF0\F ZE-AE ZF0\F ZE-AF DR
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TET  TExX  TAT  TER  TAR  TER AR

Revenue L&
Sales to external BENOES=E L=
customers 75,821 60,176 13,397 25,586 - - 89,218 85,762
Segment results DHEES (3,633)] (3,695) (6,624)] (6,009) (89)] (83) (10,342)} (9,787)
Unallocated other income 7 9 it 2 £ b It A 10,214 90,514
Unallocated other gains K 9 Bf 2 e 35
and losses, net REEFE 79,789 (37,735)
Corporate expenses TERE (7,556) (7,217)
Effective interest expense  F] ik &5 v B 1
on convertible bonds e (7,823) (6,590)
Share of results of an FEfE HEE
associate NAEE (908) 1
Profit before income tax % BT 15 %% A % A 63,374 29,186
Income tax (expense)/ TS (),
credit i) (o 86
Profit for the year REREEF 63,324 29,272
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the KESE e RFEHES BT E
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4 to Mizrafri A EB v @t BERAR -
the consolidated financial statements. Segment profit/(loss) SEHEN(BE)EEL ES R E
represents the profit earned by/(loss from) each segment WA -ATTREEFKREZBEERFNR
without allocation of interest income, effective interest income WA-HEmFREBEZE XM
from investments in convertible bonds, other gains and losses, Y EM—EBE AR ERE LB
net, corporate expenses, share of results of an associate and BEBEZEBRMNERLIZERT &9
effective interest expense on convertible bonds. This is the BEHREZHA(BEEZER) -
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker, being EAMNEFEERAREES A) E=S
the board of directors, for the purposes of resource allocation HMUABEE RS EFRBET(E -

and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEkosEEH @
(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE
The following is the Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable LTAREANEHKKEDBEEH 2 A S
and operating segment. BEEEKAE-
Manufacturing Trading Gene Development Total
B g5 ERRR st
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

ZE-AE R\ ZB-RE —Z-)\F ZB-RE -“Z-)\F ZZ-hE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TEL TER FAT Thx FAER TET TAR

Segment assets PEEE
Segment assets PEBE 184,818 201,454 86,162 90,707 6 6 270,986 292,167
Investments in convertible ABREFRE

bonds 469,737 417,783
Interest in an associate R—RBEREZ

#i 330,062 330,970

Corporate and other assets ~ MERHEMEE 125,301 175,863
Total assets BEE 1,196,086 | 1,216,783
Segment liabilities TEEE
Segment liabilties PEEE 75,390 82,269 8,293 4,700 64 64 83,747 87,033
Convertible bonds AR ES 49,635 41812
Corporate and other liabiities {3 K Efh & (& 1,133 20,859
Total liabilties BEfE 134,515 149,704

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERSEBREEMNSERSEER

allocating resources between segments: ms :

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than . MBABmEEEEE R —EBs
investments in convertible bonds, interest in an associate NAIZHEGUAETCENREME
and corporate and other assets; and ENN FMBBEELIIERED

Bk

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . BRaBKEEALRTEREME

than convertible bonds and corporate and other liabilities BN FTEBEHUSRELE D
18
AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEkosEEH @
(Continued)

Other segment information HittpEER
Manufacturing Trading Gene Development Total
B g5 ERA% @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

ZB-NE —T-)0\F ZB-NE “T-)\F ZB-NE “T-\F ZB-NE —T)N\F
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR FER TER FET TER FER TER TR

Amounts included in the FAD R Rk
measure of segment Bt EZHE:
profit or loss:

Depreciation and HEREH

amortisation 6,312 6,393 86 94 - - 6,398 6,487
Unallocated depreciation K7 L7 & J 84

and amortisation 132 133

6,530 6,620

Provision for impairment loss & 5 i€ U B 206 B

ontrade receivables, net  EEEEFE 255 3,218 - - - - 255 3,218
Bad debs recovered =Yqekd 3 = (3,431) - - - - - (3.431)
Loss on disposal of HENE BER

property, plant and FEZER

equipment 734 - - - - - 734 -
(Reversal of/Provision for T & & & 18 (B

impairment loss on )/ HEEE

inventories, net (44) 85 - - - - (44) 85
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEkosEEH @
(Continued)

Geographical information i#h I8 & Rl

The Group’s operations are located in the People’s Republic of AREBHBZEBKURPEARALM
China (the “PRC") and Malaysia. ([FRE]) RS2k -

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers BREAKBINBEERPZAEBRFZZE
is presented based on the location of the customers and B EPREHEEmmEES - F
distributors. Information about the Group’s non-current assets MAEBIIERSEEZCENNIREEE
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets. FTEMBMNEZS] -

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMEEF 2Kz FRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—EF-AF ~“T)\F ZF-hE ~—T)\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEX FHETT FHET FET
Hong Kong a8 - — 402 475
The PRC s 89,162 83,233 517,236 521,730
Macau B 56 2,529 - —
89,218 85,762 517,638 522,205
Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax assets. Wi : ERHDEETPESR T ARELER
Information about major customers FEEFER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total BB BI0% s BFE 2T -
revenue are as follows:
2019 2018
—B-hAE —FN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Customer A = FH 13,341 23,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

OTHER INCOME 7. HiWA
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FiBT
Interest income FE WA 2,947 1,806
Government grants BT B 257 172
Effective interest income from AREFKEZEEREN B KA
investments in convertible bonds (fF3E19)
(note 19) = 83,266
Imputed interest income from amount ~ fE U —RIBF 2 AR KB 2 (HE
due from an associate (note 22) FLE A (Ff 5E22) 6,883 5,270
Loan interest income from an associate & B — B8 & 2 7 2 B3 H 8
(note 22) WA (K 3E22) 127 -
10,214 90,514
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 8. HMWBEREBFEE
2019 2018
—E-hF ZZZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BELEKEZEIE
plant and equipment (734) —
Change in fair value of derivative MR EFKREZITETIAESRS
component of investments in ZAFEEZS) (HE19)
convertible bonds (note 19) - (16,782
Change in fair value on financial assets ZAFEFABHZZE/REE
at FVTPL — investments in NEEEH - A RRESFKEE
convertible bonds 79,789 -
Change in fair value on financial assets &2 A FEFABRZZ L HEE
at FVTPL — bank structured product R F{E& &) — BITEBIEE R 61 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ] #t 1 & & & 55 & &5 18 (Kt 51 20)
investments (note 20) - (20,953)
Reversal of impairment loss on other 4 [8] £ty jiE U 218 R (B & 18
receivables 2 -
Provision for impairment loss on trade & 5 JE Ut BR 20 R (B BT 18 B 46 5 48
receivables, net (note 24) (B 3E24) (255) (3,218)
Bad debts recovered B B s ER = 3,431
78,863 (37,522)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

9. BRFFEHATRR

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 7 FHET FET
Profit before income tax is arrived [ Ffr 15 %t B % £
at after charging: BB T %18
Auditor’s remuneration % R Bl & 700 798
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEAS M E A B 5 17
payments 234 233
Depreciation of investment REMERE 15
properties 59 60
Depreciation of property, plant ME - -BMENKREBITE 16
and equipment 6,237 6,327
Cost of inventories recognised as R AERA 2 FE
expenses A AN 39,618 43,713
Operating lease charges in EETHREFZ
respect of land and buildings KEHEER 1,826 1,826
(Reversal of)/Provision for FERERBIE(ER),
impairment loss on inventories, 1 {4 % %8~
net* (44) 85
Staff costs (including directors’ EIXRA(BIEES
emoluments) )
Salaries, bonus and allowances ¥4  {E4T & 2 8L 21,038 23,362
Retirement benefits scheme RKE AT B
contributions 2,705 2,484

included in cost of sales

* A E KA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERESTHAEMS
EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid and payable to the directors of the REEBENMEENTFARAAEZESEZ(H
Company, which include the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) for EITHAE (1T 2 F15
the year are as follows: m
Salaries, and Contributions to retirement
Fees other allowances benefits scheme Total
e FERHEAMZE BAERGEMR Fo
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

SE-AF “FT\F SE-AE CT\F ZR-RF "3 \F CZE-AE “FNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHZ  TET  Tex Tz Tz TEx  FER  TEX

Name of director Expsg
Xie Yi H% 70 70 1,316 1,316 - - 1,386 1,386
Lou Yi Bl 70 70 487 487 - - 557 557
Cheng Yong 25 70 70 487 487 - - 557 557
Wong Sau Kuen T5 70 70 787 787 18 18 875 875
Liu Kwok Weh BRE 70 70 995 995 18 18 1,083 1,083
Lu Zhigiang &5 70 12 650 647 - - 720 659
Fang Lin Hu FME 70 70 - - - - 70 70
Xue Jing Lun BERfa 70 70 - - - - 70 70
Jin Song 21 70 70 - - - - 70 70
630 572 4,722 4719 36 3% 5,388 5,327
Xie Yi is also the CEO of the Company and his emoluments HBRIMMABRNATITEHER - HE Fa
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as EMeBRIEEEATTHEAXKTIEEHR
the CEO. BZE -
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors RZMEFEENAN - 2N EE I E [ ({0
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as EEYNHE  EANARERA
compensation for loss of office for both years. None of the B BB ESEREMEE - NEZm
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for HEER BEIFMNEETREXRRE =
both years. WMEREEMHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For th

11.

e year ended 31 March 2019 HEZE-_ZT—hF=-A=+—HILFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, SENIOR 11. AV EESEFMA T EEE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND BEAEMEREERA
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS

(@) The five highest paid individuals @ EumESHFMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2018: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
10 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2018:

AEBRUSEHEMALTHRIEA
(ZZ2E—N\F WOB)AEARAE
FHEZHER EXHWEI0ORN
BE - Ep—R( 22— N\F: —

one) individual was as follows: BIATZHEWT -
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FiBT
Salaries and allowance e KoERL 758 761
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR £k 1@ Fl 5 2 4 2k 8 7
766 768

The emoluments of each of the above highest paid
individuals (excluding the directors of the Company) were

biigssFMAL(TEEXR
RAEFR)zMEN F T HE

all within the following bands: A
2019 2018
—E-NF —T)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals and directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office, and no highest paid
individual has waived or, agreed to waive any
emoluments.

RZMEFEA - KB E R
T i # A - R EE S
T ERMAREE N ARRKZ

HE D S BE B 15

R ERSH

A £ DE R B R E L A B

& o
&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, SENIOR 11. TV ESHFMA LT S E
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND BAEMEREERF @)
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (b) BERHESTE

On 24 August 2012, the shareholders of the Company RZE——HFNAA=Z+MH K
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the N T I BR ML BR AN T BE AR R AT &)
“Scheme”), as the share option scheme adopted by the (IZ=zt2)) RRAXAIRN=
Company on 8 August 2002 expired on 14 August 2012. TR _FNAN\BERMNERRE
The Scheme became effective on 29 August 2012 after HEWER—_E——FN\A+HIA
obtaining approval from the Listing Committee of the JEW o ZETEIERSB M E™
Stock Exchange and, unless otherwise cancelled or ZESHERR T —ZF)\A
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date. TtHABER BIEAE M A

BB ER] - BRIZE S B %

ARG TFEN—BEAM-
The Scheme provides incentives and rewards to eligible ZTE AEHAEBEERIELH
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s BRivcEER2HEERBERR
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Bl Zet B2 ERZHEER
Company’s directors (including independent non- EARRNAEFR(BIEEIERTT
executive directors), other employees of the Group, EE) AEEZEMES A&
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of ZEMBIRGHER K&
the Group, and any non-controlling interests in the EPRARAEIM B AR 2 EMAE
Company’s subsidiaries. TR AE R ©
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or MARFEZEE BEaRTHRABL
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their FTERRRBEE2EMBEAR
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the LSRR AEAEEE I IEHR
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any TEEE - N MR EMR2
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an EABMERRNAREERTLE
independent non-executive director of the Company, or VHERATESTIRSE2AMBE
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares ABERZ(EMERE S RER
of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate AATRERERE ZTRG
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the 201% @ sk E (R A D E R’
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any DR EEBEEBRTE)BB
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in 5,000,000/ 7T © BIZBE LRI E
advance in a general meeting. R FEREIE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in
writing within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
shall be determined by the directors at their absolute
discretion, but in any event shall not be more than 10
years from the date of the offer of the share options. The
directors of the Company may at their absolute discretion
impose any vesting period at the date of grant.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

From the effective date of the Scheme to 31 March 2019,
no share options have been granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the Scheme.

M. AN ESHFHA LT SEE
BAEMEREERH @
(b) EEIREFE @)

ARARREZZRABE218
N REXMEHIBTZRER
RER UEEERRHERE
2R MR HBREZITES
HEZZRBBRE HEERD
M AFERBREERE B HEst
10F - ARAEZAREE B H
ERBBEREEMNEBEH -

BRECITEEIHESET
ABGERRT=ZFPZERD
F (AR RORE LB SMAE
Bt S P B AR BT R 2 T (B (i)
ARABRMHNREER K BHATR
BEEXBEBIABRRABZ
FHUYTHE - KA~ 7 R
ROUB#HzEE-

BREYTHETHE AEDIRR
BHERBERAGREZER -

BZAtEERBRE—_T—NF
ZA=+t—BLHHE #BEER
BRBE AT EER L 1TE &
IR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, SENIOR 11. TV ESHFMA LT S E
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND BAEMEREERHN @
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (Continued)

(€) Retirement benefits schemes () RIKEFGHE

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund REBERLRNMAMBEEEENE
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees BEMBZZz@slERESEE
in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the ([®iEELTE)) -BRFELHE Y
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the BiERHEHIE AT EEM R E
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The HMAERFHERERETRD R
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those Bota v EEHEAER B E
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent PHEEFEE RESZEERBE L
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the RTEAES c RERE2FE 2
employer and its employees are each required to make WA - EBEEXTREEEHS AR
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. ZEHIZBRIEEZ L RAE 2
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF X - AEBEHERELEEZ
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the M — ST A RET 2 E R EH
scheme. Ko
The retirement benefits cost of the MPF Scheme charged RGEEERMEMEERZERT
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Bk 2 58 18 & 51 23R K& FI| B A
comprehensive income represents contributions payable EAREBIZEZFAETH RE
to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of NES MR-
the scheme.
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are AEBZHEFBEARIEE AH
members of the state-sponsored retirement benefit FRE B M T T R AR A
scheme organised by the relevant local government REBERBFEEKE - B
authority in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to NEIARAEEEHFEZETAD
contribute, based on a certain percentage of the salaries trmEREFEEIHE  BEE
of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and HEERAN WA AA] B R T RAR
have no further obligations for the actual payment of TRRREBERF 2E—FTEE-
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

12.

INCOME TAX 12. A8
The amount of income tax expense/(credit) in the consolidated SZEBEMEMEEKERT ZE
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income B E(Ee) B -
represents:
2019 2018
—E-hE ZZZE—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current tax BB 5 18
— Hong Kong — &8 12 45
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEEREH = -
— Other jurisdictions — HEfbh Bl AR 40 40
52 85
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHEERE
— Hong Kong —H5A = -
— Other jurisdictions —HEMalEER 2 -
2 -
50 85
Deferred tax EIET 1A
— current year —KFE = (a7
— (171)
Income tax expense/(credit) SRt (%) 50 (86)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 8.25%
(2018: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the first
HK$2 million under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime

effective on 1 April 2018.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2018: 25%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

BEA-ZTE—N\FNA—BEERZ
MBFERBEGEE - BERNEET
1% 8 2,000,0007% 7T 1l 5 FE 3R B i 7 LA
i *&8.25% (= F — )\4F : 16.5%) fEH
B -

BEFBRCERBHE(EEMSH
EDREEMBREBRIES P
WMEARZR R AB25%(—ZF — )\ F :
25%) °

REMBEERESEZHBATIIZE R
ADEERIRITHEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & - ZE—AF=A=+—

12. INCOME TAX (Continued)

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before income tax expense in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

= e MG wRE

12. FT B H @)

AEEMEHRI B/ (ER)

o (#%)

HIEFE

HRA A

mREMEERERAIZEAER

SRR R E R

follows:
2019 2018
—E-AFE —ZZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Profit before income tax expense bR BT 15 B 2 A s 63,374 29,186
Tax calculated at domestic income tax ZEANRBATI A ERIEBER 2
rates applicable to profit or lossinthe A FrSF T Rt & 2 518
jurisdictions concerned 9,190 (5,682)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible N 155 2 B2 2 T 75 57 ’i‘ 1,242 6,997
Tax effect of income not taxable TR WA ZRBEZE (13,652) (1,233)
Tax effect of temporary differences not KRR =B BT E
recognised (14) (1,525)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTRIBEIE Z RMETE 3,284 1,357
Income tax expense/(credit) FTsfiE (%) 50 (86)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. ERER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share KRB EEAEBLEREAREER
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following F Ty T 5| EUE st & -
data:
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Earnings 2R
Earnings for the purpose of basic ARFTESRERZRN 2 ZF
earnings per share (Profit for the year (KR RIHEAB A B AREE
attributable to owners of the Y A1)
Company) 64,030 29,930
Effect of potential ordinary shares: BELER 2
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESFE
(note 31) (fF7E31) 7,823 6,590
Earnings for the purpose of diluted ARFTESREBEERFN AT
earnings per share 71,853 36,520
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE—N\#F
’000 ’000
T F i
Number of shares B 17 8 B
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AR FHE &I E A & F 2 %@ %
shares for the purpose of basic h0#E S 15 £
earnings per share 2,390,000 2,390,000
Effect of potential ordinary shares: BEL @R R
Convertible bonds IR E S 900,000 900,000
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEREERA T 2 T @R
shares for the purpose of diluted I &
earnings per share 3,290,000 3,290,000
14. DIVIDEND 14. R E
No dividend was paid or declared by the board of directors B -_Z—NWEF=Z=A=Z+—B1#*F
during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: nil), nor has any E-2EedAXRNXETIREMIEKE
dividend been proposed since the end of reporting period. (ZE—NF: 8| MEBRSHAKR

KA R R AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REY =

HK$'000
FAET
COST R
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018, R_ZE—+FMWAE—HB - —ZE—N\F=ZA=+—H"
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 —E-N\FWA—BEZE-AFE=ZA=+—H 8,057
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:itif& R E
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2017 RZFE—+FMWMH—H 6,560
Charge for the year NEFZD| 60
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—HEZZF—N\FWEOA—H 6,620
Charge for the year RNEFH|F 59
At 31 March 2019 RZE—-hF=A=+—H 6,679
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REFE
At 31 March 2019 RZE-—hF=A=+—H 1,378
At 31 March 2018 RZE—NEFE=ZA=+—8H 1,437

The above investment properties are depreciated using the
straight-line method, after taking into account their estimated
residual value, over the lease terms of the leasehold land.

The Group’s investment properties are located on land in the
PRC with land use period from 1992 to 2042.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2019 amounting to RMB3,200,000 (2018: RMB3,200,000) has
been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out for that
date by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
valuer not connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived
at by direct comparison approach with reference to market
evidence of comparable transaction prices for similar properties
as available in the relevant market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 H#EZ —Z—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
March 2019 is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement and
based on the properties highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use. The following table presents the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement of these
properties are categorised (Level 3), based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value is unobservable. The valuation
takes account of the condition and location of the buildings in
the valuation of the property.

15. R E W% @)

R-ZF-NF=ZR=1+—H XKH
Z&ﬁ%%Z FEEF=-ZREEKE
ARTEFELAERDERITERS
ER(EEERAZMER) - TXR27
REAFEFHEBARBZ TAEE
%seF‘HﬁZ—r%%ZQEFTEﬁE“*EZ
RFEER(B=ZH)  EHMEET
fBEE ZEEEFREFIHAAR
& -

2019 2018
ZE-NFE ZZ-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®TE

Fair value hierarchy NEEER
Level 3 BE=M

3,200 3,200

There was no transfer among the categories in the hierarchy
and no changes to the valuation techniques during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

HE-T - NER-FE-N\F=H=
T RILEE AR E N2
T - (EE T R

m EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZZEIERER AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥  BERKE
Furniture,
Plant and fixtures and Motor
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
- BE
BT BERME HERRE AE et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEL FTAL FAET TET
COST AR
At 1 April 2017 R-_ZE—+FMA—H 130,166 35,308 6,799 4,408 176,681
Additions NE 24 76 24 — 124
Exchange realignment & WA 13,972 3,972 265 433 18,642
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-—NF=A=+—H
1 April 2018 k=ZZT—-N\FMNA—AH 144,162 39,356 7,088 4,841 195,447
Additions NE — 1,202 26 186 1,414
Disposals HE - (1,212 - (235) (1,447
Exchange realignment BE i & (8,128) (2,316) (156) (252) (10,852)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=+—H 136,034 37,030 6,958 4,540 184,562
ACCUMULATED B ERRE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2017 R_E—tFWOHA—H 13,438 7,781 5,673 3,950 30,842
Charge for the year REZHFH 2,811 2,932 388 196 6,327
Exchange realignment & WA 1,137 1,059 221 392 2,809
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-—NF=A=+—H
1 April 2018 M—ZE-NFWNA—H 17,386 11,772 6,282 4,538 39,978
Charge for the year KEFY L 2,812 2,931 294 200 6,237
Write-back B[l — (360) — (235) (595)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A% (734) (692) (138) (234) (1,798)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=RF=+—H 19,464 13,651 6,438 4,269 43,822
NET CARRYING AMOUNT & H &

At 31 March 2019 RZE-—NF=A=+—H 116,570 23,379 520 271 140,740
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=ZRF=+—H 126,776 27,584 806 303 155,469
Depreciation expenses of HK$1,098,000 (2018: HK$1,180,000) & % 1,008,000 t( =T — N\
and HK$5,139,000 (2018: HK$5,147,000) have been charged £ 11,180,000 JT ) % 5,139,000/% JT
in administrative expenses and cost of sales respectively. (ZZ— J\F : 5,147,000/ 7T) E & 5l

RITRERAREEKREAFRINE -
The Group reported segmental loss of HK$3,633,000 (2018: FERN RNEBRERESP Bz HE
HK$3,695,000) for the Manufacturing segment during the year. &5 18 A&3,633,000/8 o ( =& — )\ F :
3,695,000 JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

As set out in note 5, management has made reference to the
independent valuation of the buildings for the estimation of the
recoverable amount. In addition, management conducted an
impairment assessment on the segment as a whole and the
recoverable amount of the segment, which is determined on the
basis of fair value calculation, is higher than the carrying value of
the segment’s non-current assets. The directors are of the
opinion that no impairment provision is required.

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

16. ¥  BEKRE @

MKt EsmE EREE2ERTZE
ME1E ABET A A E SR e A
BEEHEBDBETRENG M
DREzAKEEEREAFEFE
BE)RRNOBIRBDEEZIREME -
E=RRBAFELBMERE -

17. EHHESR

HK$’000
BT
CcoST B
At 1 April 2017 R-ZZE—+FWMA—H 13,704
Exchange realignment b X 3 1,094
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R ZZE—N\F=ZA=+—HEZZT—N\FWEOA—H 14,798
Exchange realignment & H A (636)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—hh&E=A=+—H 14,162
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Z:t# & KA E
AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMWOH—H 4,405
Charge for the year KEEZEH X 233
Exchange realignment BEE 34, 3 28 143
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R -ZE—NF=ZA=+—HB K _-_Z—\FWAH—H 4,781
Charge for the year REFH|Z 234
Exchange realignment [ 5 (89)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—hhFE=A=+—H 4,926
NET CARRYING AMOUNT BR R B
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=+T—A1 9,236
At 31 March 2018 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H 10,017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued) 17. AR HAES R @
PREABELIAERE RN FEEA
T AR AEEKRBE T LI
AERINEBEINCREARIA
FERHENR - EHIB40Z=50F F A
BERRE -

Al land in the PRC is state-owned and no individual land
ownership rights exist. The Group acquires the right to use
certain land and the considerations paid for such right are
recorded as prepaid lease payments, which are amortised over
the lease terms of 40 to 50 years using the straight-line method.

Impairment assessment was conducted by management as
mentioned in notes 5 and 16. Management concluded that no
impairment is required after the assessment.

B FESAI1GAT AR - M E IR A TTR
B - BEEEFERARBAEL
AR -

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B E&E

Gene
invention
rights Goodwill Total
HEEZHEE (GRS #et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT
COST 5%
At 1 April 2017, RZZE—EFNHA—AH -
31 March 2018, —E-N\FE=Z/A=+—8H"
1 April 2018 and —E-NFHNA—BK
31 March 2019 —E-hAF=ZA=+—H 95,000 1,807 96,807
ACCUMULATED EFEBERRE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2017, RZE—EFMHA—H -
31 March 2018, —E-N\E=ZA=+—H8H"
1 April 2018 and —E-N\FHA—AK
31 March 2019 —Z-AFE=ZA=+—H 95,000 — 95,000
NET CARRYING AMOUNT R EE
At 31 March 2019 R—ZE—-—NLF=A=+—H — 1,807 1,807
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H — 1,807 1,807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

19.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/
INVESTMENTS IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 28 July 2014, the Group completed the disposal of 51%
equity interest in Smart Ascent Limited and received
consideration with fair value of HK$435,193,000 comprising (i)
cash payment of HK$65,000,000; and (i) convertible bonds
issued by Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited (“Innovative
Pharm”) on 28 July 2014 with principal amount of
HK$715,000,000 (the “Innovative Pharm Bonds”) and fair value
of HK$370,193,000.

The Innovative Pharm Bonds bear interest at 3.5% per annum
payable in arrears annually with maturity on the 7th anniversary
of the date of issue of the Innovative Pharm Bonds (the “Maturity
Date”). The Group has the right to convert the Innovative Pharm
Bonds into shares of Innovative Pharm at any time from the
date of issue to the Maturity Date at an initial conversion price
of HK$2.5 per share.

BAFEHFABSZZEHE
E/MHREZRE

R-ZZE—MNE+A-+N\B KX&EE
EREEEEER AR Z51%KH#E -
I g B A F 1E & 435,193,000 7T 2 1
& &7 B8R 17 365,000,000
T MR ZE—WFEELA =+ /\H
HMEMBEEEYRIFAER AR ([E
A %) B2 7 A & 58 A 715,000,0007%8
LA BREF((EMBEES])
ifm A 3¢ {& 4370,193,00078 It °

FAE BB SN R EI5% T F X
N2 R8  BIH B AEA S 5
GESMEETEAFACHSEA] -
AREHEENETAPEIMA AL
B 1R 45 S 8 R 5 R ) S IR 1B
BR2EETHIRAEREERG 2 B
Ao
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19.
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/INVESTMENTS
IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The fair values of the Innovative Pharm Bonds components on
initial recognition and as at 31 March 2019 (2018: derivative
component) are determined based on the valuation conducted
by an independent qualified valuer. The methods and
assumptions applied for the valuation of the Innovative Pharm
Bonds and its components are set out as below:

4
K

BRAFEFAEBEZZE®ME
/n BRRESKRE @

%
%

EMBEEELFNNARERERR_-F
—NE=ZA=+— EZZHW*B (=
T-N\F EIALD)2AFETD
ERBULAEBERMGEMETZEEN
BEE HEMBEAESFIEAKID
ETEEMERZ T ARBRETM
T

Debt Derivative

component component Total
T
BEHBD IAHS #st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—tFMA—H 355,246 21,078 376,324
Effective interest income BEERMEWKA 83,266 — 83,266
Interest income received E LGN ON (25,025) — (25,025)
Change in fair value NEEES — (16,782) (16,782)
At 31 March 2018 under BEESETEIEFERZ

HKAS 39 —)\E_ﬂ =+—H 413,487 4,296 417,783

Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 RMBEBTHREERNEIR L
&

At 1 April 2018, as restated RZE-N\FMA—R L&
Interest received 2 8

Change in fair value RNEEZD

At 31 March 2019 RZBE-NF=ZA=+—8H

(Note below)
(N3 H &) (2,810)

414,973
(25,025)
79,789

469,737

Note:  Investments in convertible bonds were previously split into two
components — debt component and derivative component which were
measured at amortised cost and at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) respectively under HKAS 39.

Under HKFRS 9, these investments are classified in its entirely as
financial assets measured at FVTPL. The difference between the carrying
amount of these investments and its fair value as at 1 April 2018
amounting to about HK2.8 million is recognised in retained earnings.
Subsequent changes in fair value of these investments are recognised in
profit or loss.

Bii: AAMESRARMRKD AAES
—EBBIRFETASS  EREE
% 5 B 309 5 B IR B 8K A R
BATFEIABER(RAFET AR
BDHE-

WEEAVBRELENFOH 25
BEBRBIBARAFEFABZEF
EYERMEE-R_ZT—N\FNA—
B ZSREZEEEEEQAFEZE
8 49 /2,800,000 T R 1R B & F| &
RoZEREZATFEEGRBHNIBS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 H#EZ —Z—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/INVESTMENTS
IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company received
interest of HK$25,025,000 (2018: HK$25,025,000) from the
Innovative Pharm Bonds.

At 31 March 2019, the fair value of the Innovative Pharm Bonds
as a whole is calculated using the Binomial Model.

At 31 March 2018, the fair value of debt component of the
Innovative Pharm Bonds on initial recognition was determined
using the prevailing market interest rate of similar non-
convertible debts and is carried at amortised cost subsequently.
The effective interest rate is 24.67%. The fair value of the
derivative component, which is the embedded conversion
option in the Innovative Pharm Bonds is calculated using the
Binomial Model.

The inputs into the model at the respective dates are as follows:

HEz_Z-hAhF=ZA=Z+—81
FE ARARWEEMEEESF
825,025,000 (= & — )\ F:
25,025,000 7T) °

R-ZFE-NF=ZR=1+—H EME
BEFZEBEBRATFEA-BAAEAG
A

R-ZFE-NF=ZR=1+—H EME
BEFEGIHEONVBEREZ AP

ENZEBEUAAIBREH2RTMS
MEEFEUEREZBEHAAINER B

R R AB2467% - HTHE T BRI 5 (5B
MEBEsEEsF R ABRRE) 22T E

ANZBARAFE -

ZEARNSBHAMAEABERAT

2019 2018

—E-hE —TN\F

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FAT

Stock price (HK$) M th B+ (& L) 0.40 0.495
Conversion price (HK$) R (E (B T) 2.50 2.50
Discount rate Bh 15 & 23.494% 22.185%
Risk free rate (Note a) = 2 e R & (MY 3Ea) 1.367% 1.626%
Expected volatility (Note b) 8 B ia (B 52 b) 27.450% 47.415%
Expected dividend yield (Note c) TE HRR% B K (Y 3Ec) 0% 0%
Option life (Years) HA 4 HABR (R BR) 23 3.3

Notes: it 5

(a) The rate was determined with reference to the vyields of Hong Kong (@) ZNEDNREREBERNFEERESER
government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of valuation. HEBHZESRET -

(o) Based on the historical price volatility of Innovative Pharm for the period (o) HEREMEBEEN _ZZTNFLA+N
from 18 July 2008, the date on which its shares were resumed trading HERMREREEBRZZBH)ESR
after suspension, up to the end of the reporting date. HE B R IEEM 2B EEE IR

‘i

(©) Estimated with reference to the historical dividend payout of Innovative (€ SEEMBEZBERBIRMNMGET

Pharm.

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZZEIERER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Excepts for investments in convertible bonds classified as
financial assets at FVTPL as disclosed in note 19, other financial
instruments at fair value are shown as follows:

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIRVALUE/ 20. 2R AV EstEZzE¢m I E~

AREERE

BRI 19 EE D BRI A FER
ANERZERMEECARBREAESKE
Sho EIRAFEAEZERIAH
FIEAT

2019 2018

—E-NnEFE —T)\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

Unlisted investment fund (note a) FLEmkERS (Mizta) - 59,047

Unlisted shares (note b) JEEM ARG (M 5Eb) = -

Bank structured product (note c) RITHEBIEER (MiEe) 1,769 1,875

At 31 March W=A=+—H 1,769 60,922
Analysed as: DA

Non-current assets EREEE - 59,047

Current assets A E 1,769 1,875

At 31 March WR=A=+—H 1,769 60,922

Unlisted investment fund and shares were previously classified
as available-for-sale investments, which were measured at
either fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
or at cost less impairment under HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
these investments are all classified as financial assets measured
at FVTOCI. The impairment loss in aggregate of about HK$24.0
million previously recognised in profit or loss is reclassified from
retained earnings to fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve (“FVTOCI Reserve”) as at 1 April 2018.
Subsequent changes in fair value of these investments are
recognised in FVTOCI Reserve and the cumulative gains or loss
on disposals are recognised in retained earnings.

Bank structured product was previously classified as available-
for-sale investment, which is measured at cost less impairment
under HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, this investment is classified
as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The above financial assets were denominated in HK$ and
Renminbi (“‘RMB”).

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 =Z—hEFi

FEMBREESRRDEMNDERA
HEERE  ERBEFESAENE
BFA BB AFEFAEMEZEE
@m((BAFEFARMCEZEKE]) X
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BAFEFARMCEZEAREAEZS
MEE - TAINBRTRERIAZBES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

#w & B %5 3 R Bl o (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 H#EZ —Z—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE/
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 2 June and 11 May 2017, Extrawell Enterprises Limited (the “Subscriber”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
subscription agreements with KKC Capital SPC, a segregated portfolio
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands (the “Fund”), and pursuant
to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for 30,000 and 50,000
participating shares in the Fund attributable to the segregated portfolio at
aggregate consideration of HK$30,000,000 and HK$50,000,000
respectively on the respective dates (the “Investments”) . The total cost of
the Investments of HK$80,000,000 was funded by the internal resources
of the Group.

During the year, the Group had recognised the fair value changes in other
comprehensive income in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
However, since there was a significant decline in the fair value of the
Investments noted at the reporting date, a fair value loss of
HK$59,047,000 (2018: an impairment loss of HK$20,953,000) was
recognised in the other comprehensive income (2018: profit or loss) for the
year in accordance with the Group’s policy.

(b) On 13 January 2012, Jilin Extrawell Changbaishan Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“JECP”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company subscribed for
RMB2,500,000 of the registered capital of BEiK( F/85) 2 FEEEREER D
&) (“Shanghai Longmark”) by way of capital injection. Shanghai Longmark
is a company incorporated in the PRC and engaged in provision of health
care management services. The subscription was completed in April 2012,
and the enlarged registered capital of RMB12,500,000 of Shanghai
Longmark was owned as to 20% by JECP and 80% by United Gene
HealthCare Limited, Shanghai (“Shanghai United Gene”), which
subsequently transferred its 80% interest in Shanghai Longmark to 5 #2fk
(B8 EEEREER AT (“REMK") in December 2012, Both Shanghai
United Gene and HgEAX are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Innovative Pharm. Shanghai Longmark was accounted for as an associate
of the Group upon the completion of subscription.

On 25 April 2013, JECP entered into a capital injection and subscription
agreement with 3 ZEJK and Xie Yi, a shareholder and director of the
Company, in which Xie Yi agreed to subscribe for RMB7,490,000 (the
“Subscription”) of the registered capital of Shanghai Longmark. The
Subscription was completed in August 2013, and the registered capital of
Shanghai Longmark increased from RMB12,500,000 to RMB19,990,000.
Accordingly, the Group’s equity interest of Shanghai Longmark was
diluted from 20% to 12.51%, and the respective shareholding of 2 AR
and Xie Yi in Shanghai Longmark was 50.02% and 37.47% respectively.
As a result of dilution, the Group considered it was no longer in a position
to exercise significant influence over Shanghai Longmark and Shanghai
Longmark ceased to be an associate of the Group. Shanghai Longmark is
accounted for as unlisted available-for-sale investments as the Group has
the intention to hold the investment for a continuing strategic and long-
term purpose and is measured at cost less impairment. The investment
cost was reduced to zero in prior years by share of loss of Shanghai
Longmark.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE/ 20. #Z 2~ ¥ &
] &

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS f# ()

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) B o - ()

(©  The amount represents short-term highly liquid investments placed in a © FZARBEEFRR—HF i
PRC state-owned financial institution, which are readily convertible to B AEEEKRAR S ZEHESRE
cash. These investments are all denominated in Renminbi with non- ERE - ZEREE2BHUARES
determinable return rate. The fair value of these investments is based on B MERBERDBRAIET %%
estimated return of 2.6% (2018: 3.2%), and the credit quality of these WEZAFETIIR26%(ZFE— N\F:
investments can be assessed by reference to historical information or 32%) ZEEtEHREL  MEZSFKEZ
external credit ratings, if any. As at 31 March 2019, none of these EEBENKL2EZR/FTERLINIE
investments is either past due or impaired and the Group’s maximum BRI E) FUTH R —NF
exposure to credit risk as at that date is the carrying value of these ZA=Z+—H ZEKREBRRBEHI R
investments. B MAEERZABMEGRZESEE

B rZEREREE-
The fair value of these investments that are not traded in an active market ZELEBWIFAETRMBES MAERD
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques FEDNERGHEEAEETE REFEAE
maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely RMGHEER ZEHEHFEIREER
as little as possible on entity specific estimates. BRZE TRAERDEKBEEEZE
TE & ©
21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. R—REEE AT 2ER
2019 2018
—E-hE ZZZE—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Cost of investment in an associate, R—HEBE AR 2 IREKA
unlisted (Note) 3£ b (B 5E) 337,000 337,000
Share of post-acquisition losses and JERNERERAHEMEER X
other comprehensive expense (6,938) (6,030)
330,062 330,970

Note: This represents the fair value as at 28 July 2014 of the 49% equity interest e iR EFERTNE  AEEMRES

in Smart Ascent as retained by the Group upon completion of the Disposal. BHEABEZN T —NELA TN
AZRAFE-

The Group’s associate, Smart Ascent Limited (“Smart Ascent”) REFB 7HBHESNREEBR AR ([#

is a private company with no quoted market price available for ENA—BRERR ERGHITET

its shares. The major asset held by Smart Ascent and its LHE-EERENBAR([#ELESE
subsidiaries (the “Smart Ascent Group”) is the intangible asset Nz EEEAEBETT
in relation to an in-process research and development project ZEEA (THETR2MED 2EFR

(“In-process R&D”) involving an oral insulin product (“Product”). EE BRSO RBEEZER(E

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has engaged an independent ml) e RZE—NAF=Z=A=+—H"

qualified valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited to conduct a valuation AEBEBCDZE-—RBILAEKGER

of the fair value of the interest in the associate for impairment EERBIEER QN2 A G

assessment. 2RI ANFEETHE LRTEE

BRIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

21.

172

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The asset-based approach was adopted in the valuation of the
fair value of the Group’s interest in the associate. In doing so,
various assumptions about the cash flow projections of the In-
process R&D and the Product were adopted. These
assumptions include the successful completion of the clinical
trials, obtaining of the regulatory approvals from the relevant
government bodies (in particular, the granting of the certificate
of new medicine and pharmaceutical manufacturing permit for
the Product by China Food and Drug Administration, now
known as National Medical Products Administration of the
PRC), and launching of the Product by January of 2022. The
recoverable amount of the interest in the associate is
determined based on the Group’s share of the estimated fair
value of the In-process R&D after taking into account the lack of
control discount.

Particulars of the Smart Ascent Group at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

21, R—EHE QT 2R @)

RAEEBRBERRAZESZZAF
BETHERENEEZ EILBRE
FoERAETRZMERERZRS
REEAEBEZSEBR - ZERBK
BRERZZEZZF— BRI TKER
KA BB EHRTES B E
(LERTERMEREEERER
(RRBBEREQEEEER)RERR
M EFEREREETATE) R
PER RBERARzEZZIRE
SR R BTSRRI ERIR
BASEEBEGHETP ZWEZHAR
FEEE -

EERBERBEHRRZFBET

Effective interest

Place of incorporation/  Class of held by the Group/ Measurement
Name of associate operations shares held Smart Ascent Principal activities method
AEE/EE
BENRAR AMAY EEHY P R 43 B Rl FEERER TEXK TEFR
Smart Ascent Hong Kong Ordinary 49% Investment holding Equity
A £ il REEKR g
Subsidiaries of Smart Ascent
EEZHBAR
Fosse Bio-Engineering Hong Kong/ Ordinary 51% Development and Equity
Development Limited China commercialisation of
oral insulin products
BHEEMIRERADA B/ HE g REkEmtkES RiE
e
Welly Surplus Development Hong Kong Ordinary 51% Inactive Equity
Limited
hBERBERAR £ il EEEK g
Nation Joy Industries Limited British Virgin Islands (‘BVI") - Ordinary 100% Inactive Equity
B EXERRA EREEUHS il LEXK P
(EBEREE])

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21, A—REBE QA Z2ER @
The summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted MENBZHBERBME(ERAEM
for any differences in accounting policies and a reconciliation to e BEEZE2EFLEABR) LR ESY
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, BEHERNEEmMECHENT ¢

are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FEx FAET
Non-current assets EMBEE 298,967 296,369
Current assets MENE E 4 2,136
Current liabilities Vi R=RE (74,466) (65,796)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (9,116) (13,587)
Non-controlling interests JEIEAR R (117,115) (113,708)
Non-current assets include the ERBEEBIEATEE
following:
Intangible assets — In-process R&D ML EFE — #1772 B 3¢ 284,260 284,260
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Revenue & = -
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive  (E518), &M &2 ®E (B ),/
(expense)/income Uk %5 48 R (908) 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 H#EZ —Z—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21, R—REBE QAT 2R @
2019 2018
—®-hE —T)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAETT
Net assets of the Smart Ascent Group 4B AELEFEBEEF
attributable to owners of Smart (El
Ascent 103,561 105,414
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7 5 B A ¥ 4 7 B /5 HE#E 25 bk I
interest in Smart Ascent 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest 7% £ & 72 it 4 (1 & — R B &
in Smart Ascent as an associate DAz ZRHEA 50,745 51,653
Adjustment for remeasurement to fair A EBEE QA FERVIRER
value of the assets of the Smart BHEHMTERAE
Ascent Group on initial recognition 279,317 279,317
330,062 330,970
22. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE/ 22. FE W — e DT R IE/E
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE TF—REgE DT
2019 2018
—E-hAE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Amount due from an associate fEU — B & R R R IE
Smart Ascent (Note a) # 4 (M sta) 29,388 22,505
Loan to an associate EBEXT—HEBE QA
Smart Ascent (Note b) A (MiEo) 5,027 -
174 EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZEZIERER AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

- = =+
22. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE/ 22 W —EEEARRE &
. + e =
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) RF—EBE QT @
Notes: B 3T -
(a) As at 31 March 2019, amount due from an associate is unsecured and (a) RZZTE—NF=A=+—H El—
interest-free. Principal amount of HK$41,941,000 (2018: HK$41,941,000) M E AR REBEAERMARREE - K
is expected to be repaid after 6 years from 28 July 2014. Accordingly, the % 5841,941,000% (= T — )\ F:
balance is classified as non-current. Such non-current interest-free amount 41,941,000 70) IR Z T — W F
due from an associate is recognised at its fair value of HK$8,455,000 +TAZ+ NBHEANFEREERE AL
upon the disposal of Smart Ascent at an effective interest rate of 26.99% BRSERE P EAIERS - BEEYK
per annum. During the reporting period, imputed interest income of —EBE AR ZERB R B KB T
HK$6,883,000 (2018: HK$5,270,000) is credited to profit or loss. & i B R H D (B 8,455,000 T
R BB F M R 526.99% © 1 #H & 5
A ff 8RS A 6,883,000 T (ZF
— \# : 5,270,000/ 7T) B 5t Az o
(o) On 27 July 2018, the Company and Innovative Pharm through their (o) RZE—)\FLtAZ++tH AR K
respective wholly-owned subsidiaries as lenders and Smart Ascent as EMBHBEARSEZTEZEEMNER
borrower entered into a shareholders’ loan agreement for a loan to Smart BIEAER 7)) RS (EBREZHA)ET
Ascent amounting to HK$30 million in total (the “Loan”), to be contributed S BRCRE R A R AR R
as to 49% i.e. HK$14.7 million by the Group and as to 51% i.e. HK$15.3 /30,000,000 T2 B (&%)
million by the wholly-owned subsidiary of Innovative Pharm, which would AN £ E R 14 49% 7 18 ( B114,700,000
be used to finance the working capital requirements of Smart Ascent L) MR BB BEIEHES1% R AR
Group for the oral insulin project. The Loan is unsecured, interest bearing 5,300,000/ 1) © A A4 O AR
at 5% per annum and has a repayment term fixed at 60 months after each BEEEZBEH L ELSERIEHBE -
drawdown of the Loan. ZERBERT . FHEB5%KER
FRBWZERIE60EA AEE -
In September 2018, Smart Ascent had drawn down HK$10 million of the RZIE—N\FNA ELERDRZERA
Loan, and the balance as at 31 March 2019 represented the Group’s 49% 10,000,000 L2 RIBE > MR T — AN
contribution to the Loan and the interest receivables. FZA=Z+—HZHEBEAEERZ
EFTIRHE 2 49% H & R EWF S -
As the provision of the Loan was made in proportion to the equity interest HRZERIRNEARIEA 2T
of the shareholders in Smart Ascent and on normal commercial terms, this IR 3R — AR P G RG] 3 Btk IB
connected transaction is fully exempted from the reporting, announcement HELHEIERR2RETLIHTHIE
and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.89 of the Listing 14A89IKTE N TR « A5 R AR HE 2
Rules. Also, the applicable percentage ratios in respect of this connected HWE-BIN  AREBILIER Ei 52
transaction are less than 5%, it therefore does not constitute a HHAB DL RERS% AR LT
discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing HMAAFUEBFB TN Z2AANBBTFTHRER
Rules. 5 °
As at 31 March 2019, loan to an associate is unsecured, carried interest RZE—NF=A=+—H8 EXx¥—
at 5% per annum, and repayable in 5 years from 24 September 2018. MEE AR AEER  RFHE5%:
During the reporting period, interest income of HK$127,000 is credited to B WEEB-_ZE—N\FALA-_F+IUHRE
profit or loss. AEFANEE - NEE A FIEKA
127,000 7L E 5t At 5 ©
‘€
23. INVENTORIES 23. ¥ &
2019 2018
—®-nE T \F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Raw materials R w1 %t 2,685 2,075
Work-in-progress £ 85 1,211 781
Finished goods UK o 1,928 1,244
5,824 4,100
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24,

176

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

24, ESREWBRFREKREE

2019 2018

—ZE-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAET

Bills receivables B RE& 1,490 2,063

Trade receivables Z 5 REUEER 58,722 61,318
Less: Provision for impairment loss on & : B 5 & Uk B 7 (5 &5 18 B 15

trade receivables (40,165) (42,305)

20,047 21,076

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly based
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally
ranging from 120 to 180 days, extending up to one year for
some major customers.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables (net of
provision of impairment loss on trade receivables), based on

AEFERERFEZRAIFTEAR
HOEHERP—MEBEEAMNK —
BBERT BEFEOESBHI1208E
180 ZEEH METEFERFAL
HERZ—F-

BORWEREBEZE(NKE S
FEMEFREBREFE EXNERA

invoice dates are as follows: BHRZERER D ATOT ¢
2019 2018
—ZE-hEFE ZZZE—NF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Within 90 days 90H A 10,932 10,410
91 to 180 days 912 180H 5,170 5,133
181 to 365 days 181 £365H 3,945 5,533
20,047 21,076

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables which are past
due but not impaired are as follows:

EEMERBIE S 5 E WK EE
WEREZREDITWT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Neither past due nor impaired AR BTN R R E 16,102 15,543
Past due but not impaired BEHERBE

— Within 180 days —180H A 3,945 5,533

Total et 20,047 21,076

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade receivables are assessed for impairment on individual
basis as well as a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 120 to 180 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are
creditworthy debtors with good payment records with the
Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,945,000 (2018:
HK$5,533,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

24,

BEZRERERARERER
()

B 5 R FUR @ B K B pg AT
WEFG BRI EBEGZEERE
BRASEAEEZBERTLER
HMANTEEERZBBRTFHEES
120E 180 H 2 /R £ 0+ DA Kz B2 jE Uk
FEABERZ2H R HEBEMRR

RBMITRBEZEZEREERRE
RASZZEBA RAEEARFN
K8 -

AEEESEREREHPERE
& # 53,945,000 L (=T — N\ F -
5,533,000/ 7T) 2 FEW BR R 3k 5 A
HE @ A EE & AR5 E R R
EEEEE-

The movements in provision for impairment on trade receivables BSRENIERBBEREESHMT :
are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE ZZZE—NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
At 1 April R A—H 42,305 34,953
Increase in loss allowance upon the RZZE—)N\FWUWA—BBEBEZ
transition to HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 &H B M E L BIE 9% 2
&5 18 & B 15 N 94 -
Provision for impairment on trade B RNEFORERE TR
receivables, net 255 3,218
Exchange realignment & 3 & (2,489) 4,134
At 31 March W=A=+—H 40,165 42,305
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

25.

26.

178

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 25 e FENREREMER
RECEIVABLES FIE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Deposits ®E 793 915
Other receivables H fth i W 5B 6,186 4,722
Prepayments ARG 636 593
Trade deposits BES%e 3,491 2,131
11,106 8,361
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 26. CEFWITER

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to a bank to
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group and
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank
deposits carry variable interest rates ranging from 1.3% to 2.7%
(2018: 0.58% to 2.0%) per annum.

EHEMBRITEREERRTRITAER
AEEERZEHRRITREREZE
RZEFR - BLOESRBEE - 2K
WIRTEFIREHMNEN FEF1.3%
F27%(ZF — )\F : 058%ZE2.0%)
A8 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. BE RBITHER
Bank balances carry variable interest rates of 0.001% to 3.25% MITHRILZH T EEFF0001%E
(2018: 0.001% to 3.75%) per annum. Conversion of RMB into 3.25%(=ZZF — )\ : 0.001% £3.75%)
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange R ANREN AN JFE S A
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and ZHNEE RGP A R A TE - S8 KA
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. FEEEHRE -
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are RELBReSEBBZEEAT KRNI
denominated in the following currencies: TE®BHE:
2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Euros (“Euro”) BT (TR 7T 1) 3,870 2,135
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) B (ET)) 74,021 80,250
RVB AR 9,238 9,710
United States dollars (“US$”) EdE ), 61,773 69,670
148,902 161,765
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade
credit terms granted to the Group range from two to three

months from the date of invoice.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on

invoice dates are as follows:

28.

ESRNRRARENRE

BORNER/TEE MAKEE
Bz REFEEHNTFEZAHR
AAME=MEA -

REZZAHZE FENMN KRR REN
SRZEREDTMT

2019 2018

—E-hnE —T)\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Within 90 days 90H K 3,202 4,714
91 to 180 days 91£180H 4,186 1,186
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 44 96
110 2 years 15226F 176 371
Over 2 years 2F LAk 517 549
8,125 6,916

29. AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

20. B —EBE QA FARIE

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Amount due to an associate FEF—EEE & A B RIB
Smart Ascent i - 19,780

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. In October 2018, the Group had fully settled the
amount due to Smart Ascent.

ZHREREER RERERERE
B-R-_ZE-N\FTAH AKECE
BEMEMNEEZFA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —Z&—

30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and movements
during the current and prior years are as follows:

30.

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

NE=ZA=+—HIFE

ELERBEE

A RBE SRR EEREA
EREDEENT -

Decelerated/
(accelerated)
tax depreciation

Charged to profit or loss for the year (note 12)

W ()

BETE

HK$’000

FETT

At 1 April 2017 R-_ZT—+FMmMA—H (102)

Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 12) R AEFiBzEK R (HF3E12) 171
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—HR

—T—-N\FMA—H 69
RAFERZET 2 (HE12) -

At 31 March 2019

RZE-NRF=ZA=+—H 69

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had unused tax losses arising
in Hong Kong and the PRC of approximately HK$6,223,000
(2018: HK$21,485,000) and HK$16,619,000 (2018:
HK$24,065,000) respectively available to offset against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams, except for that of
one subsidiary in Hong Kong of which management considered
its deferred tax assets would be crystalised in the foreseeable
future. Tax losses arising in Hong Kong may be carried forward
indefinitely. Tax losses arising in the PRC will expire in 5 years
from the year of origination since 2015.
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W-BE-AE=A=+—H K&
ERESKPEESI AT/ R
RERMEHNZASDEREEIED
Bl & 496,223,000 T (=T — )\ &F
21,485,0003% Jt) } 16,619,000/% 7T (=
T — )\ 4F : 24,065,000/ 7T ) c B K
KoaFBEAraIER Btk ERE
REEEESZ —HHMBRARARATR
Z%XT%EELLﬁﬁﬁE%vW
ERRELCHBEE - REBELEZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE
31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 3. TR ES
On 16 July 2013, the Company issued zero-coupon convertible E’\ —E-=F+HF+NH KNAQaEE

bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) with principal amount in
aggregate of HK$641,300,000 at the conversion price of
HK$0.6413 for each new share of the Company, which, if fully
converted, is equivalent to 1,000,000,000 new shares of the
Company to Mr. Ong Cheng Heang (“Mr. Ong”) and Mr. Mao
Yumin (“Mr. Mao”), each of principal amount of
HK$320,650,000. Mr. Ong was the non-controlling shareholder
and director of Smart Ascent prior to the completion of
acquisition of the remaining 49% interest in Smart Ascent by
the Group and Mr. Mao was a director of the Company until 5
December 2013, and is a shareholder of the Company in the
current year and the prior years.

The Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option of the
bondholders into ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.6413 per ordinary share on or before
the seventh business day prior to the maturity date of 16 July
2033, subject to anti-dilutive clauses.

The Convertible Bonds are issued in HK$. The fair value of the
liability component of the Convertible Bonds was
HK$20,712,000, which has been determined by the discounted
cashflow approach using the prevailing market interest rate of
similar non-convertible bonds and taking into account the credit
risk of the Company. The effective interest rate is 18.72%. The
fair value of the conversion option of HK$569,288,000 classified
as equity component for the Convertible Bonds was calculated

ZIS i@a%msoooooﬂ%mz? 7]
?ﬁﬂxﬁﬁ(rﬂﬁﬂﬂ ) - BBRER
FRARNBFKH0.64138B L R &
N ¥ 1% #E 8 F1,000,000,000 A% A& A
RIFEG  ATRBRES D BIEITT
Ong Cheng Heang %t & ([Ong 7t 4 1) &
EREEE(TELRE]D EADRE
B 17 N & 58.320,650,000 7T o AR &
B 52 U BB A 2 R $240% M 2K AT
Ongc £ BiEE 2 EERRBRERE
E MELAELCETARAEEHES
—E-=F+-AAB AL THRAK
FENMBEFEABARAIRE -

BEFEFBEATEER ﬂ%a T==
Etﬁ—i—/\EﬁT%tﬂ 2% Bl 2R
R B & i 8 0.64138 JT 5 A]
BMRESFABMAERARR 2 E BRI
B R EESE G TIRR -

AR ES T AB T EIT A AR E
(B EIH D 2~ FER20,712,000%
T HDERAECUETBREESZR
TMEHNERITEEBERARFZEER
Eﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%umixf%i"ﬁ%ﬂ
£18.72% o 8 5 A R AR & 5 1 25 36
o2 B 2 A Y {E569,288,00078 JT
TERAZEAEATE - ZEX 2 H

\\\

using the Binomial Model. The inputs into the model were as ABIET -
follows:
Date of issuance
16 July 2013
T EH
—E-=
tA+H
Stock price (HK$) A& (B L) 0.59
Exercise price (HK$) TEECGET) 0.6413
Discount rate 8538 = 18.72%
Risk free rate (Note a) R b F X (M 5Xa) 2.63%
Expected volatility (Note b) 8 HA % 1@ (Kt 5Eb) 66.55%
Expected dividend yield (Note c) TEEARR B W as & (M sEc) 0%
Option life (Years) HAREHARR (6F ,Hﬂ) 20
Notes: MfaT :
(@  The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong Kong @ ZMNED2EFERNES RESFR
government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of valuation. HEBHZESRERF
(o) Based on the historical price volatility of the Company for the period from (o) ERAQRATR_ZEZTANFE+_A=*+
24 December 2009 up to the date of issuance of the Convertible Bonds. NMAEHRESZRTHESHE/R™ B
EERRESE -
(©)  Estimated with reference to the historical dividend payout of the Company. ) SEARANBERBIRMSMGET -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 31. TRREF @)
Movements of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds nMmEESEAEXY 2B EEY W
are set out below: T
Principal
amount Carrying
(Note) amount
b
(Bt &E) IREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 April 2017 WZZE—+FMmMA—H 577,170 35,222
Interest charge B H — 6,590

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R-ZE-—NF=ZA=+—8BxK

—E-N\FMA—H 577,170 41,812

Interest charge B S — 7,823

At 31 March 2019 RZE-—NF=ZA=1+—H 577,170 49,635
Note: At the date of issuance, the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds fizx MNBE{THE TBRREEZ2ALEAS
was HK$641,300,000, and thereafter the following events have taken 641,300,000/ 70 M E % 3 £ 5| =

place: 15 :

On 5 August 2013, the Convertible Bonds with principal amount of N—_E—=F N NBAAB A"25EAE
HK$64,130,000 was converted into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the 64,130,000/ T 2 AT AR B H E B A
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.6413 per ordinary share. 100,000,000% 245 A &) & @ik - Eih(E A5

FHRE®AR0.64138 T ©

On 25 October 2013, 24 April 2014, 30 August 2014, 31 December 2014 R-E—=F+A-+HHE —T—MOF
and 30 April 2015, the Convertible Bonds with principal amount of MAZ+MA - —E—MENA=+H"
HK$320,650,000, HK$64,130,000, HK$64,130,000, HK$64,130,000 and —ET-NE+-_A=Z=+—BKR=-ZT—F
HK$64,130,000 were acquired by Innovative Pharm from Mr. Mao FWA=+H8 " &eiEH 5/320,650,000
respectively. 77T ~ 64,130,000/ 7T ~ 64,130,000/ 7T *

64,130,000 JT }264,130,00078 7T 2 7] #&
BEFDHEMEEAELERE -
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32. DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT 32. BUFHBY ZIEE W A

GRANTS
The amount represented receipt of grants by a subsidiary from EFBEE—RENBAREDR+FTRE
local government authority in the PRC. The movements in WK FEE 2B o BT B 2 1B &
deferred income on government grants are as follows: WAEBMT :
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
At 1 April RmA—H 4,220 2,767
Receipt of grants B Uk B 1,553 1,325
Recognised in profit or loss (note) RERERE) (257) (172)
Exchange realignment & o3& (249) 300
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 5,267 4,220
Analysed as: DA
Current liabilities mBEE 125 98
Non-current liabilities ErREBHaE 5,142 4,122
5,267 4,220
Note: Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included Misr : EEWE - - MENZEZBFEETA
in non-current liabilities as deferred income on government grants and are ERBEBEINIERF@E ZELEWR A
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other THREBEEZEHERRNIZE G E
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of FAGZEBELREMEEHKER -

the related assets.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

33. kA&

Number of shares

Share capital

BHEB [N
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NF ZZET-\F ZEBE-HLFE ZZT—)N\F
’000 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Fr T B FHET FAET
Ordinary shares of FlREE01EIIT Y
HK$0.01 each LR
Authorised ETE 20,000,000 | 20,000,000 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid BEITEAR
At the beginning and end 7 81 % £ [ B 44
of the financial year KR 2,390,000 2,390,000 23,900 23,900
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

34. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

34. ZIKR AT HHMR K

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHExT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NGIENCIPA X
— unlisted —3Em 39 629,927 629,927
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Yt /B A 7 Z I8 296,872 289,834
926,799 919,761
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other & & - 78 {218 & H 1
receivables FE Uq 3R 18 222 222
Cash and bank balances Re RBITES 85,279 88,619
85,501 88,841
Total assets BMEE 1,012,300 1,008,602
Current liabilities RBARE
Accruals and other payables TEIRB A MHEAEN
HIE 826 746
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE S & A B FE 86,412 76,776
87,238 77,522
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds ;R ES 31 49,635 41,812
Total liabilities “aeF 136,873 119,334
Equity =
Share capital & X 33 23,900 23,900
Reserves 1 35 851,527 865,368
875,427 889,268
Total liabilities and equity BEBERER 1,012,300 1,008,602
On behalf of the Board REESS
Xie Yi Wong Sau Kuen
EE EHE
Director Director
o -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & Z =—ZF—hF=-A=+—HIEFE

35. RESERVES

The Group

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are as set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in these
consolidated financial statements. The natures and purposes of
reserves within equity are as follows:

(@)

The share premium account represents the amount
subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, all
of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to transfer part of their profit after tax to the
capital reserve. Subject to certain restrictions set out in
the relevant PRC regulations and the articles of
association of these PRC subsidiaries, the capital reserve
may be used to offset losses or for capitalisation as paid-
up capital.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 1999, over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

Foreign currency translation reserve represents gains/
losses arising on retranslating the net assets/liabilities of
foreign operations into presentation currency.

Convertible bonds equity reserve represents the amount
allocated to the equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

FVTOCI reserve represents fair value reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period.

35. #1&

KEE

AEBFRBEZEDHFBEINZEFR
EMBRERZEAROEH RN -
mAREEZEERENET

(@ EMEERERERANSBEBD
[ 8 2 FRIE e

b REPEABEL ARBET
PRE R B MM B A RER
HEOBRBR S F BB EE A
B BARE BIFEEEBEERX
BEERNCASBREAN  HEAX
BB BROA I AT ELE T IR B R
EPEMBARERRMA 2R
BR -

© AEBZBABHRAREBEASKHE
R — A NEFETTE A T UM
BABRA 2 HEREBARRIE
REMBEZCBITRAREZZ
B o

(o EXFEEEERBIEBZEES
BEFEENRELZINNEEM
EEZWEEE -

€ FAMBEESESFEERERESS
Bt 7% R MY E4 A Bt AT AR (E 5
PR Z @t BURER Z AR A
BT BRESESE D TED
Bz 7R »

M BAFEFAEMEZEREFEE
BHERRBERREARERE
MRS ENFEIRBERER
FEFARMEE RS 2 BRAER
BRAVEZRAEHFENRF
Eféfm e
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= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 H#EZ —Z—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

35. RESERVES (Continued) 35. w#1E @)
The Company b/ NN
Foreign

currency Convertible
Share Contributed translation bonds equity Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
AR ES
BRORE BB ELRRE BEHE REBEAR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT TAET TAET FAT FAT FAT

At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+F
mA—H 191,738 64,636 3,862 512,359 55,631 828,226
Profit for the year N4 € Jia 7 — - (3,862) - 41,004 37,142
At31 March2018 R -Z—N\F
and 1 April 2018 =A=+—H
kZT-N\%F
MmA—H 191,738 64,636 — 512,359 96,635 865,368
Loss for the year KEEERE - — — — (13,841)  (13,841)
At31March2019  R-ZT—NF
=RA=+—H 191,738 64,636 — 512,359 82,794 851,527
36. OPERATING LEASES — LESSEE 36. REHE —HHEA
The Group had operating lease commitments for future AEBEBRTAIHBECEHEB T X }5
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating EEHENREAREHERE K
leases which fall due as follows: EEE AT
2019 2018
—E-hAFE ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT
Not later than one year TER—F 1,601 1,826
Later than one year and not later BR—FRTMERRAF
than five years - 1,601
1,601 3,427
The Group’s operating lease commitment represents rental of REEKEHEREEERAETH
its office with initial period of three (2018: three) years. Rentals S HZUIBRA=F(ZZE—N\F: =
are fixed over the lease terms and none of the leases included E) MHerHEAOBHNEFE  BHEHE
contingent rentals. ERFERES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BB AR S
(@ Save as the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere @ BREEMBERREMIByIFL
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had 2R RESRIN KREBRFENR
no other transactions with related parties during the year. WEAMBEB RS -
(b) Compensation of key management () ETEERE WM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRNESEMFTEEEEASR
management for the year are set out in notes 10 and 11. ZENE EAM 10811 ©
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. IAREE
As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any significant RZZE—AFE=Z=A=+—"H A&
contingent liabilities (2018: Nil). WEAERNERIRBE(ZZT—\F:
") o
39. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 30. RMIB AT 2R
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Registered/issued and Effective interest Principal
Name operation fully paid share capital  held by the Company  activities
ARy B/ HM/ BRI ERAR
£ RE kB R KA BERER TEER
2019 2018
—E-RE —T-)N\E
Directly held
HEEE
Extrawell (BVI) Limited BVI US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
. ordinary shares .
KBRZES 10,0003 7T & 38 i REER
Jilin Extrawell Changbaishan ~ China RMB33,000,000 100% 100% Development,
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. registered capital manufacture
and sales of
pharmaceutical
. _ ) B products
EMEEROLEXER HE AR #33,000,0007C M- RER
NG AR HEEM
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 H#EZ —Z—NWF=A=1+—HILFE

39. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. RKE A B 2 & ()

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Registered/issued and Effective interest Principal
Name operation fully paid share capital ~ held by the Company  activities
Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ/’é“ﬂ/ S/ BRI AR AF B N
8 ReEzwH RARRE ERES TEEK
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
Indirectly held
BEsE
Extrawell Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$20 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
HK$1,000,000 and property
‘ . non-voting deferred shares investment
BELEERAT Bk 207 T & @I Txéﬁﬁﬂx&%%
1,000, ooo,% T RE
ERERBIER D
Extrawell Pharmaceutical (HK) Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Provision of
Limited \ e agency services
BREX(FER)ERRA & 2R T EBMK RERE RS
South Asia Pharmaceutical ~ Malaysia US$1 ordinary share 100% 100% Marketing and
(China) Limited distribution of
pharmaceutical
products
BREE 1ETEBR HEREHER
Mega Asia Pharmaceutical ~ Hong Kong/China HK$10,000 ordinary 100% 100% Provision of
Limited _ shares agency services
KBEXARAT BB/ HE 10,0007 7T & 18 A% RERE RS
Changchun Extrawell China RMB50,000,000 73% 73% Development,
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. registered capital manufacture
(“CEP") and sales of
pharmaceutical
products
REGREZRNHER  HTH AE@%SOOOOOOOE % 8ER
Nal([RERE]D &R HEZEm
Best-Bio Developments BVI/China US$1 ordinary share 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
RBREZES/ 1ETEBR REZER
i
Right & Rise Limited BVI/China US$50,000 ordinary share 100% 100% Holding of gene
invention rights
and investment
holding
ERERESR/ 50,0005 7t & i@ i %ﬁ%l%ﬁfﬂ)ﬁ&
F REBER

EXRAINZARAINERE/ARTE
EFER/IERELAFEVHEEX
BRASEEEFEERNND M B

AR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affect
the financial results of the year or form a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group.
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39. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. R B AT 2 #E#= @)
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the RERSFFEFNTAER  HEHRB L
end of the year or any time during the year. AT EMEEES -
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries TR RNEFES T AIETEIRHEZ
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests: ZIEEMB AR ZFFE
Place/country of
registration/ Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ interests /voting rights held by Loss allocated to non- Accumulated
Name of subsidiary operations non-controlling interests controlling interests non-controlling interests
BR/EmARL/ FERESAEZ PREFERES
WEARER Lty /AR FeERRED RERLA ZE#R R FERES
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“EF-AFE ZFAF 0 ZE-AE ZF\F ZEBE-AF ZFNF

CEP PRC 21% 27% (706) (643) (5,066) (4,479)
RERE i

Individually immaterial
subsidiary with non-

controlling interests = (19) (15) (15)
BEEEREZZEN
PN
(706) (658) (5,081) (4,494)
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39. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. AME AT 2R @)
Summarised financial information in respect of CEP is set out ERRERBEZVUBENBES Y W
below. The summarised financial information below represents e THHMBERIBEAEBRRND A
amounts before intragroup eliminations. AT &5 -

CEP RERE

2019 2018
—E-AE —ZF—N\HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&TT
Current assets BB E 31,386 32,240
Non-current assets ERBEE 147,867 163,153
Current liabilities mEaE (180,526) (195,430)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (9,972) (9,122

Equity attributable to owners of the RNAGHEA AEERER
Company (5,747) (4,680)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R HE (5,498) (4,479)
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39. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. RKE A B 2= (@)

CEP (Continued) RERE @
2019 2018
—E-hE -—T-N\%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Revenue Wz 75,820 60,176
Expenses -2 (78,450) (62,624)
Loss for the year KEE A (2,630) (2,448)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company 7~ A R & A FE1L B8 (1,924) (1,805)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests JF 178 A% #£ 25 & (5 &5 18 (706) (643)
Loss for the year REEBIE (2,630) (2,448)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) KABIHAE AEMEME2E
attributable to owners of the Company Wz, (BAX) 393 (597)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) IR EREEEMER
attributable to non-controlling interests Iz, (F ) 145 (219
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for 7~ 4 & H 2 E Yz, (B &)
the year 538 (816)
Total comprehensive expense attributable  Zx A &1 % B A JEE 2 E B
to owners of the Company ekl (1,531) (2,402)
Total comprehensive expense attributable  JE¥ A% kE 25 FEAE & I BT L 48 58
to non-controlling interests (561) (862)
Total comprehensive expense for the year 784E 8 2 5 % 4458 (2,092) (3,264)
Net cash generated from operating RETHEE RS FE
activities 386 2,831
Net cash generated from investing KEETELEZRSFHE
activities 269 1,206
Net cash used in financing activities MEESTRA 2R F5E - —
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

—NE=ZA=1T—RHLFE

40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amount of financial
assets and liabilities:

40.

RENESIZCERMEER
Q@EEME

TRIAEREERABZREE:

2019 2018
—EBE-hAE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEBZZEMEE
Investments in convertible bonds as AR ESRIEE 2B EHD
a whole 469,737 —
Derivative component of investments in MR ERIREZITETLR
convertible bonds =2 — 4,296
Bank structured product IRITHBEE R 1,769 -
Available-for-sale investments AItHERE
Unlisted investment fund, at fair value FEMEEES  HAFE - 59,047
Bank structured product IRITHEBIEE R - 1,875
Financial assets at amortised cost HEBERATEZ S & MEE
(2018: Loans and receivables) (_ Z—\F BERRER
FRIE)
Debt component of investments in EI BMREHFKRE 2 EBLD
convertible bonds - 413,487
Loan to an associate EXT—MEBER ET 5,027 —
Amount due from an associate JE Uy — e B '.'sf UNEIE 29,388 22 505
Trade and bills receivables B EWEREE &FE 1451 = TJ““ 20,047 21,076
Deposits and other receivables & &H b E W FRIE 10,470 7,768
Pledged bank deposits 2 IRT 7(_ 2N 20,994 20,502
Cash and bank balances We LIB1TLHE 148,902 161,765
706,334 712,321
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHT FAET
Financial liabilities cRBE
Financial liabilities measured BREBENATECCRIBE
at amortised cost
Trade and bills payables ESRENERRENER 8,125 6,916
Accruals and other payables TEIRBRARHEME ﬁ FRIE 43,886 48,328
Amount due to an associate FE A — B 2 A Rl SRR - 19,780
Convertible bonds Al R E & 49,635 41,812
101,646 116,836
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. ZERE P ZEMEER
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY TRIEEHNE @
(Continued)
(@) Financial instruments not measured at fair @ YHFZEAFETFEZEH
value ITE
Due to short term nature, the carrying values of the loans HREHIME B R EIRRIE
and receivables, excluding debt component of (TEEBREESEE ZER
investments in convertible bonds, approximate fair value. o) s EHERAFEMES -
At 31 March 2018, in respect of the debt component of R-ZE—NF=A=+—H" 5
investments in convertible bonds, the fair value has been ABRRESEREZEE LD M
determined using discounted cash flow model and the FOATENANRRERER
carrying value approximates fair value. AETBEEEERAFTEMRS -
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value b) AT EFEz2EMIA
Financial assets at fair value through other BAFETAEMETEHKZ
comprehensive income (2018: Available-for-sale CEREE(ZE—)\F: A7
investments) — Unlisted investment fund, at fair HRHEERE) —FLFTREE
value Z 0 EAFHE
The fair value hierarchy is level 2. ANVFEERBE_H-
The market value, which approximates fair value, of this ZEL 2 MEMEAFERE) X
fund is primarily calculated based on the quoted prices of SEREBEIRBME Z2HE T
the underlying listed investments in active markets with B REFE WiEHETHE
certain adjustments made to reflect the interest of the NRMESFHEAZER -
fund holder.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss HAFEFTAEBEZZZTHE
(2018: Available-for-sale investments) — Bank E(ZE—-NF:gH#tHER
structured product, at fair value &) - RITEEMER &AL
FlE
The fair value hierarchy is level 2. ANFEERBE_H-
The fair value of the bank structured product is RITEBUEERMZATFTEDR
determined based on estimated return of 2.6% (2018: 3.2%) 26%(=F — )\F :32%) 2 {f
and the credit quality of these investments which can be AESRET MZEREZEE
assessed by reference to historical information or external BEAKL2ERTENLRITIE
credit ratings, if any, provided by the bank. HZINEEEFR(WME) T AT
1t o
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(b)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
— Investments in convertible bonds (2018:
derivative component of investments in convertible
bonds)

The fair value hierarchy is level 3.

The fair value of investments in convertible bonds (2018:
conversion options embedded in investments in
convertible bonds) is determined based on the risk-free
rate for the life of the option and share price (from
observable market data), expected volatility of the share
price of Innovative Pharm and expected dividend yield on
the shares and exercise price.

Significant unobservable inputs

Expected volatility of the share price of Innovative Pharm,
determined by reference to historical share price of
Innovative Pharm. The higher the volatility of the share
price of Innovative Pharm, the higher the fair value.

There were no changes in valuation techniques for the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at fair value, on a recurring
basis, by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

—NE=ZA=1T—RHLFE

fA%E#AE’Zfﬂ*
E—-IRBRREFRE(Z

JUE 7%&@%&Ezw
£ T A S)
ANFEERBE=ZM -

ARBEFRE(ZT - N\F:
ABRBRESREABBRAZERRK
BIZAFELENHEFHZ
ERBRMERBEECRAAEER
mISHE)  AMBEERERD
B8 B B An TB HA A B M &S R Je 1T
FEEEE -

BEAFUTHEBAZE

B E @Zhﬁﬁ%&%ﬁw

2EBME @ﬂﬁkﬁ#m

m S BN E R IR K $E£

HE_Z-—NErR_ZT—N\F=

B=Z+—BULEEE HEHEL

) o

TERBELEHEEERANFEE

BREAEBELATEFEZS

BT AEZDH:

F—M: EFBRWME LBEREE
HAEZRE(TIES
)

E_H — T B IR R E LA
N MEERBETE
B (BB ) s (A
FREER) TER
AEE &

FoM: WHEERATEBERMIS
HEZEESAGBZ
BABE (T ERE
AEIE) »
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. BRI E P ZEeRMEER
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY TRIEENEm:
(Continued)
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value b) BAFEFEzEMIEA
(Continued) (#8)
There was no transfer between different levels of the fair HE-_ZT—HAF=A=+—H1t
value hierarchy during the year ended 31 March 2019, FE QAFEERANZRE 2B
and there was no change in valuation techniques for the mEETEE MARRSEER T
following Group’s financial assets that are measured at R BEEMEEERAFENE
fair value on a recurring basis at the end of the reporting CJREBRBSRMEEZHEREL
period: 1 5 B
2019
—E-NEF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ EFIR EF=ZR @t

HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
TRER TER TER TER

Financial asset at fair BRAFEFAEM
value through other FHEWEZ
comprehensive income £ ft & & = = - -

Financial assets at fair EAFEFAERZ
value through profitor £ B & &
loss — 1,769 469,737 471,506

- 1,769 469,737 471,506

2018
—E-N\F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— B F=R @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET TET TAET TAET

Available-for-sale financial 7] £t H & 4 §t & &
assets — 60,922 — 60,922
Financial assets BEAFEFTFAERZ
at fair value through SREE
profit or loss — — 4,296 4,296
— 60,922 4,296 65,218
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value
based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as

0. ZHHE I 2EHMEER

kp
&
il
i
o
i
.

by ZBLAFVEFEZEMIA

(%)

BEEATATHEREG AZRE(F
B AFEFEZeM I A

follows: ZHERAT
Derivative
Unlisted component of
investments in unlisted
convertible investments in
bonds convertible bonds
FETHER
FEmARR BEREMN
BERE TEIAEHES
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—LFMA—H - 21,078
Change in fair value in profitorloss ~ RBZHHER 2 AT EE
(included in other gains and losses) GtAHMKRERER) - (16,782)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NF=ZA=+—H - 4,296
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 RMBEATHREERNEIR 2
TE 414,973 (4,296)
At 1 April 2018, restated KEIRZZ-NFHA—H 414,973 -
Interest received SR GRS (25,025) -
Change in fair value in profit or loss B2 A FE & &
(included in other gains and losses) (5T A Efh U zs 5 18) 79,789 -
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=+—H 469,737 -
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. B g E b B 38

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments in
convertible bonds, trade and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, trade
and bills payables, accruals and other payables, loan to an
associate, amount due from/to an associate and convertible
bonds. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

AERZIEcRIARENARE
HFIE E%ﬁ%% X R R
e kEMEKFE SERRTE
RRITESR BFERNERKEN
SE BREALEMGEMNKE &
KT — SRR B EN
BEQARFRARARKES ZFE
BMTAZFBREEMERE -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  41.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
such as foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The management monitors and manages
the financial risks through internal risk assessment which
analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.

(@ Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when commercial
transactions, assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the group
entities. The Group operates mainly in the PRC and
Malaysia and is exposed to foreign currency exchange
rate risk arising from various foreign currency exposures.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities in net position
as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

BEEREREm@m

AEBZEHSASERES B
R wmiERR - FEERR RD
EomRRAERR NEBE 2 ER
RRERFdEERESERTHE I
AEAM YSKEEREHAEE
MBRAZBEETNTE - EEER
BARRERFE oTEREENE
B EERERTBRER -

(@) HMEER P2

SMNERBNIFEEERINEER
LEBINEZRERS  BEY
BREELE -AKBZEHBEIER
TELSRADKEE TEES
BONEEL ZINEERER - &
5 B 30 5 0 S SNIE H R B - AR
m-EEESERIIERR I
1 170 6 B By 2 S 0 BB K HME [

)
2

RIB-NEFRZZT-NF=H
=t+t—B RIEFEZEEER

ERBEFEZKEENT
Euro RMB us$
BT AR E P

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET

31 March 2019 R-E-hAE=A=+—H

Pledged bank deposits BHIFIRITE R - - 18,687
Cash and bank balances Ne LBTES 3,870 1,876 13,065
Trade and bills payables B REMERNLEMNEE (2,580) = =
Overall net exposure 2 [E R R FEE 1,290 1,876 31,752
31 March 2018 R-ZEBE-NE=ZA=+—H

Pledged bank deposits BEHIFIRITE R — — 18,229
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRITER 2,135 1,953 13,553
Trade and bills payables BSRENERRENEE (1,264) — —
Overall net exposure 2 E R fg 55 871 1,953 31,782
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &Z—=

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The cash and bank balances denominated in US$ belong
to the group entities in which the functional currency is
HKS$. The directors are of the opinion that the HK$ are
reasonably stable with the US$ under the Linked
Exchange Rate System, and accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis of US$ with respect to HK$ is performed.

The following table illustrates the approximate change in
the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits in

—NE=ZA=1T—RHLFE

R ERERE @

(@)

S8 L B ()

NETHEZES NRITERE
R EE BT EBEE-
EERA ARNEH BIE X
ET BrHEETLHERT B
i I 1T IR T E B T 2 SRR
DT -

TRHAREEFRE N & RE
N Z R4 B B LA [ AR S R

response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign UTEFERDHERRR 2
exchange rates to which the Group has significant B [ 3= /) & 12 7] g
exposure at the end of each of the following years:
2019 2018
—E-hAE Z—ZFT—N\HF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Euro appreciated by 5% BT A E5% (65) (36)
RMB appreciated by 5% AREFES% (94) (81)

The change in exchange rates do not affect the Group’s
other component of equity. The same percentage
depreciation in the foreign currencies against the
functional currency of the respective group companies
would have the same magnitude on profit and retained
profits but of opposite effect.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of each of the reporting period and had been
applied to each of the group entities; exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next reporting date.

“@JT\@%%$EIE@%

CNEHERERFZY
”ﬁ%ZH B RES SR
Bg MEKEREEER®

2 .
Z

il

L
i

X B B
o

&

BRRE 0TI BRI E [ KR
EHmEMREHLELEDMEE
VTEANEEEER BT
EfAZzEREARRZBEF
oL RAA M E B R
M) R T EFHRR
EEEWIEERNEET @R
TRHAMEZAEIRES
BN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

4. B E R EE m@m)

Interest rate risk (b) FIZE R
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to NEB ZHESRENERR FE
variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balances (see HPOZE ARG E 2 EHART
notes 26 and 27 respectively for details). The Group FREBTESK (B EM
currently does not have interest rate hedging policy. o6 K27) B AEEREI
However, the management of the Group will consider ARG RIRE - R ANE
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need EERERMVNEBERZEEEHHEK
arise. The management considers the Group’s exposure FIRE - ERNHIBFNERZ S
to future cash flow interest rate risk is minimal taking into EM SEEBRAARNEERBEKTR
account the minimal fluctuation on market interest rate. KEESREMNEZEREMN -
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented. It BE 25 GURE ST -
Liquidity risk c RBEZRMK
The Group actively manages its debt maturity profile, NEBEBEEHEGEHIES
operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as MoREHReRERTBAE
to ensure that all operating, investing and financing needs T UAERAENAAELE &
are met. The liquidity risk management strategy adopted BENRMEEZTE  REEBRMNZ T
by the Group is to measure and forecast its cash HERBERREATENE
commitments and maintains a level of cash and cash BEReAELERS MRS S
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Group’s BEEB#FEANEEBEUNEMNK
activities. SEEB ZKF -
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining HF SN RE S Z 2
contractual maturities. T A
The table below summaries the maturity profile of the TRXEEBEASNHAMBEES
Group’s liabilities at the end of the reporting period based (BIEFERAE LT X MHB T
on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations g BIRIESRE B E 2 S F1f R
(including interest payments computed using contractual SFENRNBENR Bl AEER
rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the reporting RBEHRBEZZEBIE R -
date).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
= & M35 38 R B aE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —E—AF=ZA=+—HIFE

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4. B E R EE m)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) RBEZ R ®E
Weighted Total  Within1 More than More than
average contractual yearor 1yearbut 2years but
effective  Carrying undiscounted repayable lessthan2 lessthan5 More than
interest rate amount  cash flows on demand years years 5years
BHRREER -FR¥ BBE-F HEBWE
mEFH Rne RER BHR BHR
BEBRA= BEE RERRE HE mE IF BBIF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET FET TEL AT TET FTET
31 March 2019 RZB-NF
=ZA=1+-8
Trade and bills payables & 5 fE B3 &
RS 8,125 8,125 8,125 - - =
Accruals and other BREAREM
payables BRI FRIE 50,651 50,651 50,651 - - -
Convertible bonds BRRES 18.72% 49,635 577,170 - - - 577,170
108,411 635,946 58,776 - - 577,170
31 March 2018 —E-N\E
=ZA=+-8
Trade and bills payables & 5 FE B &
ERER 6,916 6,916 6,916 - - -
Accruals and other BREAREAM
payables e IR 47,381 47,381 47,381 - - -
Amount due to an B -
associate ARFE 19,780 19,780 19,780 - - -
Convertible bonds RkRES 18.72% 41,812 577,170 - - - 577,170
115,889 651,247 74,077 - - 577,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

4. B E R EE m@m)

Credit risk o) EERR
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to AEBZEERRBREZRE AR
investments in convertible bonds, trade and other BEHFEE BHRREREE
receivables, amount due from an associate, loan to an b FE W ROTR - R — B A A
associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances. RE -BEXT—HEELEAT B
BERRTERRIBITHESRS -
As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to RZE-—NF=ZA=+—H8" 'K
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group EEEY s EREERK(E
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the REBVFRERTEETMS
counterparties is the carrying amounts of the respective EEAETIRIBL) BEE B
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated MRRFNE 2 ZECERZ &R
statement of financial position. EEZREME-
The investments in convertible bonds as at 31 March RZE—NF=ZA=+—RH27
2019 expose the Group to concentration of credit risk. At BREFRESAEEHEZERR
the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed the Ehe PRIMEBER KREBEFTIE
financial position and performance of the issuer of the ff ™ & £469,737,0008 L (=&
convertible bonds of carrying amount HK$469,737,000 — A5 1 417,783,000 JT ) Z A]
(2018: HK$417,783,000) and in view of the net assets of WM EHFBEITAZHTBERILR
the issuer, the management considers the default risk on RIB ENBTANEBEZCEEF
the investments in convertible bonds is not significant. B EEEBERATEARESKRE
ZEARRBRYTERK -
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 =Z—hFF#H



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = —NF=-A=+—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  41. Bf # & b2 & 2 (@)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group also has concentration of credit risk as 25%
(2018: 11%) of the total trade receivables were due from
the Group’s major customers, which are privately owned
PRC and Macau companies engaged in trading of
pharmaceutical products. The directors of the Company
considered that the credit risk of trade receivables is
insignificant after considering the credit quality and
financial ability of these customers. In respect of trade
receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history. These
credit evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. The Group will make
specific provision for those balances which cannot be
recovered. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers. In the opinion of the directors, the default
risk of the Group is considered to be low.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

(d)

EE R k@)

rEBEFERBETR EBAESH
JEWBERBEP25%( T —N
F11%) DERAEEB 2 EZE
BEXRE ZERFPAMEBESR
B 2HBERBFMLARE &
ERZERFPZEEEEZRIHR
BN ARREERAEZEK
ERZEERBETEX - RE
SERBERME  HmAEkHE
BETESHEEEZREFPENTEY
FEEFE -AEBETHEEE WK
AEREEHRAEELHERY
ZEP -ZEEEFFEETZ
BEEYAMEERIE BT
URBRIZEMEEN  TERR
FRTENREHERFPKLENTE
KEIRBEZEAMN - ANEEBSA
ZET W Bl 2 & o 1E e B
He—MMmE AEBLTERER
FlkREHAR -EFERE A&
EmHrEORRAK-

AEEFERBEEEL RESH
EHEERRFREZTAGER
YRR BEREE - ARA
SEBETEERRERIBRER
TRAEFPHPBBEEATREBEXRR
Ao mBfRE EREREETS
E—FINAEETRAEFEZE

yaN
mm 77 °©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  41. Bf # & b2 & 2 (@)

(d) Credit risk (Continued) d) FERBE @
The following table provides information about the TREIIR_ZE—NE=ZA=+
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and —BAEBERE S EBERLE
bills receivables as at 31 March 2019: W =45 BT E B 2 15 B R B & 78 R
FEEBRXZER:

Past due but
not impaired

— Within
Current 180 days Total
2@ME
RKBE—
BN 58 1800 A et
Expected credit loss (%) TEEE BB K (%) 1.34 1.34 1.34
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRI A& (T8 7T) 16,102 3,945 20,047
Loss allowance (HK$’000) EiEEE (TAET) Q7)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience EEHEEXRNEEEF —F 28
over the past 1 year. These rates are adjusted to reflect REREESTE o s S KT
differences between economic conditions during the HE . UK ERF S HEEE
period over which the historical data has been collected, 2R IR AR O R AR &
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic HE U TR IE 2 FEE EE H 2 O AR
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. MEBEZER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ T —NF=A=+—HItFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  41. Bf # & b2 & 2 (@)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment. At
1 April 2018, trade and bills receivables of HK$42,305,000
was determined to be impaired. The ageing analysis of
trade debtors that were not considered to be impaired
was as follows:

(d)

EE R k@)

RZZFE—NFWMA—HA - A&
BETHBEEBREZE ZBR
THERAEBE R N\F
MAE—RH  BSERKERREK
Z $5 42,305,000/ ST HER A B R
B - AWHRAREZE D ERE
RZEREOWT

2018
—B-NF
HK$'000
TAET

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due but not impaired

— Within 180 days —180H A

RiEHR IR R ORUE
2EHERRE

15,543

5,533

21,076

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable.

With respect to credit risk arising from other receivables,
loan to and amount due from an associate, in the opinion
of the directors, no significant credit risk is expected as
there is no default repayment history.

The credit risk on the Group’s pledged bank deposits and
bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
reputable and creditworthy banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

KRBT R 2 BRFIARS
AT B RE KRB ZEP
B

B % B8 ROR{E 2 8 W 3R IR B AR
SEABRHABTHZZESE
VEFEMR REBBELER A
REEERYEERNES M
FRnDEA /s R8KE &
EREERARBEARZTREBRIEL
AR -

A EAMERTIE - ERT —H
Bk 2 A N 8 W — PR Be 2 X R R
EMELAZEERR EFAR
70 B 4 ROE RACEE 0 B TR
MY ESEREEAR -

AR ZHFRERTREELS
TEREAFRZBEEREERY
ZRT MAKREEERRTE
RAMRITERZEERRBR
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42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

fr & M55 38 R B aE (4R)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -E—HAF=A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset at the end of
the reporting period.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders through optimisation of capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure,
and makes adjustments to it taking into account the changes in
economic conditions, risk characteristics of the underlying
assets, the Group’s investment strategy and opportunities,
projected operating cash flows and capital expenditures. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the level of borrowings, dividend payment to shareholders,
issue new shares, or buy back its own shares.

41. B &R b B B (@)

) EERME@
BRAEERRKREREHMAETHE
SMEEEARME-

42, EXREE

AEEHEREAZBERREASHE
RRAERE UBBEBELLERRE
BUARBADEBEARA  BESKRREMH
[o] % A0 73 F A A a5 AR B B B R A aS -
AEEZEBRBALLFREAERT

% .

AEBEHNERLREREEELAER
TREAEEBEENRAEE B
BEZERRBHE AKEZRERE
R#E BRAKERESRARERNH
XEBEELRAE RESHABELS
B AEBEFREREBREKRF X
THREZES BTHRIBELE S

Bedn o

2019 2018

—E-AE ZEZE-NF

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FET FAT

Debts &% 49,635 61,592
Total equity BEZS4A%A 1,061,571 1,067,079
Gearing ratio EEAGBLX 4.7% 5.8%

43. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the directors on 28 June 2019.
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FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEMHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

is set out below:

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+t—-HLEFE

AEBEREAAMBRER XS URE
E BENMEEEESBEROT

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-NEF ZE-N\F ZE—+F ZF—RF ZT—h8F
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
THERT FA&TT FHET FHET FHE T
RESULTS ¥iE

Revenue g 89,218 85,762 107,903 142,201 128,833
Profit before income tax W P 15 4 Al 2 A 63,374 29,186 18,927 27,490 555,397

Income tax credit/ Fris®iEe,/

(expense) () (50) 86 616) (90) (92)
Profit for the year F R F 63,324 29,272 18,311 27,400 555,305
Attributable to: LA A TR

— Owners of the — KRR AE]

Company BB A 64,030 29,930 20,796 32,781 565,457

— Non-controlling — SEER

interests RS (706) (658) (2,485) (5,381) (10,152)
63,324 29,272 18,311 27,400 555,305
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+—HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NF ZE2-N\F ZE2—+F ZF—RF Z=—h8F
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FTHERT FE&TT FHET FHET T T
ASSETS, LIABILITIES BE AfFEK

AND NON- FERER

CONTROLLING

INTERESTS
Total assets R E 1,196,086 | 1,216,783 1,172,669 1,160,853 1,138,643
Total liabilities FES =R (134,515)|  (149,704)  (146,818)  (144,954)  (142,264)
Total equity B 1,061,571 | 1,067,079 1,025,851 1,015,899 996,379
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = 5,081 4,494 3,841 1,350 (4,489)
Equity attributable to owners KA B #EH A

of the Company JEfRRE S 1,066,652 | 1,071,573 1,029,692 1,017,249 991,890
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